
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 2 Chwefror 2022 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
CABINET 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cabinet o bell drwy Timau Microsoft ar Dydd Mawrth, 8 Chwefror 2022 am 
14:30. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 

Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 22 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 18/01/2022 
 

4.  Rhaglen Effeithlonrwydd Ynni Domestig, Ward Caerau 2012 a 2013  
 

23 - 28 

5.  Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2022-23 hyd 2025-26 a Phroses 
Ymgynghori'r Gyllideb Ddrafft  
 

29 - 50 

6.  Diweddariad y Rhaglen Gyfalaf  
 

51 - 62 

7.  Y Pencampwriaeth Agored Hyn, Clwb Golff Brenhinol Porthcawl  
 

63 - 68 

8.  Agwedd At Gyflogadwyedd yn y Dyfodol  
 

69 - 92 

9.  Cynllun Strategol 3 Blynedd ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol i 
Blant  
 

93 - 118 

10.  Rhaglen Moderneiddio Ysgolion: Canlyniad yr Ymgynghoriad ar Gynnig 
Rhaglen Moderneiddio Ysgolion i Ehangu Ysgol Gynradd Mynydd Cynffig  
 

119 - 198 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


11.  Blaenraglenni Gwaith y Cabinet, y Cyngor a Throsolwg a Chraffu  
 

199 - 210 

12.  Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi  
 

211 - 224 

13.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â pharagraff 2.4 (e) o'r Rheolau 
Trefn y Cabinet yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

Nodyn: Sylwch: Yn sgil yr angen i gadw pellter cymdeithasol, ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei 
gynnal yn ei leoliad arferol. Yn hytrach, bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion 
yn mynychu o bell. Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio i’w ddarlledu ar wefan y Cyngor cyn gynted 
ag sy'n ymarferol ar ôl y cyfarfod. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â 
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148. 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
J Gebbie 
SE Baldwin 

HJ David 
CE Smith 

HM Williams 
D Patel 



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

1 

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD YN O BELL - TRWY MICROSOFT 
TEAMS DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022, AM 14:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd HJ David – Cadeirydd  

 
J Gebbie SE Baldwin CE Smith HM Williams 
D Patel    

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
  
Swyddogion: 
 
Carys Lord Chief Officer - Finance, Performance & Change 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Kelly Watson Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 

Rheoleiddio 
Mark Shephard Prif Weithredwr 
Mark Galvin Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Dros dro 
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau  

 
766. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU 

 
Fe wnaeth y Cynghorydd Smith ddatgan buddiant oedd yn rhagfarnu yn eitem 14 - 
Penodi Llywodraethwyr Llywodraeth Leol gan ei fod ef yn Llywodraethwr.  
 

767. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo cofnodion 14/12/2021 fel cofnod gwir a chywir.  
 

768. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y RHEOLIADAU I SEFYDLU CYD-BWYLLGORAU 
CORFFORAETHOL A’R NEWIDIADAU O GANLYNIAD I GYD-BWYLLGOR 
PRIFDDINAS-RANBARTH CAERDYDD 
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr adroddiad gyda’r bwriad o wneud y canlynol:  
 

 Rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Aelodau am gyflwyno Cyd-bwyllgorau 
Corfforaethol (CBC) yn unol â’r ddarpariaeth yn Neddf Llywodraeth Leol ac 
Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021; 

 Ystyried Rheoliadau Cydbwyllgor Corfforaethol De-ddwyrain Cymru 2021, a 
ddaeth i rym ar y 1af o Ebrill 2021, mewn perthynas â sefydlu a gweithredu CBC, 
gyda’r swyddogaethau llesiant economaidd, trafnidiaeth a chynllunio strategol 
oedd yn dod i fodolaeth ar yr 28ain o Chwefror 2022;  

 Ystyried Adroddiad Cabinet Cyd-bwyllgor Dinas-ranbarth Caerdydd dyddiedig 
Medi 2021, oedd yn nodi sut y bydd swyddogaethau’r Cyd-bwyllgor presennol yn 
cael eu trosglwyddo i Gydbwyllgor Corfforaethol De-ddwyrain Cymru ar y 1af o 
Fawrth 2022 a nodi’r argymhellion;  

 Nodi’r digwyddiadau sydd bellach wedi digwydd ers yr Adroddiad hwnnw ac 
ystyried Adroddiad Cabinet Cyd-bwyllgor Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd 
dyddiedig Rhagfyr 2021 oedd yn nodi’r dull “trac deuol” fydd yn cael ei roi ar 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

2 

waith yn awr cyn i Gydbwyllgor Corfforaethol De-ddwyrain Cymru osod ei 
gyllideb statudol gyntaf ar yr 31ain o Ionawr 2022;  

 rhoi gwybod i’r Cabinet am y camau nesaf i ddatrys y rhwystrau presennol i 
weithrediad llawn y model “codi a symud” sy’n ceisio dod â Bargen Ddinesig 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd a’r CBC ynghyd yn y pen draw yn un model 
cydlynol o lywodraethu economaidd rhanbarthol. 

 
Darparodd y Prif Weithredwr gefndir gan nodi bod Deddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau 
(Cymru) 2021 yn cynnwys darpariaethau i greu Cydbwyllgorau Corfforaethol (CJC) fel 
cyfrwng ar gyfer cydweithredu rhanbarthol cyson rhwng prif gynghorau. Y nod oedd 
sicrhau bod yna drefniadau rhanbarthol cyson, gwydn ac atebol ar gyfer cyflawni tair 
swyddogaeth bwysig, sef (i) cynllunio defnydd tir strategol (ii) cynllunio trafnidiaeth 
strategol a (iii) datblygu economaidd. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr fod Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd 
(CCRCD) ers ei sefydlu yn 2016 wedi darparu ystod o raglenni a mentrau uchel eu 
gwerth ar draws y rhanbarth, gan roi cyfanswm o tua £198 miliwn o fuddsoddiadau. 
Mae’r strategaeth fuddsoddi wedi’i seilio ar ddiwallu anghenion sylfaenol lleol – darparu 
cynlluniau trafnidiaeth cynaliadwy, cyflwyno seilwaith ar gyfer cerbydau gydag allyriadau 
isel iawn (ULEV), cau bylchau hyfywedd ar safleoedd diwydiannol ar gyfer tai, cymorth 
ar gyfer sgiliau a safleoedd datblygu strategol – ochr yn ochr ag amrywiaeth o 
fuddsoddiadau wedi'u targedu'n well i gyfateb i’r farchnad o amgylch yr economi arloesi 
a chynyddu dwyster ymchwil a datblygu hanfodol.  
 
Ychwanegodd fod egwyddorion allweddol wedi'u datblygu i fanteisio ar y buddsoddiad a 
wnaed, drwy fframwaith buddsoddi a oedd wedi blaenoriaethu dylanwad y sector preifat 
a natur sgiliau uchel y swyddi a grëwyd. Hyd yma, roedd y trosoledd rhagamcanol 
oddeutu £2.5 biliwn gyda tharged o 6,900 o swyddi. Yn allanol, mae’r ysbryd cystadleuol 
wedi cynyddu gyda dwy wobr Strength in Places yn cael eu dyfarnu o fewn cyfnod o 
ddwy flynedd gan Ymchwil ac Arloesi yn y DU, sy’n rhychwantu sectorau blaenoriaeth 
diwydiant Lled-ddargludyddion Cyfansawdd a Diwydiannau Creadigol a bron i £100 
miliwn o fuddsoddiad uniongyrchol newydd. 
 
Amlinellodd y Prif Weithredwr y manylion ar drosglwyddo Swyddogaethau Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd i Brifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd De-ddwyrain Cymru – Llywodraethu 
a Chyflawni. Eglurodd fod y Rheoliadau Sefydlu yn darparu swyddogaethau’r Cyd-
bwyllgor Corfforaethol (CBC) a ddaw i rym ar yr 28ain o Chwefror 2022. Roedd hyn i bob 
pwrpas yn golygu bod yn rhaid i Gyd-bwyllgor Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd fod yn 
barod i “fynd yn fyw” a gweithredu drwy gorff y CBC erbyn y 1af o Fawrth 2022. Yng 
nghyfarfod Cabinet Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd (“y Cabinet Rhanbarthol”) ar yr 20fed o 
Fedi 2021, ystyriodd Cabinet Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd y pedwar dewis a restrwyd 
yn 4.2 yr adroddiad. 
 
Ychwanegodd, yn dilyn gwerthuso’r dewisiadau, y penderfynwyd mai Dewis 3 oedd y 
model a ffefrir am y rhesymau a restrwyd yn 4.3 yr adroddiad. Roedd rhagor o 
wybodaeth am hyn yn adran 4 yr adroddiad.  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr y camau nesaf yn y broses hon. Mae’r dull “lleiafswm moel” 
arfaethedig yn darparu ffordd bragmatig o alluogi Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd a’r deg 
Cyngor Cyfansoddol i ddechrau gweithredu gofynion y CBC a mabwysiadu’r 
dyletswyddau statudol tra ar yr un pryd yn cynorthwyo Llywodraeth Cymru i ddatrys y 
materion sy’n atal trosglwyddo i’r model “Codi a Symud”. O ganlyniad, mae angen rhoi 
cyfres o gamau yn eu lle rhwng hyn a’r 31ain o Ionawr 2022 (sef y dyddiad y mae’n rhaid 
i’r CBC gymeradwyo ei gyllideb) er mwyn sicrhau ei fod yn cydymffurfio â’r 
ddeddfwriaeth ond yn amddiffyn sefyllfa tymor byr a hirdymor y deg Cyngor Cyfansoddol 

Page 4



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

3 

a, lle bynnag y bo modd, yn diogelu rhag unrhyw anfantais. Ar sail cyngor allanol a 
chymorth technegol, bydd y dull “lleiafswm prin” arfaethedig yn galluogi’r Prifddinas-
Ranbarthol i ddangos ei bod wedi dechrau’r cyfnod pontio ac yn sicrhau cydymffurfioh 
â’r ddeddfwriaeth. Bydd yn ei hanfod yn creu amlinelliad o’r CBC fel isafswm statudol 
absoliwt a safle interim yn unig. Bydd yn gweithredu ar y disgwyliad mai dim ond y 
lleiafswm absoliwt o weithgaredd gweithredol angenrheidiol fydd yn cael ei gyflawni. 
Mae’n annhebygol y bydd unrhyw weithgaredd allanol yn digwydd (megis cynhyrchu 
cynllun busnes, cyfarfodydd y CBC y tu hwnt i gyfarfodydd cychwynnol i osod cyllideb / 
sefydlu, cyfarfodydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio a Llywodraethu, trefniadau staffio y tu hwnt i'r 
rhai sy'n gysylltiedig â'r uchod). Roedd manylion yr hyn sydd wedi'i gynnwys yn 4.14 o'r 
adroddiad gyda manylion pellach yn 4.15 ymlaen. 
 
Credai'r Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio fod y rhain yn fesurau gweinyddol a 
thechnegol fyddai’n galluogi menter strategol ranbarthol bwysig iawn i ddwyn ffrwyth. 
Cefnogodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd hyn a'r adroddiad hyd nes y ceir eglurder pellach ar y 
meysydd a grybwyllwyd. 
 
Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd fod hyn wedi bod yn destun trafodaeth helaeth ymhlith y 10 
Awdurdod Lleol ar lefel Cabinet rhanbarthol yn ogystal â thrwy ymgysylltu â Llywodraeth 
Cymru gan ei fod yn cael ei lywio gan ddeddfwriaeth newydd.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: (1) Bod y Cabinet: 
 

i. Yn nodi’r Rheoliadau Sefydlu newydd oedd wedi sefydlu CBC De-ddwyrain 
Cymru; 

ii. Yn nodi penderfyniad y Cabinet Rhanbarthol ar yr 20fed o Fedi 2021 i 
drosglwyddo ei swyddogaethau presennol, a oedd yn ymwneud yn bennaf â 
chytundeb y Fargen Ddinesig fel yr ymrwymwyd iddo gan ddeg cyngor De-
ddwyrain Cymru ym mis Mawrth 2016, i Gyd-bwyllgor Corfforaethol De-ddwyrain 
Cymru ar yr 28ain o Chwefror 2022; 

iii. Yn nodi penderfyniadau’r Cabinet Rhanbarthol ar y 13eg o Ragfyr 2021, yn dilyn 
gwireddu’r risgiau a’r materion a oedd yn awr yn atal gweithredu’n llawn model 
“Codi a Symud” dewis Llywodraethu a Chyflawni 3 a ddewiswyd yn ôl yr 
amserlen a gynigiwyd yn flaenorol a’r trefniadau diwygiedig, i : 

 gymeradwyo ailgyfeirio ac ail-bennu pwrpas yr egwyddorion sydd wedi’u 
cynnwys yn adroddiad 20 Medi 2021 a chytuno ar weithredu’r dulliau “lleiafswm 
moel” a’r “trac deuol” a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, gan ganiatáu i Ddinas-ranbarth 
Caerdydd (CCR) gydymffurfio â’r Rheoliadau Sefydlu, hyd nes y gellir atgyfodi 
trawsnewid drwy'r model “codi a symud” ac ochr yn ochr â datrys materion sy'n 
weddill;  

 cymeradwyo ailosod y llwybr critigol mewn perthynas â’r tasgau a’r 
gweithgareddau y mae angen eu cyflawni cyn gosod y gyllideb erbyn yr 31ain o 
Ionawr 2022 a phenderfynu rhoi’r gorau i’r Bwrdd Pontio yn y cyfnod hwn; 

 cytuno i ofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru ddiwygio’r Rheoliadau Sefydlu i newid dyddiad 
cychwyn ymarfer ei swyddogaethau mewn perthynas â’r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth 
Rhanbarthol, y Cynllun Datblygu Strategol a grym llesiant economaidd o’r 28ain o 
Chwefror 2022 i’r 30ain o Fehefin 2022; 

iv. Yn nodi’r gofyniad i’r CBC osod a chymeradwyo cyllideb ar neu cyn yr 31ain o 
Ionawr 2022 a’r camau a nodir yn yr adroddiad i wneud hyn yn bosibl; 

Page 5



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

4 

v. Yn nodi'r risgiau a'r materion a eglurwyd yn yr adroddiad yr oedd angen eu 
monitro, eu lliniaru a'u rheoli'n barhaus; 

vi. Yn nodi’r Rheolau Sefydlog drafft yn Atodiad 1 i’r Adroddiad hwn sy’n egluro’r 
gofynion cychwynnol a’r model gweithredu ar gyfer y CBC yn ogystal â busnes 
cychwynnol y cyfarfod cyntaf ar yr 31ain o Ionawr 2022; 

vii. Yn nodi’r gwaith sy’n mynd rhagddo gan Ddinas-ranbarth Caerdydd a’i 
Gynghorau Cyfansoddol i weithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru, Archwilio Cymru a 
chynghorwyr fel y bo’n briodol, i helpu i lywio’r gwaith o ddatrys y materion sy’n 
weddill lle bynnag y bo modd;  

viii. Yn nodi y byddai Arweinydd y Cyngor hwn, mewn ymgynghoriad â’r Prif 
Weithredwr a’r Swyddog Adran 151, yn ystyried ac yn gosod cyllideb gyntaf y 
CBC erbyn yr 31ain o Ionawr 2022 fan bellaf er mwyn sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn 
cydymffurfio â’r ddeddfwriaeth fel sydd angen; 

(2) Yn nodi y byddai diweddariadau'n cael eu darparu ar y cynnydd o ddull y “trac 
deuol” i'r model “codi a symud”.    

  
769. MONITRO CYLLIDEB 2021-22 - RHAGOLYGON REFENIW CHWARTER 3 

 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad, oedd yn rhoi’r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Cabinet ar sefyllfa ariannol refeniw’r Cyngor ar yr 31ain o 
Ragfyr 2021, ac yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i drosglwyddiadau cyllideb rhwng 
£100,000 a £500,000, fel sy’n ofynnol dan Reolau Gweithdrefn Ariannol y Cyngor.  
 
Tynnodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid sylw at y tabl yn adran 4 yr 
adroddiad oedd yn rhoi manylion y sefyllfa ariannol ar yr 31ain o Ragfyr 2021, a’r 
Gymhariaeth rhwng y gyllideb a’r alldro disgwyliedig.  
 
Eglurodd fod tanwariant net o £2.525 miliwn yn cynnwys tanwariant net o £2.072 miliwn 
ar gyfarwyddiaethau a thanwariant net o £7.457 miliwn ar gyllidebau'r cyngor cyfan, 
wedi'i wrthbwyso gan ddyraniad net o £7.004 miliwn i gronfeydd wrth gefn oedd wedi eu 
clustnodi. Roedd yr hyn yr oedd y sefyllfa ragamcanol yn seiliedig arno wedi'i restru yn 
4.1.2 yr adroddiad. 
 
Ychwanegodd fod y tanwariant a ragwelir ar gyllideb y Cyngor yn chwarter 3 yn cuddio'n 
sylweddol y pwysau cyllidebol sylfaenol mewn rhai meysydd gwasanaeth yr adroddwyd 
amdanynt yn 2020-21 ac oedd yn dal i fodoli yn 2021-22. Roedd y prif bwysau ariannol 
mewn Cludiant o'r Cartref i'r Ysgol, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant, 
Digartrefedd a Gwastraff. Amlinellwyd y rhesymau am y rhain yn adrannau 4.1.4 trwy 
4.1.7 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Amlinellodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid effeithiau pandemig Covid-19 a 
beth oedd amcangyfrif o’r costau gan y Cyngor mewn ymateb i hyn. Rhoddodd ffigurau 
ar hawliadau gwariant Covid-19 hyd at ddiwedd Tachwedd 2021 yn ogystal â cholled 
incwm Covid-19 hyd at Chwarter 2 2021-22. Roedd manylion am hyn yn adran 4 yr 
adroddiad. 
 
Ychwanegodd y bu nifer o drosglwyddiadau cyllidebol ac addasiadau technegol rhwng 
cyllidebau ers i Ragolwg Refeniw chwarter 2 gael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet ym mis Hydref. 
Adroddwyd ar sefyllfa'r gyllideb gan ragdybio y bydd y trosglwyddiadau hyn yn cael eu 
cymeradwyo. Roedd y manylion yn 4.1.22 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Roedd y Dirprwy Arweinydd yn falch o sefyllfa tanwariant yr awdurdod ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ariannol hon ond gallai’r darlun fod wedi bod yn wahanol oni bai am gronfa 

Page 6



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

5 

galedi Llywodraeth Cymru. Diolchodd i'r swyddogion am eu gwaith yn tynnu’r arian i lawr 
oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru. Ategodd yr Arweinydd y sylwadau hyn a dywedodd efallai 
na fydd y gronfa galedi yno yn y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf ac felly ei bod yn bwysig i'r 
awdurdod dynnu'r hyn a allent o'r cronfeydd hyn. 
 
Soniodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod yr adroddiad yn amlygu tanwariant o 
ganlyniad i Covid. Gofynnodd a oedd unrhyw achosion eraill dros y tanwariant fel 
cadwyni cyflenwi ac ati. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod yna broblemau ychwanegol 
ac mai cadwyni cyflenwi oedd un o'r rhai mwyaf amlwg.  Ychwanegodd nad oedd hwn 
yn fater unigryw i Ben-y-bont ar Ogwr ond i bob Awdurdod Lleol yng Nghymru. Mae hyn 
hefyd wedi effeithio ar allu contractwyr i ymgymryd â gwaith ychwanegol, sydd yn ei dro 
wedi effeithio ar faint y cynnydd a wnaed ar brosiectau penodol. Ychwanegodd fod 
cynnydd wedi bod mewn costau o ganlyniad i Brexit a Covid oedd yn anodd cynllunio ar 
eu cyfer ac felly bod hyn yn rhywbeth i gadw llygad arno yn y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau ble roeddem yn gweld gor-chwyddiant 
mewn costau mewn perthynas â darparu nwyddau a gwasanaethau, a ydym yn dewis 
peidio â rhoi’r gwaith hwnnw oherwydd defnydd amhriodol o arian y Cyngor. Dywedodd 
y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod hyn yn rhywbeth yr oedd angen edrych 
arno’n unigol ac y byddai trafodaethau’n cael eu cynnal gyda chyflenwyr ynglŷn â’r 
gwaith yr oedd arnom ei angen a’r costau, ond bod llawer o gynlluniau’n hanfodol ac 
felly roedd rhaid eu caffael hyd yn oed os oedd y costau’n uwch na’r disgwyl.  
 
Gwnaeth yr Arweinydd sylw ar y pwynt hwn a dywedodd mai enghraifft dda o waith yr 
oedd yn rhaid ei gaffael oedd y cynllun teithio i ddysgwyr. Mae hwn yn wasanaeth 
hanfodol y mae'n rhaid ei ddarparu. Roedd rhai o'r gwasanaethau hyn wedi mynd allan 
i'w haildendro, ond roedd costau darparwyr wedi cynyddu'n sylweddol mewn rhai 
achosion. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 yn nodi’r sefyllfa refeniw a ragwelir ar gyfer 2021-22; 
 

 Yn argymell bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r trosglwyddiadau ariannol rhwng 
£100,000 a £500,000 fel yr amlinellwyd ym mharagraff 4.1.22 o’r adroddiad.  

 
770. STRATEGAETH GYLLIDO TYMOR CANOLIG 2022-23 I 2025-26 

 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad, oedd yn rhoi’r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Cabinet ar sefyllfa ariannol refeniw’r Cyngor ar yr 31ain o 
Ragfyr 2021, ac roedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i drosglwyddiadau cyllideb rhwng 
£100,000 a £500,000, fel sy’n ofynnol dan Reolau Gweithdrefn Ariannol y Cyngor. 
 
Eglurodd fod y Cyngor ar y 24ain o Chwefror 2021 wedi cymeradwyo cyllideb refeniw net 
o £298.956 miliwn ar gyfer 2021-22. Fel rhan o'r Fframwaith Rheoli Perfformiad, roedd 
rhagamcanion cyllideb yn cael eu hadolygu'n rheolaidd a'u hadrodd i'r Cabinet bob 
chwarter. 
 
Amlinellodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid y sefyllfa ariannol ar yr 31ain o 
Ragfyr 2021 oedd wedi ei grynhoi yn Nhabl 1 yr adroddiad. Manylwyd ar y sefyllfa 
ragamcanol yn 4.1.2 yr adroddiad gydag effeithiau Covid 19 fel y crybwyllwyd mewn 
adroddiad blaenorol wedi eu disgrifio yn 4.1.12. 
 

Page 7



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

6 

Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Cyngor wedi parhau i 
gefnogi addysg, ymyrraeth gynnar, gwasanaethau cymdeithasol a gwasanaethau lles i 
sicrhau ein bod yn rhoi blaenoriaeth i'r rhai sy'n agored i niwed yn ein cymdeithas. Mae'r 
Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig (SATC) yn ailadrodd bod y Cyngor wrth symud 
ymlaen yn edrych ar gynifer o ffyrdd ag y gallwn i wneud y defnydd gorau o'r adnoddau 
sydd ganddo er mwyn gallu parhau i ddiogelu'r gwasanaethau hyn. 
 
Ychwanegodd y byddai'r Cyngor yn ceisio codi incwm ychwanegol lle bynnag y bo 
modd, ond mai cyfyngedig fyddai’r cyfleoedd i wneud hynny o ystyried heriau Covid-19. 
Byddai'r Cyngor yn parhau i chwilio am ffyrdd eraill o ddarparu gwasanaethau i ddarparu 
cynaliadwyedd ac effeithlonrwydd. Roedd arbedion ar gyfer y flwyddyn i ddod yn 
cynnwys adolygu a rhesymoli cyflenwadau a gwasanaethau'r cyngor. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Cyngor yn bwriadu gwario 
131 miliwn ar wasanaethau a ddarperir gan y Gyfarwyddiaeth Addysg a Chymorth i 
Deuluoedd. Roedd cyllid cyfalaf ychwanegol hefyd ar gael i gefnogi, adeiladu ac 
adnewyddu ein hysgolion fel rhan o raglen band B o dan raglen Moderneiddio'r Unfed 
Ganrif ar Hugain. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Cyngor yn bwriadu gwario 
78 miliwn ar wasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol a lles yn y flwyddyn i ddod. Strategaeth y 
Cyngor yw trawsnewid sut rydym yn gweithio gyda phobl gan sicrhau bod y 
gwasanaethau yn gynaliadwy yn y tymor hir.  
 
Nododd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid y Trosolwg Ariannol Corfforaethol 
a oedd yn cynnwys y pwysau sy'n gwasgu adnoddau. Crynhowyd y rhain yn adran 4.1.1 
yr adroddiad. Tynnodd sylw at yr arbedion yr edrychwyd arnynt oedd yn cwmpasu rhai 
meysydd allweddol a restrir isod:  
 

 mesurau effeithlonrwydd cyffredinol 

 arbedion eiddo 

 modelau darparu gwahanol 

 newidiadau yn y gwasanaethau a ddarperir 

 addysg 

 gofal cymdeithasol a lles 

 newidiadau adrannol  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid, oherwydd y cyhoeddiad hwyr 
ynghylch yr adolygiad cynhwysfawr o wariant, na dderbyniwyd y setliad dros dro i 
Lywodraeth Leol tan yr 21ain o Ragfyr 2021. 
 
Roedd y setliad drafft yn nodi cynlluniau gwariant cyfalaf cyffredinol refeniw ar gyfer 
2022-23 ac roedd hefyd yn cynnwys dyraniadau arfaethedig ar gyfer 2023-24 a 2024-25. 
Dywedodd mai'r prif ffigur ar gyfer y gyllideb refeniw ar gyfer 2022-23 oedd cynnydd 
cyffredinol o 9.4% ledled Cymru ac ar gyfer Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr roedd y cynnydd yn 
9.2% yn y cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Pwysleisiodd ei bod yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor gwrdd â chost cytundeb cyflog athrawon o 
fewn ffigwr y setliad hwn. Roedd yn ofynnol hefyd i'r Cyngor dalu'r cyfraniadau Yswiriant 
Gwladol uwch yn ogystal â thalu'r costau ychwanegol o gyflwyno'r cyflog byw 
gwirioneddol i weithwyr gofal. Roedd y manylion ar gyfer hyn eto i ddod.  
 
Tynnodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid sylw at y pwysau cyllidebol sydd 
wedi codi, sef cyfanswm o £11.860 miliwn a £3.6 miliwn pellach hefyd wedi'i nodi ar 
gyfer y dyfodol. Roedd manylion y rhain yn Atodiad A yr adroddiad. Roedd cynigion i 

Page 8



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

7 

leihau'r gyllideb o £631,000 ar gyfer 2022-23 wedi'u nodi o gyllidebau gwasanaeth a 
chorfforaethol i sicrhau cyllideb gytbwys, roedd manylion hyn yn Atodiad B yr adroddiad. 
Rhoddodd hefyd grynodeb o gronfeydd wrth gefn y cyngor a'r Dyraniadau Blynyddol 
Arfaethedig o Gyllid Cyfalaf y manylwyd arnynt yn nhabl 8 a 9 yr adroddiad. 
 
Pwysleisiodd yr Arweinydd yr anhawster o ddatblygu SATC a diolchodd i'r Prif Swyddog 
am y gwaith caled a wnaed i ddatblygu hyn. Bu'n gweithio'n agos gyda'i rhagflaenydd a 
oedd wedi rhoi help llaw i gael yr arbenigedd gan ddau Swyddog yn ystod y cyfnod o 
drawsnewid. Diolchodd i'r tîm am eu gwaith yn cynorthwyo i ddatblygu'r strategaeth. 
Ychwanegodd ei fod yn dueddol eisoes tuag at y cynigion yn y strategaeth ariannol 
tymor canolig gan eu bod wedi'u datblygu gyda'r Cabinet a'r Bwrdd Rheoli Corfforaethol 
a dyma oedd y broses bob blwyddyn. Roedd yn croesawu barn yr holl Aelodau ar y 
cynigion gan fod hyn yn rhan bwysig o'r broses. Wrth ddatblygu’r SATC, y nod oedd 
cadw’r toriadau i wasanaethau rheng flaen i lawr i’r eithaf, a lle bynnag yr oedd modd, 
cyfyngu’r cynnydd yn y dreth gyngor i’r lleiafswm. Gofynnodd a oedd unrhyw newidiadau 
i'r setliad.  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig yn y ffurf drafft ac y byddai’n bosibl ei newid. Gallai'r newidiadau fod am nifer o 
resymau ond roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi rhoi sicrwydd mai bychan iawn fyddai 
unrhyw newidiadau. Hefyd, oherwydd bod y setliad yn hwyr, roedd Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn gallu ymgorffori newidiadau yn ddiweddarach cyn darparu’r setliad. 
 
Croesawodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd yr adroddiad a dywedodd er ei fod yn rhagdueddol, 
bod ei feddwl yn agored a’i fod yn croesawu unrhyw fewnbwn gan Aelodau. SATC drafft 
oedd hon ac roedd yn bwysig casglu ystod eang o safbwyntiau a mewnbwn cyn ei 
chwblhau. Hyd yn hyn, roedd argymhellion o'r ymgynghoriadau cyhoeddus wedi'u 
hymgorffori, y Panel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso'r Gyllideb (BREP) yn ogystal ag Aelodau. 
Mynegodd ei ddiolch i'r tîm am eu gwaith caled. 
 
Ategodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio y sylw hwn ac ychwanegodd ei bod 
yn braf ar ôl 6 blynedd fel aelod o'r Cabinet i beidio â gweld effeithiau llymder ideolegol 
gorfodol a gallu edrych ar gynlluniau gwariant newydd.  
 
Ategodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau’r sylwadau ac ychwanegodd ei bod yn braf 
gweld bod mynd i’r afael ag eiddo gwag yn cael ei ystyried yn y Strategaeth Ariannol 
Tymor Canolig, rhywbeth oedd wedi bod yn amharu ar gymdeithas ers peth amser.  
 
Croesawodd Aelod y Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 
yr adroddiad a'r sylwadau gan gyd-Aelodau’r Cabinet. Roedd yn falch o weld y cynigion 
cadarnhaol mewn perthynas â’r gwasanaethau cymdeithasol gan ei bod yn hanfodol 
bwysig sicrhau bod trigolion yn derbyn gofal. Roedd costau byw wedi cynyddu'n 
arbennig dros y 2 flynedd ddiwethaf yn ogystal â chynnydd posibl mewn prisiau tanwydd 
ac felly roedd y cynigion a nodid yn yr adroddiad yn bwysig.  
 
Adleisiodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol y sylwadau ac fel y 
dywedodd Aelodau’r Cabinet gyda’r toriadau a dderbyniwyd dros y 9 mlynedd neu fwy 
roedd yn braf gweld bod hyd yn oed y senario waethaf eleni yn well na llawer o senarios 
achos gorau mewn blynyddoedd blaenorol. Gofynnodd sut oedd hyn wedi'i ragweld.  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid bod angen inni edrych ymlaen o 
ran cynllunio ariannol ac edrych ar yr hyn sy’n ariannol gyraeddadwy ac wrth ystyried y 
sefyllfa waethaf bosibl, roedd yn bwysig edrych ar dueddiadau’r flwyddyn flaenorol er 
mwyn ceisio rhagweld sut y byddai’r flwyddyn i ddod yn edrych. Ychwanegodd yr 
Arweinydd, oherwydd y rhesymau a drafodwyd, fod angen trin y rhagolygon yn ofalus.  

Page 9



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

8 

Gofynnodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau am ragor o wybodaeth am yr amrywiadau 
mewn setliadau i'r holl Awdurdodau Lleol.  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y cynnydd cyfartalog ar draws 
Cymru yn 9.4% gyda’r uchaf yn 11.2% a’r isaf yn 4%. Roedd nifer o Awdurdodau Lleol 
wedi derbyn mwy na 9% ac felly er bod CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ychydig yn is na'r 
cyfartaledd roedd yn dal yn gadarnhaol iawn. Ychwanegodd fod newidiadau yn y 
boblogaeth yn ffactor mawr mewn ffigyrau setlo, oedd yn rheswm arall pam ei bod yn 
anodd rhagweld yn gywir.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 yn nodi’r sefyllfa refeniw a ragwelir ar gyfer 2021-22 
 

 Yn argymell bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r trosglwyddiadau ariannol rhwng 
£100,000 a £500,000 fel yr amlinellwyd ym mharagraff 4.1.22 o’r adroddiad.  

 
771. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y RHAGLEN GYFALAF - ADRODDIAD CHWARTER 3 2021-22 

 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad, a’i ddiben oedd:  
 

 Cydymffurfio â gofyniad Cod Darbodus Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a 
Chyfrifyddiaeth (CIPFA) ar gyfer Cyllid Cyfalaf Awdurdodau Lleol, (argraffiad 
2017)   

 Rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa gyfalaf ar gyfer 2021-22, ar 31 
Rhagfyr 2021 (Atodiad A) 

 ceisio cytundeb gan y Cabinet i gyflwyno adroddiad i’r Cyngor i’w gymeradwyo ar 
gyfer rhaglen gyfalaf ddiwygiedig 2021-22 i 2030-31 (Atodiad B) 

 nodi’r Dangosyddion Darbodus ac Eraill a ragwelir ar gyfer 2021-22 (Atodiad C) 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y rhaglen ddiwygiedig ar 
gyfer 2021-22 ar hyn o bryd yn dod i gyfanswm o £49.603 miliwn, a bod £28.495 miliwn 
ohono’n cael ei dalu o adnoddau Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (CBSP), 
gan gynnwys derbyniadau cyfalaf a chyfraniadau refeniw o gronfeydd wrth gefn a 
glustnodwyd, gyda’r £21.108 miliwn sy’n weddill yn dod o adnoddau allanol, gan 
gynnwys Grant Cyfalaf Cyffredinol Llywodraeth Cymru. Roedd Tabl 1 yr adroddiad yn 
dangos y Rhaglen Gyfalaf fesul Cyfarwyddiaeth ar gyfer 2021-22. Dywedodd fod y 
llithriad i flynyddoedd i ddod ychydig dros £30 miliwn a bod hyn yn golygu nad oedd 
llawer o gynlluniau yn mynd i wario'r gyllideb a ddyrannwyd iddynt yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ariannol hon ac y byddant felly'n llithro i'r flwyddyn nesaf. Mae’r cynlluniau hyn yn 
parhau yn y rhaglen gyfalaf ac felly roedd yr arian yn dal i fod wedi ei ddyrannu iddynt. 
 
Tynnodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid sylw at dabl 2 oedd yn manylu ar 
Adnoddau Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2021-22. Roedd Atodiad A yr adroddiad yn rhoi manylion y 
cynlluniau unigol o fewn y rhaglen gyfalaf, gan ddangos unrhyw rai newydd oedd wedi 
eu cymeradwyo, trosglwyddiadau arian a llithriad i gyllideb ddiwygiedig 2021-22. 
Crynhodd nifer o gynlluniau lle roedd angen llithriad a manylwyd arnynt yn 4.4 o'r 
adroddiad.  
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod nifer o gynlluniau newydd 
wedi eu hymgorffori yn y rhaglen gyfalaf ers i’r  adroddiad cyfalaf diwethaf gael ei 
gymeradwyo ym mis Hydref. Manylwyd ar y rhain yn 4.5 o'r adroddiad. Roedd manylion 
y rhaglen gyfalaf ddiwygiedig yn Atodiad B yr adroddiad. 
 

Page 10



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

9 

Ychwanegodd gyda'r cynlluniau amrywiol yn galw am lithriad i'r flwyddyn nesaf, y 
byddai'r Cyngor angen benthyca llai o arian nag a ragwelwyd yn wreiddiol, oedd yn 
golygu na fyddai'r Cyngor yn mynd i unrhyw ddyled benthyciad ar gyfer y flwyddyn 
ariannol.  
  
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod Pandemig Covid-19 wedi cael effaith ar ein Rhaglen 
Gyfalaf ond rhoddodd sicrwydd bod y cynlluniau’n dal yn flaenoriaeth. Croesawyd y 
cyllid grant ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru i helpu i ehangu fflyd y Cyngor o 
gerbydau allyriadau isel yn ogystal â chyllid tuag at y paneli solar ffotofoltäig yn Nepo 
Bryncethin. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol am y llithriad yn 
Neuadd y Dref Maesteg a sut y byddai hyn yn effeithio ar ddyddiad y gystadleuaeth.  
 
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod Cynllun Neuadd y Dref Maesteg 
yn un pwysig iawn a bod cyflwyno hwn wedi bod yn heriol gan ei fod wedi bod yn 
digwydd yn ystod y Pandemig. Un o'r heriau a gawsom oedd y nifer cyfyngedig o staff 
oedd yn cael mynd ar y safle yn ystod y cyfyngiadau. Mater arall oedd yr anhawster i 
gael y cyflenwadau oedd eu hangen oherwydd y prinder yn y gadwyn gyflenwi, costau 
nwyddau ac yn y blaen. Ychwanegodd ei bod yn bwysig bod ansawdd y gwaith yn cael y 
lle blaenaf, yn hytrach na’r amser a gymerid ac felly bod llithriad yn angenrheidiol ond y 
rhagwelid y byddai’r gwaith wedi cael ei gwblhau tua haf 2022.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 yn nodi diweddariad Chwarter 3 Rhaglen Gyfalaf y Cyngor 2021-22 hyd 31 
Rhagfyr 2021 (Atodiad A i’r adroddiad)  

 

 yn cytuno bod y Rhaglen Gyfalaf ddiwygiedig (Atodiad B i'r adroddiad) yn cael ei 
chyflwyno i'r Cyngor i'w chymeradwyo 

 

 yn nodi’r Dangosyddion Darbodus ac Eraill a ragwelir ar gyfer 2021-22 (Atodiad 
C i’r adroddiad).  

 
772. GORCHMYNION DIOGELU MANNAU AGORED CYHOEDDUS (GDMAC) 

 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad oedd yn gofyn am 
gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i ymgynghori â’r Heddlu, Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throsedd 
a chyrff perthnasol eraill mewn perthynas â’r canlynol:  
 

 Estyniad i’r Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus presennol sy'n 
ymwneud â rheoli alcohol 

 Estyniad i’r Gorchymyn Gwarchod Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus presennol sy’n 
ymwneud â’r cyfyngiad ar fynediad i fan cyhoeddus yn yr ardal rhwng Stryd 
Talbot a Stryd Plasnewydd, Maesteg 

 Estyniad i'r GDMAC presennol sy'n ymwneud â Rheoli Cŵn 

 Amrywio rheolaeth yr ardal alcohol ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr i gynnwys yr ardal a 
adwaenir fel y parc chwarae ar Heol Quarella, Wildmill 

 Gan nodi, yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad, y bydd adroddiad pellach yn cael ei 
gyflwyno i'r cabinet er mwyn i benderfyniad gael ei wneud ynghylch ymestyn ac 
amrywio'r Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus 

 
Esboniodd y Prif Swyddog – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Gorchymyn Diogelu 
Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus presennol ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi 
dod yn ddeddf ar 18 Mehefin 2019 a’i fod yn ymwneud â rheoli alcohol, cyfyngu ar 

Page 11



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

10 

fynediad i fannau agored cyhoeddus a rheoli cŵn. Daw i ben ar 18 Mehefin 2022. Mae 
GDMAC yn parhau mewn grym am dair blynedd oni bai ei fod yn cael ei ddileu gan yr 
awdurdod lleol. Amlinellwyd mwy o fanylion ynghylch GDMAC yn adran 3 yr adroddiad. 
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod yn rhaid cynnal 
ymgynghoriad ynghylch unrhyw Orchmynion Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus 
ychwanegol, neu amrywiad neu estyniad i GDMAC presennol. Roedd y manylion yn 
adran 4 yr adroddiad. 
 
Dywedodd pe bai'n cael ei gymeradwyo, y byddai'r ymgynghoriad yn cychwyn ar 7 
Chwefror 2022 ac yn parhau am gyfnod o 12 wythnos. Byddai’r ymgynghoriad yn gofyn 
am farn ynglŷn â’r canlynol: 
 

 ymestyn y GDMAC presennol sy’n ymwneud â rheoli alcohol yng Nghaerau, 
Pencoed, Porthcawl, Maesteg a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar yr un telerau yn union. 

 ymestyn y GDMAC sy’n cyfyngu mynediad rhwng Stryd Talbot a Stryd 
Plasnewydd, o ddydd Llun i ddydd Sadwrn rhwng 17:30 ar un diwrnod a 09:00 y 
diwrnod wedyn ac ar ddydd Sul a’r holl wyliau banc am 24 awr. 

 ymestyn y Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus presennol ynghylch 
rheoli cŵn yn Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar yr un telerau yn union. 

 peidio ag ymestyn y Gorchymyn Gwarchod Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus sy'n 
ymwneud â chyfyngu mynediad rhwng Stryd Wesley a Stryd Lloyd, Caerau. 

 
Roedd rhagor o fanylion am y GDMAC yn adran 4 yr adroddiad gyda’r gorchymyn 
presennol ynghlwm yn Atodiad 1, map yn dangos yr ardaloedd estynedig yn Atodiad 2 
a’r gorchymyn cyfredol yn ymwneud â rheoli cŵn ynghlwm yn Atodiad 3. 
 
Croesawodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau’r adroddiad a chredai y byddai gan lawer 
o drigolion, yn enwedig yn ei ward ef, ddiddordeb mawr yn yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus 
oherwydd nifer o faterion oedd wedi codi yn ystod y pandemig. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd 
fod Gorchmynion Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus yn arf defnyddiol wrth fynd i'r 
afael ag ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol a'i bod yn bwysig eu hadolygu er mwyn sicrhau 
bod unrhyw newidiadau oedd yn cael eu gwneud yn adlewyrchu anghenion y meysydd 
lle caent eu gweithredu.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: (1) Bod y Cabinet wedi cymeradwyo ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus i 

gymeradwyo’r estyniad arfaethedig i’r Gorchymyn Diogelu 
Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus fel yr amlinellir ym mharagraff 4.3 o’r 
adroddiad hwn, yn benodol:  

 

 Ymestyn y GDMAC presennol sy'n ymwneud â rheoli alcohol yng Nghaerau, 
Pencoed, Porthcawl, Maesteg a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar yr un telerau yn union.  

 Ymestyn yr ardal a gwmpesir gan GDMAC presennol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr sy'n 
ymwneud â rheoli alcohol i gynnwys yr ardal a elwir yn ardal chwarae, Heol 
Quarella, Wildmill, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

 Ymestyn y GDMAC presennol sy'n cyfyngu mynediad rhwng Stryd Talbot a 
Phlasnewydd ar yr un telerau yn union. 

 Ymestyn y GDMAC presennol ynghylch rheoli cŵn yn Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar 
yr un telerau yn union.  

 
(2) Nododd y Cabinet hefyd, yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad, y byddai 

adroddiad pellach yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r cabinet am 
benderfyniad ynghylch ymestyn ac amrywio'r Gorchymyn 
Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus.  

 

Page 12



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

11 

 
773. PROSIECT RHANBARTHOL CONNECT ENGAGE LISTEN TRANSFORM (CELT) 

 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau adroddiad oedd yn gofyn am 
ganiatâd i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (CBSP) ymrwymo i Gytundeb 
Perthynas rhanbarthol yn ymwneud ag ariannu a chyflawni Prosiect Connect Engage 
Listen Transform (CELT), a ariennir drwy Gronfa Adnewyddu Cymunedol Llywodraeth y 
DU (CRF) gydag amrywiol Awdurdodau Lleol yng Nghymru. 
 
Eglurodd fod dod â Chronfa Gymdeithasol Ewrop (ESF) i ben yn ystod 2022 a 2023 
wedi creu angen i gael cyllid newydd yn enwedig yr hyn oedd yn canolbwyntio ar 
gyflogadwyedd. Roedd y 10 Awdurdod Lleol sy’n ffurfio Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd 
(CCR) wedi bod yn gweithio fel Grŵp Clwstwr Awdurdodau Lleol i drafod cyfleoedd 
ariannu newydd a allai ddisodli cyllid cyflogadwyedd ESF. 
 
Dywedodd fod Llywodraeth y DU wedi creu cronfa newydd o’r enw y Gronfa Adnewyddu 
Cymunedol (CRF) a thrwy gydweithio â’i gilydd fod yr holl awdurdodau lleol sy’n ffurfio’r 
CCR wedi datblygu prosiect CELT a gyflwynwyd gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Torfaen 
(CBST) ar ran Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd i Lywodraeth y DU ar y 18fed o Fehefin 
2021. Gofynnodd elfen CBSP o’r prosiect am £274,817 gan y CRF yn seiliedig ar 
ganlyniadau gweithio gyda 140 o gleientiaid a chael 26 i mewn i gyflogaeth yn ardal 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Roedd cefndir pellach yn adran 3 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod CBST wedi derbyn cadarnhad 
gan Lywodraeth y DU ar y 4ydd o Dachwedd 2021 fod cais CELT wedi cael ei 
gymeradwyo’n llwyddiannus. Ar yr adeg pan gyfunodd CBST gais y CCR, cyflwynwyd 
canlyniadau gwahanol yn erbyn cais CBSP am gyllid. Mae set newydd o dargedau a 
drafodwyd gwahanol i'r rhai a nodwyd yn 3.4 wedi'u cytuno a byddant yn cael eu 
hadlewyrchu yn y Cytundeb Perthynas. Roedd manylion hyn yn Nhabl 1 yr adroddiad. 
 
Cyfeiriodd at yr angen am Grŵp Cyflawni Gweithredol, oedd angen cynrychiolydd o bob 
Awdurdod Lleol. Cynigiwyd enwebu Rheolwr Cyflogadwyedd a Menter i gynrychioli CBS 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar Fwrdd Rheoli Strategol CELT a bod Arweinydd Tîm 
Cyflogadwyedd yn cael ei enwebu i gynrychioli CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar Grŵp 
Cyflawni Gweithredol CELT.  
 
Tynnodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau sylw at y goblygiadau ariannol a 
dywedodd fod prosiect CELT yn cael ei ariannu'n llawn gan Lywodraeth y DU heb 
unrhyw ofyniad gan CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr am arian cyfatebol. Bydd y Cytundeb 
Perthynas yn nodi manylion cyllid y prosiect a ddyrannwyd i CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
(£274,817). 
 
Soniodd yr Arweinydd fod nifer o fentrau ar waith eisoes; fodd bynnag, roedd pob un 
ohonynt drwy'r rhaglen gyflogadwyedd. Gofynnodd a oedd dim risg o ddyblygu na'r 
tebygolrwydd y byddai pobl yn syrthio drwy unrhyw fylchau. Cadarnhaodd Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod hwn ar wahân; er ei fod yn rhan o'r adran 
gyflogadwyedd ei fod yn gynllun oedd yn cyd-fynd â'r gwaith a wnaed eisoes. 
Ychwanegodd y gallai fod yn fwy ystyrlon i bobl oedd eisoes yn y cynlluniau presennol.  
 
Croesawodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau’r adroddiad ac roedd yn braf gweld y 
cynllun yn cael ei ariannu’n llawn gan Lywodraeth y DU. Ychwanegodd ei fod wedi dod 
ar adeg pan oedd angen mawr amdano oherwydd effeithiau'r Pandemig ar gyflogaeth 
pobl a'r anawsterau o ran cael gwaith newydd ac felly bod y cynlluniau hyn wedi bod o 
fudd i unigolion a’u teuluoedd hefyd. 
 

Page 13



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

12 

Eiliwyd y sylwadau hyn gan Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio ac ychwanegodd 
fod y tîm wedi dod yn bell dros y blynyddoedd ac y byddai uno'r gwasanaethau hyn yn 
gymorth arbennig i bobl iau sydd angen y cymorth ychwanegol i gael i mewn i waith 
ystyrlon.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 Yn nodi’r cynnydd mewn datblygu'r prosiect CELT fel rhan o'r ffordd o weithio yn 
y dyfodol o ran darparu cymorth cyflogadwyedd yn Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  

 Yn dirprwyo awdurdod i Gyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau, mewn 
ymgynghoriad â’r Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol, 
Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol a’r Prif Swyddog – Cyllid, Perfformiad a 
Newid i drafod ac ymrwymo i Gytundeb Perthynas CELT, ac unrhyw newidiadau 
dilynol iddo fel y cytunwyd ac ymrwymo i unrhyw weithredoedd a dogfennau 
pellach a oedd yn atodol i'r Cytundeb Perthynas. 

 Yn cytuno y byddai'r Rheolwr Cyflogadwyedd a Menter yn cynrychioli CBS Pen-
y-bont ar Ogwr ar Fwrdd Rheoli Strategol CELT ac y byddai'r Arweinydd Tîm 
Cyflogadwyedd yn cynrychioli CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar Grŵp Cyflawni 
Gweithredol CELT.  

 
774. CYNLLUN YNNI ARDAL LEOL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR 

 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau adroddiad oedd yn gofyn am 
gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i adnewyddu Cynllun Ynni Ardal Leol (CYAL) Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr.  
 
Esboniodd fod CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi cael ei ddewis yn 2014 fel un o'r tair ardal 
arddangos ar gyfer Rhaglen System Glyfar a Gwres (SSH) Llywodraeth y DU. 
Rhoddodd y Cabinet awdurdod i CBSP gyfranogi yn y Rhaglen SSH mewn adroddiad a 
gyflwynwyd ar 3 Chwefror 2015. Cynlluniwyd y rhaglen i greu offer arloesol a fyddai’n ei 
gwneud yn bosibl datgarboneiddio gwres ar draws y DU yn unol â thargedau lleihau 
carbon 2050. 
 
Dywedodd mai un o'r arfau a grëwyd o fewn y Rhaglen System Glyfar a Gwres oedd 
Cynlluniau Ynni Ardal Leol (CYAL). Ni fabwysiadodd CYAL ddull traddodiadol o 
ddatblygu strategaeth gan nad oedd yn cynnig yn glir beth, pryd a sut y byddai angen i 
weithgareddau ddigwydd er mwyn cyrraedd targedau datgarboneiddio 2050. Yn hytrach, 
cynigiodd y CYAL lwybr tuag at gyflawni'r targedau hynny. Roedd cefndir pellach ar 
CYAL yn adran 3 yr adroddiad. 
 
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau, yn dilyn penderfyniad y Cabinet ym 
mis Chwefror 2019, fod Llywodraeth y DU wedi symud targedau lleihau carbon y DU i 
ffwrdd oddi wrth ostyngiad o 80% erbyn 2050 i un o Sero Net erbyn 2050. Seiliwyd 
CYAL Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar gyrraedd y gostyngiad targed o 80%. Yn dilyn y newid yn 
nhargedau Llywodraeth y DU ar gyfer lleihau carbon, bu CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
ystyried ei sefyllfa mewn perthynas â’i CYAL a daeth i’r casgliad bod angen 
adnewyddu’r cynllun er mwyn ei gadw’n berthnasol. Wrth adnewyddu’r cynllun, 
ystyriwyd targed Sero Net Llywodraeth y DU erbyn 2050, rhoi’r gorau i werthu cerbydau 
tanwydd ffosil yn raddol erbyn 2030 a’r rôl y gallai hydrogen ei chwarae mewn sicrhau 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr Sero Net. Roedd rhagor o wybodaeth yn adran 4 yr adroddiad. 
 
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod dwy senario wedi cael eu rhoi 
gerbron gyda golwg ar rôl hydrogen a'i effaith ar Ben-y-bont ar Ogwr. Roedd Ffigur 2 a 3 
yn dangos Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn defnyddio hydrogen a heb ei ddefnyddio. Roedd y 
CYAL llawn wedi'i adnewyddu yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad. 
 

Page 14



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

13 

Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod tîm Ynni CBSP wedi bod yn 
gweithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru yn ogystal â chysylltu â Llywodraeth Japan ar brosiect 
ar gyfer ynni hydrogen. Esboniodd fod llywodraeth y DU yn treialu defnyddio hydrogen 
fel math o bŵer ar gyfer cludiant. Roedd hyn yn rhywbeth yr oedd ar CBS Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr eisiau ei ystyried hefyd fel llwybr datgarboneiddio yn y dyfodol. Amlinellodd y 
goblygiadau ariannol fel y nodir yn adran 8 yr adroddiad. 
 
Eglurodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau, er nad oedd llawer o fanylion yn cael eu 
dangos ar gyfer y cyfnod 2020-30, nad oedd yn hysbys pa dechnolegau newydd fyddai’n 
dod i fod ac yn disodli’r hyn oedd yn cael ei ystyried yn dechnolegau newydd heddiw, ac 
felly roedd yn bwysig manteisio ar y cyfleoedd hynny oedd o'n blaenau a gwneud 
newidiadau lle gellid eu gwneud. 
 
Ategodd yr Arweinydd y sylwadau hyn a braf oedd gweld ein bod ar flaen y gad yn yr 
ymateb i’r argyfwng hinsawdd o ran lleihau ynni, oedd yn amlwg gyda’r rôl y gellid ei 
chyflawni gyda Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth Japan. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo Cynllun Ynni newydd Ardal Leol 

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
 

775. AELODAETH 100 Y DU 
 
Cyflwynodd  Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau adroddiad oedd yn rhoi crynodeb 
byr o 100 y DU, yr hyn y gallai aelodaeth ei olygu i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr (CBSP) a chynnig bod y Cyngor yn ceisio sicrhau aelodaeth. 
 
Esboniodd fod 100 y DU yn cael ei ddisgrifio fel fforwm ar gyfer “yr arweinwyr lleol 
mwyaf uchelgeisiol ar draws y DU” i fynd i’r afael â’r argyfwng hinsawdd. Roedd yn 
gwmni preifat cyfyngedig trwy warant heb unrhyw gyfalaf cyfranddaliadau. Maent yn 
gweithio gyda’r aelodau mwyaf uchelgeisiol – Clwb Arweinwyr Lleol Net Sero – sy’n 
gwneud popeth o fewn eu gallu i gael eu cymunedau i Net Sero cyn gynted â phosibl, ac 
erbyn 2045 fan bellaf. Mae’n cyfrif ymhlith ei aelodaeth tua 60 o awdurdodau lleol, gan 
gynnwys Cyngor Dinas Birmingham, Cyngor Caerdydd, Dinas Caeredin, Cyngor Dinas 
Glasgow, Cyngor Dinas Bryste, a Chyngor Cernyw. Ychwanegodd fod llawer o 
fanteision wedi'u cynnwys yn yr aelodaeth a restrwyd yn 3.7 yr adroddiad.  
 
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau y byddai’n rhaid i CBS Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr lofnodi a mabwysiadu'r addewid sero net er mwyn dod yn aelod. Mae’r addewid 
sero net yn cynnwys y 3 ymrwymiad a ganlyn:  
 

 Bod wedi gosod targedau Sero Net uchelgeisiol sef 2030 ar gyfer allyriadau tŷ 
gwydr ar gyfer gweithrediadau cynghorau a 2045 fan bellaf ar gyfer allyriadau 
ardal gyfan (mae eithriad i hyn ar gyfer siroedd ac awdurdodau cyfun). 

 Adrodd ar allyriadau carbon yn flynyddol ar gyfer cwmpas 1 a chwmpas 2, ar 
gyfer allyriadau cynghorau ac allyriadau ardal gyfan.  

 Ymrwymo i gyfyngu ar y defnydd o wrthbwyso ac, os caiff ei ddefnyddio, i fod 
mor lleol â phosibl. 

 
Mae'r tabl yn adran 4 yr adroddiad yn nodi statws presennol CBSP mewn perthynas â'r 
addewid aelodaeth a'i ymrwymiadau gan gynnwys yr heriau. 
 
Roedd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau yn credu bod hyn yn atgyfnerthiad cadarnhaol 
i gynlluniau datgarboneiddio CBSP ac yn ein gosod ar binacl y CCRCD o ran rhannu 
gwybodaeth ac adnoddau gwerthfawr.  
 

Page 15



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

14 

Adleisiodd yr Arweinydd y sylwadau hyn a chytunodd ei fod yn caniatáu i CBS Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr rannu arferion gorau a dysgu’n uniongyrchol am y technolegau newydd 
oedd yn cael eu datblygu a’u gweithredu a chaniatáu i CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ennill tir 
pellach yn yr ymgyrch i ddatgarboneiddio Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 Yn cymeradwyo bod y Cyngor yn dod yn aelod o 100 y DU; 
 

 Yn cymeradwyo bod yr Arweinydd yn ymateb i’r gwahoddiad swyddogol a 
dderbyniwyd ar y 13eg o Ebrill 2021 drwy e-bost yn cadarnhau aelodaeth y 
Cyngor ac, fel yr argymhellwyd gan 100 y DU, yn llofnodi’r addewid ac yna 
cymryd rhan yn y trefniadau cyhoeddusrwydd yn dilyn hyn.    
 

776. GWEITHREDU CRONFA FUSNES RHAGLEN TRAWSNEWID TREFI (TT) 2021-2022 
 
Cyflwynodd  Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau adroddiad oedd yn gofyn am 
gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i ymrwymo i Gytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth (CLG) gyda 
Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf fel yr awdurdod arweiniol ar gyfer 
Awdurdodau Lleol De-ddwyrain Cymru i symud y rhaglen Trawsnewid Trefi (TT) yn ei 
blaen: Cronfa Fusnes o fewn 3 Canol Tref y Fwrdeistref Sirol, sef Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, 
Maesteg a Phorthcawl. 
 
Esboniodd fod adroddiad Cabinet Medi 2021 yn rhoi trosolwg ar lwyddiant y rhaglen TRI 
/ TT hyd yma a gofynnodd am gymeradwyaeth i ymestyn y rhaglen hyd fis Mawrth 2022. 
Yn dilyn cymeradwyo'r argymhellion a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad hwnnw, mae cynnydd 
wedi bod yn mynd ymlaen i ddwyn amrywiaeth o brosiectau i ffrwyth. Ychwanegodd fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi darparu grant o £1,166,000 i'w rannu rhwng 10 Awdurdod Lleol 
y De-ddwyrain. 
 
Darparodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fanylion cynlluniau nodedig hyd 
yma oedd yn cynnwys:  
 

 Family Value - derbyniodd 38-40 Stryd Commercial ym Maesteg £250,000 i ddod 
ag ef yn ôl i ddefnydd ar gyfer manwerthu ar y llawr gwaelod a phreswylio 
uwchben. 

 

 New Look - 6 i 7 Stryd Talbot wedi derbyn £250,000 ar gyfer ehangu a gwella 
amodau. 

 

 Derbyniodd Zia Nina – 28 Dunraven Place £250,000 ar gyfer gwaith adnewyddu. 
 
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Rhondda Cynon Taf (RhCT) yn gweithredu fel y corff arweiniol ar gyfer rhanbarth y De-
ddwyrain ac y bydd yn adrodd i Lywodraeth Cymru a Bwrdd Adfywio Rhanbarthol De-
ddwyrain Cymru, fydd yn cynnwys Bwrdd Adfywio Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. Mae 
RhCT yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a'r awdurdodau lleol eraill sy'n 
rhan o ranbarth y De-ddwyrain ymrwymo i Gytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth gyda RhCT i 
hwyluso tynnu'r arian grant i lawr a sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth â thelerau ac amodau cyllid 
grant LlC.  
 
Tynnodd sylw'r Cabinet at y risgiau yr oedd angen bod yn ymwybodol ohonynt, sef nad 
oedd swm penodol wedi'i ddyrannu i bob Awdurdod Lleol yn y De-ddwyrain. O'r herwydd 
ni fyddai prosiectau'n cael eu dyfarnu ond pan fyddent yn barod i fynd ac os oedd cyllid 
ar gael. Mae angen monitro cadarn gan swyddogion CBSP a RhCT. 

Page 16



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

15 

 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd ei bod yn braf gweld y cynnydd sy'n cael ei wneud i nifer o 
adeiladau ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr oedd yn adeiladau tirnod oedd o fudd i lawer o'r 
trigolion. Ychwanegodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau, o fis Mawrth 2022 
ymlaen, fod 19 o geisiadau wedi cael eu cyflwyno eisoes ar gyfer y gronfa sy’n dangos 
pa mor boblogaidd a llwyddiannus y bu’r cynllun o ran gwella ardaloedd ledled Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr, Maesteg a Phorthcawl. 
 
Ategodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio y sylwadau a dywedodd ei bod yn 
gadarnhaol gweld cymaint o sefydliadau manwerthu yn defnyddio cyllid ar gyfer 
gwelliannau gan fod llawer o'r adeiladau ledled Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn cymryd amser i'w 
gwella oherwydd eu natur sensitif.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet: 
 

 yn dirprwyo awdurdod i Gyfarwyddwr y Cymunedau, mewn ymgynghoriad â’r Prif 
Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid a’r Prif Swyddog - Cyfreithiol, AD a 
Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddiol, i: 

 

 negodi a llunio cytundeb lefel gwasanaeth gyda Rhondda Cynon Taf; a 
 

 chymeradwyo unrhyw estyniad neu ddiwygiad i’r cytundeb lefel gwasanaeth ac 
ymrwymo i unrhyw weithredoedd a dogfennau pellach a oedd yn ategol i 
gytundeb lefel gwasanaeth.  
 

777. ADNEWYDDU PRYDLES TŶ CLWB A PHAFILIWN CLWB CRICED PEN-Y-BONT AR 
OGWR  YNG NGHAEAU TRECELYN, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR YN UNOL AG ADRAN 
123(2A) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972 
 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau adroddiad oedd i ystyried 
cynnwys darn bach o dir ychwanegol, yn cynnwys y rhwydi criced presennol, y storfa a 
darn bach o dir y tu ôl i'r pafiliwn yng Nghaeau Trecelyn, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, fel rhan o'r 
cynllun adnewyddu prydles Tŷ Clwb a Phafiliwn Clwb Criced Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i 
Ymddiriedolwyr Clwb Criced Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 
 
Eglurodd fod Clwb Criced Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (CCTP) ar hyn o bryd yn meddiannu 
eu Tŷ Clwb a'u Pafiliwn yn rhinwedd prydles 21 mlynedd a ddechreuodd ar 1 Medi 1998 
am rent hedyn pupur. Roedd y tir oedd wedi’i gynnwys yn y brydles hon wedi’i ddangos 
ag ymyl goch ar y cynllun oedd ynghlwm yn Atodiad A. 
 
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau fod y brydles bresennol yn dod i 
ben ar 31 Awst 2019 a bod CCTP yn dal yr awenau ar hyn o bryd o dan yr un telerau â'r 
brydles hon sydd wedi dod i ben.  O dan delerau'r brydles, CCTP oedd yn gyfrifol am 
adeiladu'r Tŷ Clwb a'r Pafiliwn. Ariannwyd y datblygiad hwn yn rhannol gan grant 
Sportlot oedd yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r cyfleusterau newid fod ar gael i glybiau 
chwaraeon eraill yn ystod misoedd y gaeaf at ddefnydd chwaraeon gaeaf.  
 
Dechreuodd trafodaethau cychwynnol ar gyfer caniatáu’r brydles adnewyddu beth 
amser yn ôl a chawsant eu cwblhau ddiwedd 2019. Yn ystod y trafodaethau hyn 
gofynnodd CCTP am i'r tir y mae eu rhwydi ymarfer criced wedi'u lleoli arno a darn bach 
o dir ychwanegol at ddibenion storio y tu ôl i'r pafiliwn gael eu cynnwys yn y brydles 
adnewyddu. Mae cynnwys y tir ychwanegol hwn yn y brydles adnewyddu yn rhoi cyfle i'r 
Cyngor unioni'r sefyllfa ac mae’n cynyddu cyfanswm arwynebedd y tir i 0.2789 erw 
(1,128 metr sgwâr). Dangosir hwn ag ymyl goch ar y cynllun sydd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 
B. Roedd cefndir pellach yn rhan 3 yr adroddiad. 
 

Page 17



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

16 

Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau y cytunwyd ar delerau ag 
Ymddiriedolwyr CCTP a bod hysbysiad pwerau dirprwyedig CMMPS-20-014 (dyddiedig 
1 Ionawr 2020) wedi awdurdodi adnewyddu prydles Tŷ Clwb a Phafiliwn Clwb Criced 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yng Nghaeau Trecelyn, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i CCTP. 
 
Dywedodd y byddai’r Cabinet yn gwybod y cynigir datblygu strategaeth unigol ar gyfer 
rheoli safle ehangach Caeau Trecelyn yn y dyfodol. Mae hwn yn un o'r safleoedd y 
mae'r Cyngor wedi'i nodi sy'n cael ei ddefnyddio'n helaeth fel parc cyhoeddus gan 
aelodau'r cyhoedd yn ogystal â darparu cyfleusterau chwaraeon ffurfiol (pafiliynau a 
meysydd chwarae). O ganlyniad, oherwydd maint y safleoedd, defnydd y cyhoedd, nifer 
y clybiau dan sylw, a/neu’r angen am welliant / datblygiad, mae’r Cyngor wedi 
penderfynu y dylid ystyried dewisiadau eraill yn ychwanegol at y Trosglwyddiad Ased 
Cymunedol arferol i glybiau chwaraeon, gyda strategaethau unigol yn cael eu datblygu 
ar gyfer pob safle yn dilyn gwerthuso’r dewisiadau.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau am eglurhad ar y trefniadau o gwmpas y 
brydles newydd a bod yr amodau yr un fath, dim ond bod tir ychwanegol wedi ei 
gynnwys. Cadarnhaodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cymunedau hyn. 
 
Credai Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio fod Caeau Trecelyn yn ased gwerthfawr 
i dref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a bod hynny’n cynnwys y clwb criced a’i bod yn bwysig bod y 
bartneriaeth gyda hwy yn llwyddiannus ac yn barhaus.  
 
Soniodd yr Arweinydd am y broses Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (CAT) a’i bod yn 
amlwg y llwyddiant oedd yn bosibl drwy’r broses hon, fel y gwelwyd gyda Chlwb Criced 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet, ar ôl ystyried yr Adroddiad a’r diffyg 

gwrthwynebiadau dilys a dderbyniwyd mewn ymateb i’r 
Hysbysiadau a gyhoeddwyd yn unol ag Adran 123(2A) o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972, yn awdurdodi bod y man agored cyhoeddus 
bychan ychwanegol, sy’n cynnwys y tir a ddefnyddir ar gyfer y 
rhwydi criced a'r darn bach o dir y tu ôl i Bafiliwn presennol y Clwb 
Criced, yn cael ei gynnwys yn y brydles adnewyddu i 
Ymddiriedolwyr Clwb Criced Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  

 
778. PENODI LLYWODRAETHWYR AWDURDOD LLEOL 

 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd adroddiad oedd 
yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i benodi llywodraethwyr awdurdod lleol i gyrff 
llywodraethu’r ysgolion a restrwyd ym mharagraffau 4.1 a 4.2. 
 
Eglurodd, ar gyfer yr 20 o leoedd gwag i lywodraethwyr awdurdod lleol yn yr 16 ysgol yn 
y tabl yn adran 4 yr adroddiad, fod pob ymgeisydd yn bodloni'r meini prawf cymeradwy 
ar gyfer ei benodi’n llywodraethwr awdurdod lleol ac nad oedd cystadleuaeth am y 
lleoedd gwag. Argymhellwyd bod yr holl ymgeiswyr a restrwyd yn cael eu penodi. 
 
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd fod Mr Kendal 
yn rhiant lywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gynradd Cefn Cribwr ond wedi gwneud cais i fod yn 
llywodraethwr awdurdod lleol yn yr un ysgol. Ni allai ddal y ddwy swydd ac felly roedd 
cael ei gymeradwyo i fod yn llywodraethwr awdurdod lleol yn amodol ar yr ymgeisydd yn 
ymddiswyddo o’i le presennol fel rhiant-lywodraethwr yn yr ysgol ac na fyddai’r penodiad 
fel llywodraethwr awdurdod lleol yn dod i rym nes bod yr ymddiswyddiad wedi cael ei 
dderbyn a’i gydnabod yn ffurfiol gan gadeirydd corff llywodraethu’r ysgol a’r awdurdod 
lleol. 
 

Page 18



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

17 

Diolchodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol i’r holl ymgeiswyr am 
roi eu henwau ymlaen. Roedd yn rôl brysur a heriol ond yn un bwysig. Dywedodd, os 
oedd gan unrhyw un arall ddiddordeb mewn gwneud cais am rôl, fod 47 o leoedd gwag 
ar gael o hyd.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo’r penodiadau y manylwyd arnynt ym 

mharagraffau 4.1 a 4.2 yr adroddiad.  
 

779. CYNLLUN STRATEGOL Y GYMRAEG MEWN ADDYSG 
 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd adroddiad oedd 
i roi gwybod i'r Cabinet am ganlyniad yr ymgynghoriad â rhanddeiliaid ynghylch Cynllun 
Strategol drafft y Gymraeg mewn Addysg (CSGA). 
 
Esboniodd fod y Cabinet wedi cymeradwyo Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg 
Awdurdod Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr am y tro cyntaf ym mis Mawrth 2014 ac wedi hynny 
ei fod wedi cael ei gymeradwyo gan Adran Addysg a Sgiliau Llywodraeth Cymru ym mis 
Mehefin 2014. Cafodd y Cynllun ei adolygu a’i ddiweddaru’n flynyddol cyn ceisio 
cymeradwyaeth gan Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Dywedodd y cynhaliwyd ymarfer ymgynghori ar y CSGA drafft gyda rhanddeiliaid rhwng 
27 Medi a 19 Rhagfyr 2021. Roedd manylion hyn yn y ddolen a ddarparwyd yn 4.1 yr 
adroddiad. Roedd canlyniad yr ymgynghoriad wedi'i ddadansoddi ac ysgrifennwyd yr 
adroddiad ar yr ymgynghoriad (Atodiad 1). Roedd yr awdurdod lleol wedi ystyried yr 
ymatebion a ddaeth i law yn ystod cyfnod yr ymgynghoriad ac wedi diwygio'r CSGA 
drafft yn unol â hynny (Atodiad 2). Byddai’r Cynllun deng mlynedd cyntaf yn dechrau ar 
1 Medi 2022 ac yn dod i ben ar 31 Awst 2032. Roedd rhagor o fanylion yn adran 4 yr 
adroddiad. 
 
Diolchodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio i bawb a gymerodd ran yn yr 
ymgynghoriad a dywedodd fod yr holl sylwadau wedi cael eu nodi a'u hystyried a lle'n 
bosibl eu hymgorffori yn y cynigion ac edrychai ymlaen at yr ymateb gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru. Ategodd yr Arweinydd y sylwadau hyn ac roedd yn ddiolchgar am yr 
ymgysylltiad llawn a gawsom gan y gymuned Gymraeg ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet:  
 

 yn nodi canlyniad yr ymgynghoriad â phartïon â diddordeb fel y disgrifiwyd yn 
Adroddiad yr Ymgynghoriad sydd ynghlwm; ac 

 

 yn cymeradwyo’r newidiadau i’r WESP drafft.  
 

780. RHAGLEN MODERNEIDDIO YSGOLION - GOGLEDD-DDWYRAIN PEN-Y-BONT AR 
OGWR 
 
Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd adroddiad oedd 
yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i gychwyn proses ymgynghori statudol i wneud newid 
rheoledig er mwyn ehangu Ysgol Gymraeg (YG) Bro Ogwr yn ysgol 2.5 dosbarth 
mynediad (DM), a meithrinfa gyda’r hyn sy’n cyfateb i 90 lle llawn amser, ynghyd â 
dosbarth ag 8 lle ar gyfer arsylwi ac asesu, ar dir oddi ar Ffordd Cadfan. Byddai’r cynnig 
yn dod i rym o ddechrau tymor yr hydref 2025. 
 
Eglurodd y cafwyd cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i fwrw ymlaen ag astudiaeth ddichonoldeb 
ar y safle ym Mryn Bracla o ran y dewis addysg a ffefrir ar gyfer cynllun Gogledd 
Ddwyrain Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Ar ôl ystyried y cymhlethdodau technegol a'r costau 
posibl oedd yn gysylltiedig â datblygu'r ysgol ym Mryn Bracla, penderfynodd y Cabinet 

Page 19



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

18 

adael y safle hwnnw allan o unrhyw ystyriaeth yn y dyfodol mewn perthynas ag YG Bro 
Ogwr a rhoddwyd caniatâd i swyddogion ystyried dewisiadau eraill ar gyfer yr ysgol 
newydd.  
 
Ychwanegodd fod y Cabinet, ym mis Tachwedd 2021, wedi derbyn adroddiad ar y cyd 
gan y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd a Chyfarwyddwr y Cymunedau, 
oedd yn manylu ar ganlyniad astudiaeth ddichonoldeb mewn perthynas â’r tir oddi ar 
Ffordd Cadfan ac wedi cadarnhau addasrwydd y safle i’w ddatblygu. Yn yr un cyfarfod 
cafwyd cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i fwrw ymlaen â chaffael y safle. Roedd cefndir 
pellach yn adran 3 yr adroddiad.  
 
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd, er mwyn 
ehangu Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr (h.y. 2.5 DM arfaethedig, 90 o leoedd meithrin 
cyfwerth ag amser llawn ynghyd â dosbarth arsylwi ac asesu ag 8 lle), fod y Cod 
Trefniadaeth Ysgolion yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol cynnal ymgynghoriad gyda chorff 
llywodraethu'r ysgol, staff, rhieni, disgyblion a phartïon â diddordeb. Dyma’r cam cyntaf 
yn y broses statudol.  Os caiff ei chwblhau, rhagwelir ar hyn o bryd y daw’r cynnig hwn i 
rym ar ddechrau tymor yr hydref 2025. Bydd y ddogfen ymgynghori’n nodi goblygiadau'r 
cynnig. Yn dilyn y cyfnod hwn o ymgynghori, byddai adroddiad pellach ar ganlyniad yr 
ymgynghoriad yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet iddo gael ystyried canlyniad y broses 
honno. Yna byddai angen i'r Cabinet benderfynu a ddylid awdurdodi cyhoeddi hysbysiad 
statudol. Pe câi hysbysiad o'r fath ei gyhoeddi, byddai'n gwahodd gwrthwynebiadau 
ffurfiol yn ystod y cyfnod statudol o 28 diwrnod. Roedd rhagor o wybodaeth yn adran 4 
yr adroddiad. 
 
Croesawodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio yr adroddiad a dywedodd ei fod 
yn uchelgais gan CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ond bod angen barn pobl ym Mhen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr drwy ymgynghoriad a bod hon yn rhan bwysig o symud hyn ymlaen. Credai ei bod 
yn bwysig cael ysgol yr 21ain ganrif gyfrwng Cymraeg a bod y lleoliad hwn yn ddewis 
addas i wasanaethu'r ardaloedd oedd ei hangen.  
 
Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd at hyn gan ddweud bod angen cynyddol yng ngogledd 
ddwyrain Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr am leoedd ychwanegol ac y byddai hyn yn ehangiad mawr 
ar nifer y lleoedd oedd ar gael. Roedd yn gobeithio y byddai pobl yn ymgysylltu’n llawn 
â’r ymgynghoriad er mwyn sicrhau bod barn trigolion yn cael ei chlywed.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Rhoddodd y Cabinet gymeradwyaeth i ddechrau proses ymgynghori 

statudol i wneud newid rheoledig er mwyn ehangu YG Bro Ogwr yn 
ysgol 2.5 DM, gyda meithrinfa’n cynnwys 90 lle cyfwerth ag amser 
llawn, ynghyd â dosbarth arsylwi ac asesu ag 8 lle, ar dir oddi ar 
Ffordd Cadfan. Byddai’r cynnig yn dod i rym o ddechrau tymor yr 
hydref 2025.  

 
781. ADRODDIAD GWYBODAETH I’W NODI 

 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol, AD a Pholisi 
Corfforaethol adroddiad oedd yn hysbysu'r Cabinet am yr Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth i'w 
nodi oedd wedi'u cyhoeddi ers ei gyfarfod arferol diwethaf. 
 
Dywedodd fod yr adroddiadau gwybodaeth a ganlyn wedi’u cyhoeddi ers cyfarfod 
diwethaf y Cabinet:-  
 
Rheoli'r Trysorlys - Adroddiad Chwarter 3, 2021-22 - 12 Ionawr 2022  
 
Deddf Rheoleiddio Pwerau Ymchwilio 2000 - 12 Ionawr 2022 
 

Page 20



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 18 IONAWR 2022 

 

19 

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cydnabod cyhoeddi'r dogfennau a restrwyd yn yr 
adroddiad.  

 
782. EITEMAU BRYS 

 
Dim  
 

783. GWAHARDD Y CYHOEDD 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:   O dan Adran 100A (4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y’i 

diwygiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at 
Wybodaeth) (Amrywiad) (Cymru) 2007, bod y cyhoedd yn cael eu 
gwahardd o’r cyfarfod tra byddai’r eitemau busnes canlynol yn 
cael eu hystyried am eu bod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth oedd wedi ei 
heithrio fel y’i diffiniwyd ym Mharagraff 12 o Ran 4 a/neu Baragraff 
21 o Ran 5 o Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf.  

 
                                  Yn  dilyn cymhwyso prawf lles y cyhoedd, penderfynwyd, yn unol 

â’r Ddeddf y cyfeiriwyd ati uchod, ystyried yr eitemau canlynol yn 
breifat, gyda’r cyhoedd wedi eu gwahardd o’r cyfarfod, gan yr 
ystyrid yn yr holl amgylchiadau yn ymwneud â’r eitemau, fod lles y 
cyhoedd mewn cynnal yr eithriad yn gorbwyso lles y cyhoedd 
mewn datgelu’r wybodaeth, am y byddai’r wybodaeth yn niweidiol 
i’r ymgeiswyr a grybwyllwyd felly.  

 
784. CYMERADWYO COFNODION A EITHRIWYD 

 
PENDERFYNWYD:   Cymeradwyo’r cofnodion oedd wedi eu heithrio yn y cyfarfod 

dyddiedig 14/12/2021 fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 17:18 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

 8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

DOMESTIC ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME, CAERAU WARD 2012 AND 2013 
 

1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to submit a business case to Welsh 

Government by 28 February 2022, to secure a provisional offer of funding towards 
carrying out essential remedial work required to properties in Caerau following the 
failure of wall insulation work installed in 2012/13, and to seek Cabinet support for a 
request to be made for a Council capital allocation to be approved and included as 
part of that business case submission, to ensure a comprehensive scheme  is 
developed to address all affected properties.  
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective/objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 
 

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 

steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all  resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Previous Cabinet reports on 17 November 2020 and 9 March 2021 have set out in 

detail the background to this matter.  In summary,  wall insulation work carried out at 

that time has since failed and is showing significant signs of water ingress and damp.   

Cabinet delegated authority to myself as Chief Executive to engage with relevant 

stakeholders involved in the programmes of work to install wall insulation in Caerau 

in 2012/13 and to explore options to address and remedy the failing work that had 

been identified.  Specifically, it was agreed that a further report to Cabinet would be 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



 

presented outlining the outcome of continued engagement with the likes of OFGEM 

the energy regulator, UK Government and in particular Welsh Government, when any 

solutions had been agreed. 

 

3.2 A total of 104 properties had wall insulation work carried out in Caerau at that time. 

The Council administered the funding for 25 of these properties using the Arbed 

scheme, through funding granted by Welsh Government. The other 79 properties had 

work completed using the UK Government sponsored community energy saving 

programme (CESP) and the Council had no involvement in the work.  Despite that, it 

has been this Council’s position that we should seek to find a comprehensive solution 

with the other stakeholders to address all of the failing wall insulation work, regardless 

of who funded and administered the original work. 

 

3.3 The process of engaging with each organistion has taken some time and has been 

challenging, but the Minister for Climate Change in Welsh Government wrote to the 

Council in January 2022, awarding funding in principle to this Council, not exceeding 

£2.65 million, over the financial years 2022/23 and 2023/24, to carry out the remedial 

work required to the eligible properties. The offer in principle is  subject to the Council 

submitting a detailed business case for approval by the deadline of 28 February  

2022.  The work required is likely to mean stripping off the existing cladding and  

installing new. The full details of the scheme are subject to the submission of the 

required business case and final approval by Welsh Government.  

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Welsh Government offer of funding in principle is predicated on an initial outline 

business case the Council submitted last year and on the basis that this Council will 
also make a financial contribution towards the overall scheme.  It is very difficult at 
this stage to accurately estimate the total cost of the full programme as there are 
various unknowns.  For example, the independent surveys of a sample of homes that 
the Council commissioned through ‘Nuvision’ in 2019 showed problems existed, to 
varying degrees, in each of the homes surveyed.  However, it will not be known 
whether all 104 homes require remedial action until further engagement and survey 
work is carried out in the community, and similarly it is likely that that not all 
householders will want to participate in the scheme to replace their existing cladding.  

 
4.2 However, it is also clear that, for a number of reasons, the cost of most capital 

schemes has increased significantly since ‘Nuvision’ provided an original estimate of 
£16,000-£20,000 per home to strip off and replace the existing cladding.  It is prudent 
therefore to work on the basis of a cost of up to £30,000 per home. The total cost 
therefore of carrying out the necessary work on all 104 homes, together with project 
management costs, quality assurance checks and contingency is likely to mean the 
total costs of a full programme are estimated to be £3.5 million. On that basis the 
Council will be asked to contribute funding of £855,000.  An earmarked reserve of 
this value has been set aside for this purpose. Discussions are ongoing between 
Welsh Government and UK Government officials and so it remains possible that UK 
Government ‘Eco’ scheme funding will be allocated to this programme of work in due 
course, which in turn will reduce the overall cost to each contributor.  

 

Page 24



 

4.3 The requirements  of the business case set out by Welsh Government are highlighted 
below:   
 
1. The Need / Strategic Case – to demonstrate the need for investment, and how 

the proposed work will align to the Welsh Government’s policy objectives, 

specifically on; 

 Poverty (including fuel poverty) 

 Climate change risk and adaptation 

 Air quality 

 Jobs and career opportunities 

 

2. Economic Case 

 The options considered, along with a clear recommendation 

 

3. Commercial Case 

 Proposed delivery agent and 

 procurement arrangements 

 

4. Financial Case 

 The level of funding requested from the Welsh Government 

 any other funding contributions and  

 the cost effectiveness of the design solution 

 

5. Management Case – the management arrangements for the remedial work 

including: 

 The management arrangements, 

 quality assurance arrangements e.g. product design, guarantees, spot 

chceks 

 risk assessment to yourselves and the Welsh Government and 

 realistic and achievable timescales. 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 As reported to Cabinet in November 2020 and March 2021, an initial Equality Impact 

Assessment has been carried out.  The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment 
is to ensure that the Council has understood the potential impacts of the proposal in 
terms of equality, so that it can ensure that it is making proportionate and rational 
decisions having due regard to its public sector equality duty.  The proposed scheme 
is intended to improve housing in a electoral ward with some of the most severe socio 
economic issues in Wales and will have a positive impact on  economic, social and 
health conditions for local residents  

 

 

 

Page 25



 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 provides the basis for driving 

a different kind of public service in Wales, with five ways of working to guide how the 
Council should work to deliver wellbeing outcomes for people.  The Council ‘must act 
in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs’.  Accordingly, 
before making any decision, Cabinet must take account of the following five ways of 
working: 

 
-  Involvement 
-  Long Term 
- Prevention 
-  Integration 
-  Collaboration 

 
Should Cabinet approve the recommendations in this report, the five ways of working 
will continue to be taken into consideration when the final scheme is approved and 
implemented. The proposed programme of work will impact positively on local 
residents’ well-being and ensure the original intentions of the energy efficiency 
schemes carried out in 2012/13 are realised, including better insulated homes and 
lower energy bills, which will help address fuel poverty issues. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The total funding should cover the costs of remedial work to all eligible households 

affected in Caerau and will cover costs of works, project management and quality 
assurance. 

 
8.2 The award in principle from Welsh Government allocates funding of £2.65 million to 

these works.  
 
8.3 The Council’s match funding contribution  can be met from an existing earmarked 

reserve.  
 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 Note the award in principle of funding of up to £2.65 million from Welsh Government 

to carry out essential remedial work required to properties in Caerau, following the 
failure of wall insulation work installed in 2012/13. 

 
9.2 Approve that the Council submits a detailed business case, as required in the offer 

of funding from Welsh Government, by 28 February 2022, to secure the funding and 
delegates authority to the Chief Executive and Chief Officer - Finance, Performance 
and Change for the submission of the business case and to accept any final offer. 

 
9.3 Approve that a sum of £855,000 is included as the Council’s estimated contribution 

towards a total programme of work costing £3.5 million, which will be included within 
the updated Capital Programme report to be recommended to Council on 9 February 
2022.    

 

Page 26



 

9.4 Approve implementation of the remedial scheme, including any procurement and 
ancillary arrangements and delegate authority to the Chief Executive to enter into the 
necessary arrangements, subject to receipt of the funding from Welsh Government 
and Council approval of the capital contribution. 

 
 
 

Mark Shephard 
Chief Executive 
January 2022 

 
Contact officer:  Mark Shephard 

 Chief Executive 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 643380 
 
Email:   mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend CF31 4WB 

 
 
Background documents:  
 
None 

Page 27

mailto:mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022-23 TO 2025-26 AND DRAFT BUDGET 
CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present Cabinet with the findings and 

recommendations of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC) in 
relation to: 
 
a) the report of the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP) in respect of the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) attached at Appendix A and Appendix 
B; 
 

b) the comments and recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 
relation to the draft MTFS including the proposed budget pressures and budget 
reduction proposals, as part of the budget consultation process attached as 
Appendix C. 

 
2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objective/objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015: 

 
1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy –. taking steps to make the 

county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 

steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 
 

3. Background 
 
3.1 In considering the challenges associated with continued budget reductions, Members 

recognised the need for a ‘whole Council’ response to be adopted in managing 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



 

 

anticipated cuts to services against a backdrop of increasing demand and the 
challenging financial outlook. 

 
3.2 It was therefore recommended in 2017, that a Budget Research and Evaluation Panel 

be established to engage Members on budget proposals as well as to enable 
members to feed in community intelligence gained from their representative role and 
to engage in shaping future service provision.   

 
3.3 The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the overall responsibility of 

scrutinising budget monitoring reports throughout the year.  As such, it was agreed 
at a meeting of Council in September 2017 that it would continue this role and appoint 
BREP members from within the COSC membership. 

 
3.4 The purpose of the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel was subsequently agreed 

as the following: 
 

• To achieve consensus on the direction of the budget over the life of the medium 
term financial strategy;   

 

• To achieve a detailed overview and assessment of the budget proposals where 
the expertise and knowledge of each Committee contributes to a Corporate 
understanding and appreciation of the draft budget proposals; 

 

• To assist the Council to develop a budget for the forthcoming year that aims to 
meet the needs of the communities of Bridgend County Borough; 

 

• To facilitate firmer understanding of the budget setting process and the draft 
proposals in order to assist the Committees in making informed comments, 
constructive challenge or recommendations to Cabinet as part of the budget 
consultation process. 

  
3.5 Members of Scrutiny Committees would be presented with the draft Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 and asked to consider the information 
contained in the report and determine whether they wish to make comments or 
recommendations for consolidation and inclusion in the report to Cabinet on the draft 
budget proposals as part of the budget consultation process.  

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the findings of the 

BREP and all four Overview and Scrutiny Committees on 1 February 2022 to 
determine whether the recommendations should be forwarded to Cabinet, as part of 
the budget consultation process. 

 
4.2 For ease of reference the Recommendations are split into the following separate 

appendices: 
 
Appendix A  -  BREP final report with findings and recommendations of the Medium  
     Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26.  
Appendix B -  BREP list of Recommendations from the final report. 
Appendix C   -  Comments and recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny  

Page 30



 

 

Committees on the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 
2025-26. 

 
4.3 The Committee accepted the recommendations and comments from both the BREP 

and the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and agreed to submit them to the 
Cabinet. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 This item relates to the role of Overview & Scrutiny Committees as consultees in 

respect of the budget setting process. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with 

5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for people. The 
following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve the well-being 
goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this report: 

 

• Long-term - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the  
budget setting process for both the short-term and in the long-
term. 

 

• Prevention - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the 
budget setting process by approving and shaping preventative 
measures provided by Directorates to generate savings. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives 
 

• Collaboration - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the     
budget setting process by approving and shaping collaboration 
and integrated working to generate savings. 
 

• Involvement -  Publication of the report ensures that the public and  
stakeholders can review the work that has been undertaken by 
Scrutiny members. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The report relates to the budget setting process and the financial implications 

associated with that. 
 
 

Page 31



 

 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 Cabinet is requested to consider the Recommendations of the Corporate Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, in response to the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-
23 to 2025-26 and the Draft Budget Consultation Process. 
 

 
2 February 2022 

 
 

Contact officers:  Meryl Lawrence 
    Senior Democratic Officer - Scrutiny 
 
    Lucy Beard  

 Scrutiny Officer 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 643515 / 643613 
 
Email:   scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
Postal address:  Democratic Services - Scrutiny 
    Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 
    Bridgend 
    CF31 4WB 

 
 
Background documents: None 
 
 

Page 32

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


  Appendix A
          

Report of the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel in respect of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 

 
1.1. The Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP) has considered the draft 

budget proposals for the year 2022-23.  
 

1.2. The Panel met on seven occasions and were supported by the Scrutiny Officer, 
Senior Democratic Officer – Scrutiny, Interim Chief Officer Finance, Performance 
and Change, Deputy Head of Finance and the Deputy Leader. 
 

1.3. At the first meeting of BREP in July 2021, the Interim Chief Officer, Finance, 
Performance and Change presented some principles around the role and 
operation of the BREP following discussions with Cabinet and Corporate 
Management Board, to facilitate a discussion regarding reviewing the role of 
BREP.  The Interim Chief Officer Finance, Performance and Change took 
Members through the suggestions, in terms of how BREP might revisit its 
purpose, its objectives and its workings for comment and for COSC to 
subsequently endorse. 
 

1.4. The Interim Chief Officer Finance, Performance and Change also set out the 
financial position, including the Revenue Budget Outturn 2020-21 and 
appendices, which provided an update on the Council’s revenue financial 
performance for the year ended 31 March 2021.  The 2020-21 financial year had 
been a unique and complex year in managing the financial position of the Council 
primarily as a result of the pandemic. Significant changes had occurred 
throughout the year as circumstances altered and services were supported in 
different ways to deliver outcomes in the best way possible.  

 
1.5. At the second meeting in August, BREP Members considered their Forward Work 

Programme and invited the Corporate Director Education & Family Support to the 
meetings in September and October, and Corporate Director Social Services & 
Wellbeing and the Corporate Director – Communities, to the meetings in October. 
 

1.6. The Consultation Engagement and Equalities Manager took Members briefly 
through the Shaping Bridgend’s Future consultation 2021 report, along with the 
timeline for the consultation. 

 
1.7. At the third meeting in September, BREP Members considered the Fees and 

Charges Policy and heard from the Corporate Director - Education and Family 
Support who provided an overview of the budget in relation to Home to School 
Transport and School budgets. In addition, the Corporate Director – Education 
and Family Support attended the reconvened meeting in November in respect of 
Nursery Education. 

 
1.8. The BREP recognised that a cut in the education budget would be unpalatable at 

the present time, particularly following the pandemic, but were concerned about 
schools that consistently underspend which provided a surplus balance and felt 
that governing bodies had a key role to play in terms of good financial 
management providing a consistent approach. 

 

Page 33



  Appendix A
          

Recommendation 1 
Cabinet to review how school budgets are being used and how does the 
local authority demonstrate value for money in how schools are funded, 
taking an evidenced base approach.  
 
Recommendation 2 
Cabinet to review Fees and Charges annually going forward.  
 

1.9. The BREP recognised the difficulties for those outside of Bridgend Town Centre, 
who would be required to travel in order to attend the local college, particularly 
those from low-income families and how those young people would maintain an 
education, although it was acknowledged that this was discretionary Post 16 
funding. The BREP recognised that the WG were exploring the option of a Post 
16 travel pass. 
 
Recommendation 3 
Cabinet to seek clarification from Welsh Government in relation to Post 16 
bus passes and who is paying for them, ensuring that any cut to Post 16 
Transport would not disadvantage those learning in more than one 
environment, due to the availability of courses.  
 

1.10. The BREP acknowledged there was a legal duty on the local authority to make 
sure the maintenance of nursery transport provision was safe and was able to 
accommodate the small number of young learners through the option of smaller 
vehicles however it was acknowledged that this was costly and ultimately nursery 
provision was non-statutory and there wasn’t a statutory requirement to provide 
the education, hence there was no requirement to provide the transport. 
 
Recommendation 4 
Cabinet to consider the cost of Nursery transportation given the small 
numbers of children using the facility and the high costs per pupil. 
 
Recommendation 5 
Cabinet to review the cost of nursery provision. 
 

1.11. The BREP accepted that the costs of providing the Additional Learning Needs 
(ALN) service, were not yet known and how this was going to impact on schools 
and the local authority, especially with a wider range of learners. This was not 
just an early years’ issue; this was going to impact on the local authority with the 
service providing pre-birth all the way up to 25. This has been a part of a 
considerable debate through the Association of Directors of Education in 
Wales (ADEW) with Welsh Government because it was felt that if the Bill was 
going to work going forward it had to be funded accordingly, although it was 
believed the nucleus of the Bill was a very positive one. 
 
Recommendation 6 
Cabinet lobbies Welsh Government, through the Welsh Local Government 
Association to ensure that additional legislation, in terms of the ALN bill, 
comes with the consequential funding. 

 

Page 34



  Appendix A
          

1.12. The BREP identified that a piece of work needed to be done on the catchment 
areas when the local authority was putting in new 21st Century Schools, 
particularly on new estates, to ensure young people were not getting transport as 
a consequence of old catchment areas, e.g., part of Brackla, still in the catchment 
for Coity, when there were already 2 schools in Brackla, although it was 
recognised that this long-term solution. 
 
Recommendation 7 
Cabinet reviews the School catchment areas to ensure that recent 
housing developments are taken into consideration.  

 
1.13. At the fourth meeting in October, BREP Members heard from the Corporate 

Director – Social Services & Wellbeing, and Officers, who provided an overview 
of the budget in relation to Commissioned Services v In-house. 
 

1.14. The BREP identified that due to the ageing population and the impact of Covid 
and long Covid, social care costs were increasing and there would be a potential 
budget pressure and proposed budget savings would have to be found in other 
ways, by looking more strategically across the whole Council and to explore what 
could be streamlined and still fulfil statutory duties.  
 
Recommendation 8 
BREP acknowledges that due to ageing population and the impact of 
Covid and long Covid, social care costs are increasing and there will be a 
potential budget pressure and so proposed budget savings will have to 
be found in other ways, by looking more strategically across the whole 
Council and to explore what can be streamlined and still fulfil statutory 
duties.  
 
Specifically, Cabinet is recommended to take a one-Council approach and 
look at areas of duplication of functions across the Council and scope for 
close integration to work smarter e.g., in back office administration, 
complaints, customer service, referrals and business support in Education 
and Social Services which was recommended last year.  
 

1.15. The BREP acknowledged that in terms of sustained investment, most parts of the 
budget benefited from significant short-term funding which presented difficulties 
in terms of contractual arrangements or making significant shifts in the market 
and doing that sustainably, especially if money was only received for one financial 
year or halfway through a financial year. The need for sustained investment in 
order to make significant changes a reality, was really important, given the impact 
on the workforce, the ability to retain and recruit, in the sector. 
 
Recommendation 9 
Cabinet is requested to put forward a motion to Welsh Government and 
Westminster to fund wholesale reform of the social care system with the 
strategic aim to fund social care fit for the future.  
 
 

Page 35



  Appendix A
          

1.16. The BREP heard from Social Services and Wellbeing in terms of the cost 
comparisons between commissioned adult social care services and services 
provided internally as a Council in respect of adult social care.  The BREP 
acknowledged the growth pressure on the increased costs for Commissioned 
Services, and wanted to see a more balanced approach, with the need for fair 
treatment for all staff in all care sectors.  Further BREP understood that WG was 
bringing in new legislation in relation to procurement in the next 12-18 months, 
which would put obligations on public sector employers to ensure that certain 
standards were met by commissioned employers.  

 
Recommendation 10 
Cabinet explores re-balancing the market between commissioned and in-
house services in the future and how best that suits the needs of the 
county borough of Bridgend whilst considering Ethical procurement of 
services as well. 
 

1.17. The BREP welcomed that the updated fees and charges policy would go to 
Cabinet and Directors and would come back with any fees and charges and what 
they intended to do with them for the MTFS for the next year. They would be 
expected to either put them up by inflation or explain why not, and there had to 
be a valid reason why they were not being put up, although legislation dictated 
many of the fees and charges, which were set by the Welsh Government or even 
Westminster. 
 
Recommendation 11 
Cabinet explores potential for increasing charges in Social Services.  
 

1.18. At the fourth meeting in October, BREP Members also heard from the Corporate 
Director – Communities who provided an overview which covered Strategic 
Context to the Directorate, Communities MTFS Position, Potential Savings 2021 
onwards and Service Area Budget Pressures. 
 

1.19. The BREP welcomed the removal of biodegradable food waste bags and 
acknowledged that the process meant the bags were removed separately from 
the process but felt that going back to plastic whilst acknowledging that this would 
be an efficiency saving, felt like a backward step to the way society was going 
towards 2030, and therefore acknowledged that there was a need to remove food 
waste bags completely.  
 
Recommendation 12 
Cabinet consider the removal of food waste bags completely. 
 

1.20. The BREP noted that one area that had been consulted on previously was in 
relation to closing the Bus Station but acknowledged that this was not palatable 
given the local authority was trying to encourage the use of public transport and 
delivering a new Metro Link in Porthcawl.  If the local authority was looking to 
have an integrated transport hub at the railway station, then perhaps it should 
explore having a transport hub there, which would integrate both bus and rail 
transport, linking the two together. 
 

Page 36



  Appendix A
          

Recommendation 13 
Cabinet explores the opportunity of merging Bridgend Bus Station with 
Bridgend Railway Station into a transport hub, fit for the County as a 
whole. 
 

1.21. Whilst Members were minded not to charge Blue Badge holders for parking it 
was felt that the authority could explore the option of charging for the processing 
and administration of blue badges, in relation to the issuing and the potential 
reissuing of blue badges, if they are lost. 
 
Recommendation 14 
Cabinet to explore the potential for charging in relation to the 
administration fee for the issuing and reissuing of Blue Badges. 
 

1.22. The BREP recognised that Covid-19 had changed the way people lived, worked, 
travelled and socialised. Many people have worked away from the office during 
lockdown and WG want to work with organisations to support a long-term shift to 
more people working remotely, which could mean the footprint of the Council 
could reduce to one major building, although it was recognised that this would be 
in the long term. 
 
Recommendation 15 
Cabinet explore the options with regards to the future of Ravens Court.  
 

1.23. The BREP recognised that some Town and Community Councils (TCCs) 
provided additional services, perhaps having their own gardeners, who removed 
weeds or providing grass cutting, which may also be sprayed or cut by the 
Council and was therefore a duplication of work. Although it was recognised that 
not all TCC’s would have the budget to provide these services, it was felt that a 
link was needed, in terms of a dedicated Officer to work with TCC’s, providing 
appropriate PR to gain support and to better understand what they do in each 
area and what they would be able to do. 
 
Recommendation 16 
Cabinet to explore options for a dedicated Officer, with flexible hours, to 
liaise with Town and Community Council’s (TCC’s) to check if there is any 
duplication between work done by the local authority and TCC’s to see if 
there are savings in relation to weed spraying, additional grass cutting, 
etc. 
 

1.24. The BREP acknowledged that parks bins and bins on highways currently had 
separate regimes but felt that greater co-ordination was needed in terms of 
collections and looking at the number of times they are emptied.  The BREP was 
pleased to hear about the electronic compression compacting bins, being trialled 
in Porthcawl, that composted the waste and could take much more volume.  In 
terms of the bin emptying regimes this would be more efficient and be better for 
the environment although BREP recognised there wouldn’t be huge savings from 
this. 
 
 

Page 37



  Appendix A
          

Recommendation 17 
Cabinet to explore the use of compacting bins in parks and review the 
frequency of collection and duplication of services e.g., Park and Street 
Scene both collecting bins and Highways and Parks both cutting grass. 

 
1.25. The BREP noted that Cabinet and Corporate Management Board (CCMB) had 

agreed to establish a £1 million Covid-19 Recovery Fund in 2020-21 to provide 
funding for decisions aimed at boosting recovery that were unlikely to be paid for 
by WG.  However, it was recognised that the Authority was now expected to be 
recovering and income levels back up to pre-Covid levels by March 2022, and 
any local decisions taken on subsidising anything, e.g., car parking, would be an 
impact on the budget, although it was recognised that it was unlikely the footfall 
would return by March. It was further noted that car park next to Wilkinson’s 
wasn’t free but was nearly always full, so there was an appetite for car parking in 
Bridgend, but only two car parks affected by free car parking. 
 
Recommendation 18 
Cabinet to review and simplify the charging structure for car parking and 
taper the free parking facility. 

 
1.26. The BREP were concerned about the amount of black plastic that went directly 

into bins and noted that there were companies out there that would buy black 
plastic and so there was a potential to make money on black plastic recycling. 

 
Recommendation 19 
Cabinet to explore the option for recycling black plastic and other 
products not currently recycled.   
 

1.27. At the fifth meeting in November, BREP Members heard from the Head of 
Partnership Services, and Officers, in relation to the homelessness position in 
Bridgend. 

 
1.28. The BREP felt that the local authority was shouldering a lot of the burden, in 

relation to homelessness, with what the pandemic had presented. There was a 
need to work closely with more Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) to avoid as 
focussing on a single larger one. There was a need to address renegotiation of 
the 25% housing stock that should be brought into mainstream to be available to 
Housing Officers to allocate. 

 
Recommendation 20 
Cabinet to revisit the relationships with Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs) across the county borough to broaden the scope of partnerships 
with the local authority to be able to fit different models and provide 
different solutions with multiple RSLs. 
 
Recommendation 21 
Cabinet to revisit the relationship with V2C and renegotiate access to the 
25% housing stock that is not currently available for allocation by the 
local authority housing officers, who manage the common housing 
register. 

Page 38



  Appendix A
          

 
1.29. The BREP felt it was frustrated by the local authority’s inability to build any 

housing, rather than only allocating through Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), 
that Housing Officers had little control over and perhaps it was time to review the 
way forward for the next 20 years, with BCBC building their own economic model 
of some social housing and having direct control of it.  
 
Recommendation 22 
Cabinet to consider future social housing being provided by the local 
authority including the options for the next 20 years and exploring a new 
model. 
 

1.30. The BREP acknowledged that for many organisations that applied for grant 
funding, it was something that took time and effort. The BREP felt that the local 
authority would benefit from doing a cost analysis of time spent on grant funding, 
as the Authority was responsible for administering grants worth £80m and this 
would cost the Authority in administering these, over and above normal staffing 
running costs.  
 
Recommendation 23 
Cabinet to press the Welsh Government to transfer money currently 
provided on a grant basis directly into the RSG, to save on the significant 
time/costs of administering, monitoring, and reporting upon grants and 
the lack of ability to plan ahead for schemes from short term grant 
funding. 
 

1.31. In terms of staffing, the BREP noted that the service was working to try and 
expand, but there were significant issues, not just in housing, but across all 
sectors of the Authority. Getting skilled people in and growing their own, was 
going to take time. There had been successes with apprenticeships across other 
areas of the authority in terms of business administration and ICT and that was 
something that could be considered. 
 
Recommendation 24 
Consideration be given to the training / recruitment of apprentices in the 
Housing service and the use of the market supplement to retain staff. 
 

1.32. The BREP noted that the pandemic had identified the significant issue of 
homelessness and lack of suitable housing across the county borough, and felt 
it was time to go back to the corporate plan, look at the priorities and review the 
role of housing, as part of the Chief Executives Directorate within that plan. 
 
Recommendation 25 
Cabinet to look at the priorities within the corporate plan with a view to 
Housing within the Chief Executive’s Directorate being included as a 
priority in the Plan, due to the significant increase in homelessness and 
the lack of resources. 

 

Page 39



  Appendix A
          

1.33. At the sixth meeting in November, BREP Members also heard from the 
Consultation Engagement and Equalities Manager, who provided an update to 
the Members of BREP on the Budget Consultation.   
 

1.34. The BREP noted that the budget consultation had received a total of 1,115 
interactions from a combination of survey completions, engagement at various 
meetings, social media engagement and via the authority’s Citizens’ Panel 
although this represented a decrease of 39% on previous year’s overall 
interactions and felt it was therefore time to take stock of the whole consultation 
process as perhaps the public felt there were too many separate consultations 
and the challenge was to attract the public interest.  

 
Recommendation 26 
Cabinet to renew where the local authority is in terms of the consultation 
process and whether there are opportunities to improve public 
engagement, taking into consideration experiences from other local 
authorities or the public and private sectors.  
 

1.36 At the final meeting of BREP held on 17 December 2021 BREP Members 
received updates on the Budget Consultation following its closure and the Fees 
and Charges work undertaken, following which the Panel reviewed and agreed 
the draft recommendations made to date, subject to the following amendments 
to draft recommendations 20 and 22, as underlined below:  
 
Recommendation 20 
Cabinet to revisit the relationships with Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs) across the county borough to broaden the scope of partnerships 
and improve the consistency of the operation seen by the public, with the 
local authority to be able to fit different models and provide different 
solutions with multiple RSLs. 
 

 Recommendation 22 
Cabinet to consider future social housing being provided by the local 
authority including the options for the next 20 years and exploring a new 
model, and where developers are granted permission the social housing 
element is prioritised. 

 
 
1.37 The Panel endorsed its Recommendations 1 to 26, subject to the above two 

amendments and made the following further two Recommendations below: 
 

Recommendation 27 
Cabinet and the Corporate Management Board reinforce the “One 
Council’’ approach and go further to develop a “One Bridgend” approach 
when working with key partners to deliver community based services. 
Key partners that can be identified to include but not exclusive to the 
Police, Health, Social Landlords, Awen, Halo, and Kier. 
  
 
 

Page 40



  Appendix A
          

Recommendation 28: 
Cabinet and the Corporate Management Board consider a review of the 
corporate communication strategy to highlight the specific 
responsibilities that Bridgend County Borough Council has for the 
delivery of public services. This may well improve the public’s knowledge 
and understanding of the Council’s responsibilities and provide clarity for 
key stakeholders intrinsically linked to community based services. 

 
1.38  This BREP final report was reported to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on 1 February 2022 for consideration as part of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy consultation process, and the Recommendations endorsed for 
onward reporting to Cabinet on 8 February 2022, subject to the following 
amendments made to strengthen the wording of Recommendations 3, 7, 11, 12 
and 22 as underlined below, and the addition of a further two recommendations 
29 and 30 below: 

 
Recommendation 3 
Cabinet to seek clarification from Welsh Government in relation to Post 16 
bus passes and who is paying for them, ensuring that any cut to Post 16 
Transport would not disadvantage those learning in more than one 
environment, due to the availability of courses.  
 
BREP also asks what the Authority has done to explore cost benefit  
options and arrangements for alternative routes, whilst awaiting the 
clarification. 
 
Recommendation 7 
Cabinet urgently reviews school catchment areas to ensure that recent 
housing developments are taken into consideration, in order to also help 
identify financial, carbon and environmental savings on transport, so at the 
end they are taken into consideration to also identify financial savings on 
transport costs. 
 

Recommendation 11 
Cabinet explores potential for increasing charges in Social Services, and 
provides BREP with a breakdown of the cost and quantum of support to 
local residents of the community.  

 
Recommendation 12 
Cabinet investigates all new forms of food waste bags, having regard to 
the environmental impact and to lower the financial cost to the Authority. 

 
Recommendation 22 
Cabinet to consider future social housing being provided by the local 
authority including the options for the next 20 years and exploring a new 
model, and where developers are granted permission the social housing 
element is prioritised. 
 
BREP further asks what exploration the Authority has undertaken on 
providing local authority housing. 

Page 41



  Appendix A
          

Recommendation 29 
BREP requests clarity upon how its Recommendations have been 
incorporated into the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy, and these 
particular budget proposals and for the medium term, what Corporate 
Directors have done to take account of BREP Recommendations, and any 
that have been rejected, to enable a transparent debate on the 
recommendations put forward, and that future BREP recommendations 
ought to inform the budget process from an earlier stage and a written 
response to each of its Recommendations be provided earlier to enable 
those considerations to be built into its final Recommendations to 
Cabinet.   

 
Recommendation 30 
BREP is looking ahead to the next Council term and the next five years, 
given the likelihood that the settlement for the next financial year is a one-
off and there are likely to be significant cuts needed in the next Council 
Term, BREP requests a breakdown of which services in each Directorate 
are discretionary and clear differentiation between statutory services, to 
provide clarity to BREP Members. 

 
 

 
 

Page 42



Appendix B 
 
 
Recommendations of the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel in respect of 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 
 
Recommendation 1 
Cabinet to review how school budgets are being used and how does the local 
authority demonstrate value for money in how schools are funded, taking an 
evidenced base approach.  
 
Recommendation 2 
Cabinet to review Fees and Charges annually going forward.  
 
Recommendation 3 
Cabinet to seek clarification from Welsh Government in relation to Post 16 bus 
passes and who is paying for them, ensuring that any cut to Post 16 Transport would 
not disadvantage those learning in more than one environment, due to the 
availability of courses.  

BREP also asks what the Authority has done to explore cost benefit  
options and arrangements for alternative routes, whilst awaiting the clarification.  
 
Recommendation 4 
Cabinet to consider the cost of Nursery transportation given the small numbers of 
children using the facility and the high costs per pupil. 
 
Recommendation 5 
Cabinet to review the cost of nursery provision. 
 
Recommendation 6 
Cabinet lobbies Welsh Government, through the Welsh Local Government 
Association to ensure that additional legislation, in terms of the ALN bill, comes with 
the consequential funding. 
 
Recommendation 7 
Cabinet urgently reviews school catchment areas to ensure that recent housing 
developments are taken into consideration, in order to also help identify financial, 
carbon and environmental savings on transport, so at the end they are taken into 
consideration to also identify financial savings on transport costs.  
 
Recommendation 8 
BREP acknowledges that due to ageing population and the impact of Covid and long 
Covid, social care costs are increasing and there will be a potential budget pressure 
and so proposed budget savings will have to be found in other ways, by looking 
more strategically across the whole Council and to explore what can be streamlined 
and still fulfil statutory duties.  
 
Specifically, Cabinet is recommended to take a one-Council approach and look at 
areas of duplication of functions across the Council and scope for close integration to 

Page 43



work smarter e.g., in back office administration, complaints, customer service, referrals 
and business support in Education and Social Services which was recommended last 
year.  
 
Recommendation 9 
Cabinet is requested to put forward a motion to Welsh Government and Westminster 
to fund wholesale reform of the social care system with the strategic aim to fund 
social care fit for the future.  
 
Recommendation 10 
Cabinet explores re-balancing the market between commissioned and in-house 
services in the future and how best that suits the needs of the county borough of 
Bridgend whilst considering Ethical procurement of services as well. 
 
Recommendation 11 
Cabinet explores potential for increasing charges in Social Services, and provides 
BREP with a breakdown of the cost and quantum of support to local residents of the 
community.  
 

Recommendation 12 
Cabinet investigates all new forms of food waste bags, having regard to 
the  environmental impact and to lower the financial cost to the Authority. 
 
Recommendation 13 
Cabinet explores the opportunity of merging Bridgend Bus Station with Bridgend 
Railway Station into a transport hub, fit for the County as a whole. 
 
Recommendation 14 
Cabinet to explore the potential for charging in relation to the administration fee for 
the issuing and reissuing of Blue Badges. 
 
Recommendation 15 
Cabinet explore the options with regards to the future of Ravens Court.  
 

Recommendation 16 
Cabinet to explore options for a dedicated Officer, with flexible hours, to liaise with 
Town and Community Council’s (TCC’s) to check if there is any duplication between 
work done by the local authority and TCC’s to see if there are savings in relation to 
weed spraying, additional grass cutting, etc. 
 
Recommendation 17 
Cabinet to explore the use of compacting bins in parks and review the frequency of 
collection and duplication of services e.g., Park and Street Scene both collecting bins 
and Highways and Parks both cutting grass. 
 

Recommendation 18 
Cabinet to review and simplify the charging structure for car parking and taper the 
free parking facility. 
 

Page 44



Recommendation 19 
Cabinet to explore the option for recycling black plastic and other products not 
currently recycled.   
 
Recommendation 20 
Cabinet to revisit the relationships with Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) across 
the county borough to broaden the scope of partnerships and improve the 
consistency of the operation seen by the public, with the local authority to be able to 
fit different models and provide different solutions with multiple RSLs. 
 
Recommendation 21 
Cabinet to revisit the relationship with V2C and renegotiate access to the 25% 
housing stock that is not currently available for allocation by the local authority 
housing officers, who manage the common housing register. 
 
Recommendation 22 
Cabinet to consider future social housing being provided by the local authority 
including the options for the next 20 years and exploring a new model, and where 
developers are granted permission the social housing element is prioritised. 

BREP further asks what exploration the Authority has undertaken on providing local 
authority housing. 
 
Recommendation 23 
Cabinet to press the Welsh Government to transfer money currently provided on a 
grant basis directly into the RSG, to save on the significant time/costs of 
administering, monitoring, and reporting upon grants and the lack of ability to plan 
ahead for schemes from short term grant funding. 
 
Recommendation 24 
Consideration be given to the training / recruitment of apprentices in the Housing 
service and the use of the market supplement to retain staff. 
 
Recommendation 25 
Cabinet to look at the priorities within the corporate plan with a view to Housing 
within the Chief Executive’s Directorate being included as a priority in the Plan, due 
to the significant increase in homelessness and the lack of resources. 
 
Recommendation 26 
Cabinet to renew where the local authority is in terms of the consultation process 
and whether there are opportunities to improve public engagement, taking into 
consideration experiences from other local authorities or the public and private 
sectors.  
 
Recommendation 27 
Cabinet and the Corporate Management Board reinforce the “One Council’’ 
approach and go further to develop a “One Bridgend” approach when working with 
key partners to deliver community based services. Key partners that can be 
identified to include but not exclusive to the Police, Health, Social Landlords, Awen, 
Halo, and Kier. 

Page 45



Recommendation 28 
Cabinet and the Corporate Management Board consider a review of the corporate 
communication strategy to highlight the specific responsibilities that Bridgend County 
Borough Council has for the delivery of public services. This may well improve the 
public’s knowledge and understanding of the Council’s responsibilities and provide 
clarity for key stakeholders intrinsically linked to community based services. 
 
Recommendation 29 
BREP requests clarity upon how its Recommendations have been incorporated into 
the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy, and these particular budget proposals 
and for the medium term, what Corporate Directors have done to take account of 
BREP Recommendations, and any that have been rejected, to enable a transparent 
debate on the recommendations put forward, and that future BREP 
recommendations ought to inform the budget process from an earlier stage and a 
written response to each of its Recommendations be provided earlier to enable those 
considerations to be built into its final Recommendations to Cabinet.   
 
Recommendation 30 
BREP is looking ahead to the next Council term and the next five years, given the 
likelihood that the settlement for the next financial year is a one-off and there are 
likely to be significant cuts needed in the next Council Term, BREP requests a 
breakdown of which services in each Directorate are discretionary and clear 
differentiation between statutory services, to provide clarity to BREP Members. 
 

Page 46



Appendix C 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees’ comments and Recommendations on the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 
 
 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 19 January 2022 
 
Chief Executive’s Directorate and Council Wide: 
 
Recommendations: 
 
CE1. The Committee recommended that the Medium Term Financial Strategy and 

the Corporate Plan be reviewed and adjusted based upon the volatility of the 
funding, the difficulties of financial planning on a 3 to 5 year cycle and the 
need to be prudent moving forward. 
 

CE2.  The Committee recommended a corporate overview of procurement and  
tendering process be undertaken and looks at added liabilities to the Authority 
for staffing costs, which would include National Insurance contributions, 
national pay / wage increases, etc.   

 
CE3. The Committee requested clarification whether the requirement for the 

Authority to meet increased National Insurance contributions for staff in 
commissioned services is from employment law or from within the terms of 
the contracts.  
 

CE4. The Committee recommended that the Authority lobbies Welsh Government 
and UK Government for consequential funding for the additional requirements 
placed upon Local Authorities from legislative and regulatory pressures,  
including those relating to: the Additional Learning Needs Act, the 
Environmental (Wales) Act 2016, the Welsh Government’s commitment to 
eradicate homelessness, local authorities’ responsibilities in respect of 
responding to climate change and meeting net zero carbon targets, the 
implications of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, etc. 
and asks Welsh Government to identify what within core funding covers these 
additional responsibilities. The Committee also requested an itemised 
breakdown of how much the additional legislative / regulatory commitments 
such as Teachers’ Pay, NI Contributions, Real Living Wage, etc, take out of 
the £19.6 Million uplift in funding, in order to receive an accurate indication of 
the remainder of the 9.2% budget settlement increase.  
 

CE5. The Committee recommended that Cabinet write to Welsh Government urging 
them to set a multi year Medium Term financial Strategy budget settlement 
cycle of 3 or 5 years. 
 

CE6. In respect of budget pressure CEX1, the Committee recommended 
consideration be given to continuing to reduce the cost of postage centrally 
due to the increase in digital service provision, and requested the savings 
being made by individual Directorates be identified. 

Page 47



 
CE7. In respect of budget pressure CW1, the Committee recommended that the 

Cabinet requests clarity on the outcome of the consultation undertaken upon 
Fire and Rescue Service precept / funding. 
 

CE8. In respect of budget pressure CW3, the Committee expressed concern about 
whether the £1M would be sufficient to meet the range of potential services it 
may need to support, given the extent of previous claims from the Welsh 
Government Hardship Fund by such services e.g., schools, homelessness, 
etc. and requested itemisation of what the pressure is to support following the 
ending of the Welsh Government hardship fund.   

 
 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 – 20 January 2022 
 
Education and Family Support Directorate and Schools: 
 
Recommendations: 
 
ED1. The Committee supported the COSC recommendation made on 19 January 

2022 for a robust review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the 
Corporate Plan to be undertaken, as they were planned prior to the pandemic. 
The Committee requested that Cabinet be mindful of the consequences of the 
pandemic impact including learning catch up, the mental health of children 
and safeguarding issues when looking at this review, and the impact of 
potential future reductions on schools and teaching. 
 

ED2. In relation to the indicative Budget Reduction SCH1 of 1% for 2023-24 to 
2025-26, the Committee recommended that the Cabinet lobby Welsh 
Government regarding the detrimental effect Covid has had on children and 
their learning and the need to start examining and discussing funding for 
schools looking ahead, as Wales has the lowest funding per pupil in the UK 
and Bridgend is lower than some other Welsh Authorities, and the need to try 
to protect children’s learning from future savings that could potentially impact 
on the effectiveness of teaching.  
 

ED3.   The Committee recognised the need to be able to plan ahead for future years  
 in the MTFS and supported the recommendation proposed by COSC on 19  
 January 2022, that Cabinet write to Welsh Government urging them to set a  

multi year Medium Term financial Strategy budget settlement cycle of 3 or 5 
years 
 

ED4. The Committee recommended that consideration be given to the cost of living 
crisis to try to keep any future Council Tax increase to as minimal as possible 
 

ED5. In relation to budget pressure EFS6, the Committee recommended that the 
Authority continue to lobby Welsh Government for the awaited WG review of 
learner transport, in order to progress the outcome relating to this pressure for 
home to school transport. 

 

Page 48



Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2 – 21 January 2022 
 
Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate: 
 
Recommendations: 
 
SS1. In relation to budget pressure SSW5, the Committee recommended that 

consideration be given to lobbying Welsh government to set a Welsh national 
salary, terms and conditions for social workers to alleviate Childrens social 
worker recruitment and retention pressures for Local Authorities, similarly to 
the national arrangements for teachers, police and nurses. 

 
SS2. In addition to the above, the Committee expressed concern at the significant 

reliance and potential cost of agency staff in Children’s Services and 
requested assurance that the situation is kept under review and all that can be 
done to reduce it considered.  
 

SS3. In relation to budget reduction proposal SSW1, the Committee recommended 
consideration is given to ensure that service users are not excluded by the 
use of technology / digital service delivery.  

 
SS4. In relation to budget reduction proposal SSW2, the Committee requested 

assurance that consideration of new ways of working includes options for 
face-to-face service e.g., for those who are unable to engage in other ways 
e.g., via telephone completion of forms, etc. 

 
SS5. In relation to budget reduction proposal SSW3, the Committee suggested that 

the use of the term service remodelling had negative perceptions which could 
have adverse impact on staff and service users and did not make clear the 
extensive advocacy and consultation undertaken to listen to the wishes of 
service users, and recommended consideration be given to more positive 
terminology and explanation of the budget line, such as tailoring or ongoing 
continuous improvement, etc.  

 
SS6. In relation to general comments relating to budget pressure CW3, the 

Committee recommended that consideration be given to reviewing the £1M 
pressure, as due to the extent of the significant reliance on the former Welsh 
Government hardship fund by a number of services including those within 
Social Services and Wellbeing, there was concern that the figure may be 
insufficient and a reduction in service delivery could ensue. 

 
 
  

Page 49



Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 – 24 January 2022 
 
Communities Directorate: 
 
Recommendations: 
 
CM1. The Committee requested a written breakdown of the list of Community Asset 

Transfers that had taken place to date with the maintenance costs per site to 
identify the savings.   

 
CM2.  The Committee welcomed that a report would be prepared to Cabinet upon  

the Community Asset Transfers, including an update upon those community 
facilities clubs had not expressed an interest in transferring. 

 
CM3. The Committee welcomed the 9.2% uplift in the settlement from Welsh 

Government but is disheartened that savings are still proposed to the 

Communities Directorate particularly the Strategic Regeneration Fund, 

because of its importance for future generations.  The Committee 

recommends that any reductions in the Communities Directorate are the last 

resort and that the Strategic Regeneration Fund budget particularly is 

protected as much as possible from reduction, as a priority from the list of 

Communities Directorate proposed reductions. (Budget reduction proposals, 

particularly COM1) 

CM4. In relation to budget pressure COM1, COM2 and COM3, the Committee  
requested information be provided regarding increased tonnages for kitchen 
waste, blue bag waste and street litter and the percentage increases in 
respect of each. 

 
CM5. The Committee recommended that Cabinet examine all discretionary services 

to ensure they are all achieving value for money for the local authority. 
 

Page 50



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
    

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 
1. Purpose of report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek agreement from Cabinet to present a report 
to Council for approval for a revised capital programme for 2021-22 to 2030-31 
(Appendix A). 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-   

 
1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make 

the county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, 
study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the 
skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county borough.  

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – 

taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services. Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 
3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, 

physical, ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and 
efficiently as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the 
community that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
2.2 Capital investment in the Council’s assets is a key factor in meeting the 

Council’s well-being objectives as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

3. Background  
 

3.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 
2003 as amended, contain detailed provisions for the capital finance and 
accounting controls, including the rules on the use of capital receipts and what 
is to be treated as capital expenditure. They modify accounting practice in 
various ways to prevent adverse impacts on authorities’ revenue resources. 

 
3.2      As well as the legislation, the Council manages its Treasury Management and 

Capital activities in accordance with the following associated guidance:- 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



• Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice  

• CIPFA’s The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities  

• Welsh Government (WG) revised Guidance on Local Authority 
Investments 

 
3.3 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires Local 

Authorities to have in place a Capital Strategy which demonstrates that the 
Authority takes capital expenditure and investment decisions in line with service 
objectives and properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, 
prudence, sustainability and affordability. To demonstrate that the Council has 
fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out a number of Indicators 
that must be set and monitored each year. The Council’s Capital Strategy, 
incorporating the Prudential Indicators for 2021-22, was approved by Council 
on 24 February 2021. 

3.4 On 24 February 2021, Council also approved a capital programme covering the 
period 2020-21 to 2030-31 as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS), and this has been updated during the year with new schemes, 
amendments to existing funding packages and changes to delivery profiles. 
Since the programme was last approved by Council on 19 January 2022 there 
have been new grant awards, outcomes of tender processes and updates on 
existing schemes which need including within the capital programme.  

3.5 On 22 and 23 February 2022 a capital programme covering the period 2021-22 
to 2031-2032 will be presented to Cabinet and Council, respectively, as part of 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26, alongside the 
proposed Capital Strategy for 2022-23 to 2031-32.  

3.6 It is worth noting that there are a number of financial pressures arising as a 
result of current market conditions, which have been impacted by the pandemic 
and Brexit. These are being reflected in many of our capital schemes, both 
current and future schemes, in particular: 

• Increased prices of materials, as a result of higher inflation rates and 
additional costs associated with Brexit, sometimes up to 25% higher than 
previously estimated; 

• Supply chain difficulties leading to higher prices and delays in schemes 
being completed; 

• Inability to recruit to key posts, both within the Council and companies we 
contract with, resulting in higher wages and overall contract costs; 

• Additional requirements on schemes to achieve Welsh Government’s Net 
Zero commitments, which includes an aim of collectively achieving net 
zero across the Welsh public sector by 2030. This will lead to changes in 
the way we design and manage our assets, which will likely result in 
increased costs. 

3.7 Examples of these issues include a recent tender for two pedestrian crossings, 
to six potential tenderers with an expected cost of £88,000 each. Only one 

Page 52



contractor tendered and the price was nearly 2.5 times the anticipated cost. The 
scheme did not progress. Similarly, we tendered on Sell to Wales for new play 
area equipment with an estimated value of £400,000 but did not receive any 
tenders. This has recently been re-tendered as part of a larger package of 
works, to try and make it more attractive to the market. 

4. Current situation/proposal 

4.1 The capital programme approved by Council in January 2022 for the period 
2021-22 to 2030-31 totalled £212.439 million, of which £118.094 million is to be 
met from Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) resources, including 
capital receipts and revenue contributions from earmarked reserves, with the 
remaining £94.345 million coming from external resources, including General 
Capital Grant.  

 
4.2 As mentioned above, there are a number of new capital schemes that now need 

including in the capital programme, some of which are wholly or partly grant 
funded, along with others which need amending.  

 
4.3 More detail on each of these schemes is set out below.  
 

 Net Zero Carbon Fleet 
 

An additional £320,000 has been added to the programme from in year revenue 
under spends, to be utilised for the purchase of a pool (up to 10, depending on 
price) of additional electric powered vehicles which will be available for booking 
by staff for essential travel, in particular domiciliary care workers, in order to 
extend recruitment reach, as well as enable the general fleet transition to zero 
emission vehicles as part of the drive towards Net Zero Carbon 2030. Due to 
the delay in receiving the vehicles, an earmarked reserve has been established, 
equivalent to the value of the under spend, to fund the vehicles in the new 
financial year. 

 
Cardiff Capital Region Metro Plus 

The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) Metro Plus programme was initially agreed 
in March 2019 where Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, in collaboration with 
Welsh Government and Transport for Wales, identified a proposed £50 million 
programme of local transport schemes to support the implementation of the 
South Wales Metro. 

All local authorities within the Cardiff Capital Region were allocated £3 million 
for transport related projects (£1.5 million from CCR funding and £1.5 million 
from Welsh Government via the Local Transport Fund). There is an explicit 
expectation that councils fund anything further on top of this allocation up to the 
value of £1.5 million. 

In Bridgend’s case the Pyle Park and Ride was the principal project but 
Penprysg Road Bridge (feasibility and design) was added as a later Metro Plus 
project within the same funding envelope. The Porthcawl Metrolink project is a 
bus focussed facility that came about as a result of the early feasibility work 

Page 53



carried out into the Pyle Park and Ride Scheme and is intended to offer 
connection to the wider South Wales Metro network.  Further work on the Metro 
Enhancement Framework (MEF) by CCR indicated that the Porthcawl to 
Bridgend to Cardiff transport corridor is of significant importance to the region 
and beyond. 

The Porthcawl Metrolink facility originally started as a simple open structure 
concept costing circa £400,000 and featuring a canopy open on three sides 
supporting a four bay bus station.  However, following further discussion and 
wider consultation with Members it was considered that a fully enclosed building 
with a green roof and digital integration would be more appropriate in this 
location as a key regeneration site.  This increased the build cost to almost £2 
million. There is no opportunity to value engineer the structure as it stands 
without fundamentally changing its design and there may also be unknown 
additional costs during the tender and building phase that have not yet been 
identified, but these will be reported back to Cabinet and Council if and when 
they arise.  

The total current projection for the Metro Plus scheme from the Council is 
£3.082 million (£367,000 to March 2021 and £2.715 million from April 2021 
onwards), taking into account spend to date plus currently anticipated spend in 
this and the next financial year. Of this, approximately £800,000 relates to 
Pencoed Level Crossing and Penprysg Road Bridge. It is proposed to fund the 
shortfall of £82,000 over and above the £3 million external funding from 
unallocated capital receipts. It is vital that the scheme is progressed and 
completed on time otherwise there is a risk that any remining Metro funding will 
be diverted elsewhere leaving the Council at financial risk. 

Ewenny Road Industrial Estate 

In May 2021 Cabinet received a report relating to the proposed redevelopment 
of the former Ewenny Road Industrial Estate, and the proposal to seek Cardiff 
Capital Region (CCR) funding for necessary infrastructure and remediation 
works. The funding was to be met from CCR’s Housing Viability Gap Fund 
which was established to unlock key strategic housing sites across South East 
Wales which would have no other means of coming forward due to financial 
viability. The funding requested was £3.5 million and this will be used to fund 
the remediation of the site, the diversion and provision of drainage and services, 
the provision of access infrastructure and offsite infrastructure improvement 
works to facilitate the future development of the site for residential and 
commercial uses.  

On 29 November 2021 CCR Cabinet approved a final shortlist of schemes and 
funding requirements, which included a £3.5 million allocation of grant funding 
for the former Ewenny Road Industrial Estate. Officers are now in receipt of the 
draft funding contract from CCR which includes conditions attached to the grant 
which could require repayment should they not be met, including, for example, 
failure to commence house building on the site by a prescribed date, failure to 
meet other targets set out in the agreement.  In order to safeguard the Council 
and minimise financial risk, the future disposal of the site and any obligations 
passed onto third parties involved in the development of site will be structured 

Page 54



in such a way that protects against any breach of the funding conditions that 
require repayment should they be breached. No expenditure will be incurred on 
this site until the final funding agreement is signed. 

Porthcawl Regeneration 

A report was presented to Cabinet in January 2021 in relation to the marketing 
of the food store site in Porthcawl, with a recommendation for Cabinet to 
approve the disposal of the site to Aldi Stores Ltd. The report outlined that in 
November 2018 Council had resolved to use £2.553 million of the receipt 
towards infrastructure improvements within the Porthcawl Regeneration 
project. The actual receipt from the sale of the site is significantly more than 
was originally envisaged, and given recent increases in tender prices, as 
outlined in paragraph 3.6 it is recommended that the additional receipt of 
£957,000 is ringfenced to this programme and included in the capital 
programme to support the required infrastructure works, including 
improvements to the Portway, and additional improvements in terms of crossing 
points and creating pedestrian links with the town centre, resulting in a revised 
remaining budget for this scheme of £3.488 million.  

 
Brynmenyn Children’s Hub 
 
Following a procurement process, the contract for the required works at 
Brynmenyn was awarded in April 2021, but in July 2021 the Council terminated 
that contract due to provider insolvency. This meant that an alternative 
contractor was needed to carry out the works, which required another tender 
exercise.  
  
As a result of this extra work and time delay, project costs have subsequently 
increased due to the extra fees associated with the work needed for the 
retender and also tendered rates submitted being higher than the amount 
originally approved by Council, reflecting current market conditions. The 
shortfall of £438,000 will be funded from unallocated capital funding in the 
capital programme. 
  
BCBC will submit an application to fund as much of the £438,000 as is possible 
from Welsh Government Regional Integrated Fund Capital Funding in 2022-23. 
However, capital funding arrangements from April 2022 are yet to be finalised 
so there is no guarantee of any funding at this time. If alternative funding is 
approved at a later date any new grant funding will be used to replace the 
Council’s capital fund contribution. 
 
Community Energy Safety Programme (CESP) / Arbed Phase 1 
 
At the beginning of January 2022 the Welsh Government wrote to the Council 
following the Council’s submission of a business case for a funding contribution 
from WG towards remedial work on 104 properties in Caerau. The letter 
confirmed that the Minister for Climate Change had agreed to award funding in 
principle, not exceeding £2.65 million, over the current and next financial year 
to carry out the essential remedial work. The remainder of the costs of the work, 

Page 55



totalling in the region of £855,000, dependent on take-up and tender prices, are 
to be met from the Council. The total funding should cover the costs of remedial 
works to all eligible householders affected in Caerau, not just those in which the 
Council had involvement, and will cover cost of works, project management and 
quality assurance. The award, and therefore implementation of the remedial 
works, is subject to a final decision by WG, following an assessment of a 
satisfactory detailed business case, which is due for submission by the end of 
February 2022, and project proposal. The Council’s match funding contribution 
will be met from an existing earmarked reserve.  
 
ICT Equipment – Schools 
 
An additional £305,000 has been added to ICT equipment purchases for 
schools in relation to a range of planned ICT purchases in 2021-22.  These will 
be funded from an existing earmarked reserve established for the purchase of 
ICT equipment by schools from their annual ICT SLA contributions. 
 
Welsh Government Un-adopted Roads Pilot 
 
Welsh Government has previously awarded the Council £229,000 of Un-
adopted Roads Pilot funding for Ynyslas (Newton Nottage Road), Porthcawl, 
to be reconstructed and also for it to be adopted as part of the public highway 
maintainable by the Council.  Welsh Government has awarded the Council a 
further £110,000 to meet additional unforeseen costs to the scheme and to 
initiate design of further sections of the project. 

Heronsbridge Special School Additional Accommodation 
 
Heronsbridge Special School urgently needs to deal with a shortfall in pupil 
accommodation. An interim measure is required until the proposed new school 
(which is part of Band B School Modernisation Programme), opens (currently 
projected to be September 2025). Bridgend College has agreed in principle to 
the temporary use of surplus areas of the college which, with elements of 
building works, could be repurposed for use by Heronsbridge learners. It has 
been proposed to the Headteacher that Heronsbridge Special School make a 
revenue contribution to the scheme from their projected under spend with the 
balance to be funded by the local authority for the necessary physical building 
works costs. The overall scheme cost is anticipated to be £320,000 and it is 
proposed that this is funded as follows: £140,000 from Heronsbridge Special 
School balances and £180,000 from the Council’s capital budget, to be vired 
from the School Modernisation Retentions budget. The Headteacher will seek 
formal Governing Body approval to the school contribution at the governors 
meeting to be held on 9 March 2022. If approval is not given by the governing 
body alternative sources of funding will be sought and this will be reported back 
to Cabinet and Council. Works will not commence until all approvals, funding 
and leases are in place. 

  
4.4 There are also a small number of other amendments and changes to grant 

approvals which are reflected in the updated capital programme.  
 

Page 56



4.5 A revised Capital Programme, incorporating the schemes outlined above, is 
included as Appendix A. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 This report complies with paragraph 3.4 of the Financial Procedure Rules within 

the Council’s Constitution in relation to the capital programme.  

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered 
in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must 
consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. Projects within the capital 
programme will be subject to the preparation of Equality Impact Assessments 
before proceeding.  However, it is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

 
7.  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1       The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 

this report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this 
report. Specifically the development of a 10 year capital programme, which 
reflects the Council’s affordability in terms of capital receipts and borrowing, 
supports the principle of sustainability over the long term. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The financial implications are outlined in the body of the report. 
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet agrees that the revised Capital Programme at 

Appendix A be submitted to Council for approval. 
 
 
Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change  
January 2022 
 

Contact Officer:   Deborah Exton 
     Deputy Head of Finance 
 
Telephone:    01656 643604 
 
E-mail:    Deborah.Exton@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address:   Bridgend County Borough Council 

Page 57

mailto:Deborah.Exton@bridgend.gov.uk


     Chief Executive’s - Finance 
     Raven’s Court 

Brewery Lane 
     Bridgend 
     CF31 4AP 
 
Background documents:   None 

Page 58



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021-2031 APPENDIX A

CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Council January  
2022 New Approvals Vire Slippage Revised 2021-22 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 2030-2031 Total 2021 - 2031

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Education & Family Support
Highways Schemes Band B Schools 3,400            3,400           -                                   -                        3,400 3,400                          
21st Century Schools Band B 49,505          15,654        33,851       100                     100                         2,771        6,051        29,528      10,302      753 49,505                        
CCYD classrooms 30                 30               30                       30                           30                               
Ysgol Bryn Castell Special School 92                 22               70              92                       92                                        92                               
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd 50                 50                                       -                        50             50                               
Brynmenyn Primary School 44                 44               44                       44                           44                               
Land Purchase Band B 4,910            4,910          4,910                  4,910                      4,910                          
Gateway to the Valleys C C Y D Comprehensive School 135               135              -           135                     135                                                                                                                    135                             

Garw Valley South Primary Provision 139               139             139                     139                         139                             

Pencoed Primary School 55                 55               55                       55                           55                               

Garw Valley Primary Highways Works 30                 30                -           30                       30                           30                               

Pencoed School Highways Works 55                 55                -           55                       55                           55                               

Abercerdin Primary School Hub 300               195             105            300                     300                                      300                             

Brynteg Comprehensive School All Weather Pitch 324               162             162            324                     324                                      324                             

Brymenyn Primary Highways Works 12                 12                -           12                       12                           12                               

Reduction of Infant Class Sizes - Bro Ogwr 15                  -             15              15                       15                           15                               

Schools Minor Works 361               361              -           36                       36                           325           361                             

Schools Traffic Safety 208               208              -           208                     208                         208                             

Heronsbridge Special School 320               320              -           40            40                           280           320                             

School Modernisation 393               393              -           100                     (40)          60                           333           393                             

Education S106 Schemes 169                -             169            169                     169                         169                             

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School Mobiles 98                 86               12              98                       98                                        98                               

School's Capital Maintenance Grant 4,555            2,436          2,119         2,119                  2,119                      2,436        4,555                          

Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Bettws 747                -             747            747                     747                         747                             

Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Bridgend 550                -             550            53                       53                           497           550                             

Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Ogmore 807                -             807            807                     807                                      807                             

Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Porthcawl 550                -             550            53                       53                           497           550                             

Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Highways Schemes 100               100            100                     100                         100                             

Maes Yr Haul Primary School Solar Panels 32                 32               32                                                32                           32                               

Cynffig  Comprehensive School External Canopy 42                 42               42                                                42                           42                               

ICT for School Kitchens 40                 40               40                       40                           40                               
Litchard Primary School Solar Panels 43                 43                -           43                       43                           43                               
Total Education and Family Support 68,111          28,854        39,257       10,888                 -                        -          -            10,888                    10,589      6,051        29,528      10,302      753            -           -           -           -          68,111                        

Social Services and Well-being

Adult Social Care
Bridgend Recreation 150               150             150 150                         150                             

Bryngarw Park- Access 49                 49               49                       49                           49                               

Bryn Y Cae 40                 40               40                       40                           40                               

Trem Y Mor 175               175             175                     175                         175                             

Ty Cwm Ogwr Care Home 340               340             340                     340                         340                             

Wellbeing Minor Works 163               163             163                     163                         163                             

Bakers Way 10                 10                -           10                       10                           10                               

Glan Yr Afon Care Home 51                 51                -           51                       51                           51                               

Children's Residential Accommodation Hub 2,488            2,374          114            100                     14                         114                         2,374        2,488                          

Hartshorn House 68                 68               68                       68                           68                               

Culture
Community Centres 280               280             280                     280                         280                             
HALO and AWEN Accessibility 150               150             150                     150                         150                             
Total Social Services and Well-being 3,964            3,850          114            1,576                  14                          -          -            1,590                      2,374         -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -          3,964                          

FUTURE YEARS
Total 2021-2031

2021-2022

P
age 59



CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Council January  
2022 New Approvals Vire Slippage Revised 2021-22 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 2030-2031 Total 2021 - 2031

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FUTURE YEARS
Total 2021-2031

2021-2022

Communities

Street Scene  -                        

Community Play Areas 796               796              -           100 100                         696 796                             

Parks/Pavilions/Community Centres CAT 580               580              -           580                     580                         580                             

Aber Playing Fields 11                 11               11                       11                           11                               

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 7,691            7,691           -                                   -                        3,138        4,451        103                                                               7,691                          

Town Beach Revetment Sea Defence, Porthcawl 27                 27               27                       27                                                                                                                      27                               

Accessibility & Safety Road Improvements 148                -             148            148                     148                         148                             

Coychurch Crem Works 815                -             815            350                     350                         465           815                             

Remedial Measures - Car Parks 135               135              -                                   -                        135           135                             

Civil Parking Enforcement 38                 38                -           8                         8                             30             38                               

Road Safety 336               336              -           200                     200                         136           336                             

Pyle to Porthcawl Phase 1 348               348            348                     348                         348                             

Active travel Bridgend to  Pencoed Phase 2 1,841             -             1,841         1,841                  1,841                      1,841                          

Road Safety Improvements 339               339            229                     110                       339                         339                             

Highways Structural Works 3,485            3,485           -           425                     425                         340           340           340           340           340           340           340           340           340           3,485                          

Carriageway Capital Works 2,505            2,505           -           255                     255                         250           250           250           250           250           250           250           250           250           2,505                          

Road Safety Improvements - Heol Mostyn 540               540              -           540                     540                         540                             

Prow Capital Improvement Programme 181               181             181                     181                         181                             

Highways Refurbishment Grant 810                -             810            810                     810                                      810                             

Carriageway Resurfacing & Renewal of Footways 1,560            1,560           -           1,560                  1,560                      1,560                          

Replacement of Street Lighting Columns 3,988            3,988           -           388                     388                         400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           3,988                          

Bridge Strengthening - A4061 Ogmore Valley 51                 51                -           51                       51                           51                               

Communities Minor Works 461               461              -           461                     461                         461                             

River Bridge Protection Measures 80                 80                -           80                       80                           80                               

Resilient Roads Fund 475               475            475                     475                         475                             

Ultra Low Emissions Vehicle Transformation Fund 462               462            462                     462                         462                             

Fleet Transition Ultra Low Emmissions Vehicles 300                -             300            300                     300                         300                             

Net Zero Carbon Fleet 320               320              -                                   -                        320           320                             

Pyle Park and Ride Metro 180               180            180                     180                         180                             

CCR Metro Plus-Porthcawl Bus station 1,900            1,900          -                        1,900        1,900                          

Local Transport Fund - Penprysg Road Bridge 635               82               553            150                     150                         485           635                             

Safe Routes- 224                -             224            174                     50                         224                         224                             

Residents Parking Bridgend Town Centre 128               128              -           28                       28                           100                                                                                         128                             

Fleet Vehicles 1,376            1,376           -                                   -                        1,376                                                                                      1,376                          

Re-locate Household Waste Recycling Centre - West 798               798              -           798                     798                                                                                                                    798                             

AHP Waste 207               207              -           207                     207                         207                             

Extension to Cornelly Cemetery 301               301              -           66                       66                           235                                                                                         301                             

Extension to Porthcawl Cemetery 199               199              -           19                       19                           180           199                             

Street Lighting Energy Efficiency 629               629             629                     629                         629                             

S106 Highways Small Schemes 60                  -             60              60                       60                                                                                                                      60                               

Traffic Signal Replacement 250               250             250                     250                         250                             

Fire Suppression System Tondu Waste Depot 140               140             140                     140                         140                             

Regeneration & Development
Business Support Framework 135               135              -           135                     135                         135                             

Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus 70                 50               20              70                       70                                                                                                                      70                               

Special Regeneration Funding 455               455             455                     455                         455                             

Cosy Corner (PRIF)    2,115            1,115          1,000         150                     150                         1,965        2,115                          

VRP- Bryngarw Country Park 164                -             164            164                     164                         164                             

VRP - Parc Slip 75                  -             75              75                       75                           75                               

Tri Thematic Projects (UCPE and UCLG ) 687                -             687            687                     687                         687                             

Transforming Towns Bridgend College Relocation 650               195             455            650                     650                         650                             

Porthcawl Regeneration 3,498            3,498           -           100                     100                         3,398        3,498                          

Berwyn Centre and Ogmore Vale Washeries 183               183            183                     183                         183                             

Covid recovery for town centres 334               334            334                     334                         334                             

P
age 60



CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Council January  
2022 New Approvals Vire Slippage Revised 2021-22 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 2030-2031 Total 2021 - 2031

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FUTURE YEARS
Total 2021-2031

2021-2022

Economic Stimulus Grant 831               831              -           831                     831                         831                             

Coastal Risk Management Programme 6,459            6,459          4,309                  4,309                      2,150        6,459                          

Ewenny Road Industrial Estate 3,500             -             3,500          -                        3,500        3,500                          

CESP/Arbed Phase 1 3,505            855             2,650          -                        3,505        3,505                          

Llynfi Valley Development Programme 2,260            2,260           -           2,260                  2,260                                   2,260                          

Bridgend Heat Scheme 3,390            2,323          1,067         390                     390                         3,000                                                                         3,390                          

Maesteg Town Hall Cultural Hub 5,671            2,717          2,954         2,695                  2,695                      2,976        5,671                          

Town & Community Council Fund 674               674              -           74                       74                           200           50             50             50             50             50             50             50             50             674                             

Caerau Heat Network 6,293            1,168          5,125                                 -                        5,904        389           6,293                          

Porthcawl Townscape Heritage Initiative 134               134              -           15                       15                           119                                                                                         134                             

Commercial Property Enhancement Fund  150               150             60                       60                           90             150                             

Corporate Landlord  
Capital Asset Management Fund 820               820              -                                   -                        820           820                             

Corporate Landlord - Energy Savings Strategy 1,279            1,279          1,279                  1,279                                                                                                                 1,279                          

Enterprise Hub - Innovation Centre 1,937            589             1,348         100                     100                         1,837        1,937                          

Raven's Court 447               447             447                     447                         447                             
Bridgend Market 10                 10                -           10                       10                           10                               
DDA Works 408               408              -           408                     408                         408                             

Minor Works 10,465          10,465         -           295                     295                         1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        10,465                        

Fire Precautions 249               249              -           249                     249                         249                             

Bryncethin Depot Facilities 531               531              -           531                     531                         531                             

Non-Operational Assets 480               480              -           480                     480                         480                             

Waterton Upgrade 8,144            8,144           -                                   -                        8,144        8,144                          

Evergreen Hall 130               130              -           130                     130                         130                             
Investing in Communities 47                 47                -           47                       47                           47                               

Total Communities 101,530        73,513        28,017       30,144                160                        -          -            30,304                    48,924      7,010        2,273        2,170        2,170        2,170        2,170        2,170        2,170        101,530                      

Chief Executive's

Housing / Homelessness
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) 17,742          17,120        622            1,992                  1,992                      1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        1,750        17,742                        

Target Hardening Grants 19                 19                -           19                       19                           19                               

Discretionary Housing Grants 2,000            2,000          200                     200                         200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           2,000                          

Housing Renewal / Empty Properties 1,018            1,018           -           118                     118                         100           100           100           100           100           100           100           100           100           1,018                          

Valleys Taskforce Empty Properties Grant 300               105             195            300                     300                         300                             

Comfort Safe & Security Grants 4                   4                 4                         4                             4                                 

Western Valley Empty Homes Pilot 260               91               169            260                     260                         260                             

Emergency Repair Lifetime Grant 78                 78                -           78                       78                                                                                                                      78                               

Enable Grant 1,008             -             1,008         198                     198                         270           270           270                                                               1,008                          

Health and Wellbeing Village 480                -             480            480                     480                         480                             

ICT
Investment in ICT 4,050            4,050           -           450                     450                         400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           4,050                          

HWB Schools IT 305               305              -           305                       305                         305                             

WCCIS Hardware Refresh 1,352            1,352         1,352                  1,352                      1,352                          

Digital Transformation 200               200              -           200                     200                                                                                                                    200                             
Replacement CCTV 667               667             667                     667                         667                             
Total Chief Executive's 29,483          25,657        3,826         6,318                  305                        -          -            6,623                      2,720        2,720        2,720        2,450        2,450        2,450        2,450        2,450        2,450        29,483                        

Council Wide Capital Budgets
Corporate Capital Fund 1,973            1,973          173                     173                         200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           1,973                          
Unallocated 18,664          18,664         -           504                                              504                         57             1,679        1,679        343           2,962        3,194        1,858        3,194        3,194        18,664                        
Total Council Wide Capital budgets 20,637          20,637         -           677                      -                        -          -            677                         257           1,879        1,879        543           3,162        3,394        2,058        3,394        3,394        20,637                        
Total  Expenditure 223,725        152,511      71,214       49,603                479                        -          -            50,082                    64,864      17,660      36,400      15,465      8,535        8,014        6,678        8,014        8,014        223,725                      

P
age 61



CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Council January  
2022 New Approvals Vire Slippage Revised 2021-22 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 2030-2031 Total 2021 - 2031

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FUTURE YEARS
Total 2021-2031

2021-2022

Expected Capital Resources

General Capital Funding
General Capital Funding - General Capital Grant 31,758          31,758         -           3,963                  3,963                      2,725        3,270        3,270        2,725        3,270        3,270        2,725        3,270        3,270        31,758                        

General Capital Funding - Supported Borrowing 44,276          44,276         -           3,953                  3,953                      3,953        4,744        4,744        3,953        4,744        4,744        3,953        4,744        4,744        44,276                        

Capital Receipts - Schools 3,184            3,184           -           308                     308                         268                        1,762        846                                                  3,184                          

Capital Receipts - General 21,443          21,443         -           4,335                  100          4,435                      16,487                                             521                                     21,443                        

Earmarked Reserves 33,236          33,236         -           8,632                  305                       (100)        8,837                      13,846      5,300        5,254                                                            33,236                        

Revenue Contribution 1,486            1,486           -           1,094                  1,094                      392                                                                                         1,486                          

Prudential Borrowing (Directorate Funded) 3,474            3,474           -                                   -                        3,474                                                                                      3,474                          
Prudential Borrowing (Corporately Funded) 3,813            3,813           -           1,513                  1,513                      2,300                                                                                      3,813                          
Local Govt Borrowing Initiative (Coastal defence) 5,490            5,490           -           4,309                  4,309                      1,181                                                                                      5,490                          

SALIX Interest Free Loan - WG 2,091            2,091          2,091                  2,091                                                                                                                 2,091                          
Llynfi Development Site Loan - WG 2,260            2,260           -           2,260                  2,260                                   2,260                          
Sub-Total General Capital Funding 152,511        152,511       -           32,458                305                        -          -            32,763                    44,626 13,314 15,030 7,524 8,535 8,014 6,678 8,014 8,014 152,511                      

External Funding Approvals
WG - Highways Grant 810                -             810            810                     810                                                                                          810                             

WG - Other 7,746             -             7,746         2,994                  2,994                      4,752                                                                         7,746                          

WG - 21st Century Schools 33,802           -             33,802                               -                        1,100        3,661        21,100      7,941                                               33,802                        

School's Capital Maintenance Grant 2,436             -             2,436         2,436                  2,436                      2,436                          

WG - Enable Grant 1,008             -             1,008         198                     198                         270           270           270                                                               1,008                          

WG - Safe Routes in Communities 563                -             563            403                     160                       563                                                                                                                    563                             

WG - Integrated Care Fund (ICF) 1,216             -             1,216         1,202                  14                         1,216                                                                                                                 1,216                          

WG - Welsh Medium Capital Grant 2,754             -             2,754         1,760                  1,760                      994                                                                                         2,754                          

WG - Infant Class Size Grant 15                  -             15              15                       15                                                                                                                      15                               

WG- VRP/Transforming Towns 1,211             -             1,211         1,211                  1,211                      1,211                          

WG - TRI 687                -             687            687                     687                         687                             

S106 310                -             310            261                     261                         23             26                                                                              310                             

Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) 5,000             -             5,000          -                        5,000        5,000                          

Transport Grant 4,407             -             4,407         3,604                  3,604                      803                                                                                         4,407                          

Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) 682                -             682            682                     682                                                                                                                    682                             

Westminster 390                -             390            390 390                                                                                                                    390                             

EU  6,493             -             6,493         120                     120                         5,984        389                                                                            6,493                          
Other 1,074             -             1,074         372                     372                         702                                                                                         1,074                          
Sub-Total External Funding Approvals 71,214           -             71,214       17,145                174                        -          -            17,319                    20,238      4,346        21,370      7,941         -           -           -           -           -          71,214                        
Total Funding Available 223,725        152,511      71,214       49,603                479                        -          -            50,082                    64,864      17,660      36,400      15,465      8,535        8,014        6,678        8,014        8,014        223,725                      
Funding Shortfall/(Surplus)  -                -              -            -                      -                        -          -             -                         -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -                             

P
age 62



 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 
 

THE SENIORS OPEN CHAMPIONSHIP, ROYAL PORTHCAWL GOLF CLUB, 2023 
 

1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for a contribution of funding and officer 

support from Bridgend County Borough Council to the Senior Open Championship, 

2023, to enter into a Rights Agreement and to continue work to establish Royal 

Porthcawl as a venue capable of hosting the Open Championship. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 One of the three overarching priorities in the Bridgend Destination Management 

Plan 2018 – 2022 is to raise the profile and attract more visitors to Bridgend County 
Borough by promoting Bridgend County Borough through targeted Public Relations 
(PR) and marketing and develop a diverse portfolio of events to include attracting 
new events of regional or national significance.  

 
3.2 The Bridgend County visitor events strategy sets out a clear ambition and future 

direction for those events that attract, or have the potential to attract, visitors to the 
County. The vision is for Bridgend County to be recognised as a successful 
and dynamic events destination.  
 
The priorities for achieving this are: 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
(a) Create an environment which nurtures and supports events; 
(b) Refresh and develop an on-brand events programme; 
(c) Support the provision of flexible event spaces; and 
(d) Support a consistent approach to event planning, management and 
evaluation. 

 
The type of support required or available will vary based on the nature of the event. 

  
3.3 In 2014 Bridgend County was the host of the first golf major to be held in Wales 

when Royal Porthcawl hosted the Senior Open Championship, sponsored by Rolex. 
It is estimated that there were over 43,000 people in attendance at the event 
including spectators, officials, players and caddies, which generated an estimated 
economic impact of £2.16m. This figure includes £1.1m for the accommodation 
sector, £785,000 spent in shops and cafes and £275,000 spent by the event 
organisers on services in the local economy. In addition, the Media Equivalence 
Value from the comprehensive TV coverage for Porthcawl and Bridgend County 
was calculated at a further £5.2m. The co-ordination and engagement of local 
stakeholders was exemplary and contributed to the higher than expected visitor 
numbers and the positive experiences of those who visited. 

 
3.4 The prestigious event returned to Royal Porthcawl in 2017. It is estimated that over 

32,000 people were in attendance in 2017 over the duration of the event. In addition, 
the global Media Equivalency Value for Bridgend County, including Royal Porthcawl, 
was calculated at £7.8m.  

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Senior Open Championship will return to Royal Porthcawl Golf Club from 27-30 

July, 2023. Whilst the number of spectators will be determined to an extent by the 
weather conditions throughout the week, the prospect is for another well attended 
event that delivers benefits for the local economy and promotes Porthcawl as a 
destination across the world.   

 
4.2 The 2023 event has set the following targets:  
 

 To attract at least 13,000 unique spectators to the 2023 event totalling 

38,500 spectator visits to the 2023 event as a whole.  

 Of the 13,000, to attract at least 4,000 unique spectators to the 2023 event 

from outside of Wales.  

 To generate at least £3m of net additional spending into the Welsh Economy 

as a result of the 2023 event.  

 To attract a range of national and international media coverage for the 2023 

event to include at least 600 hours of global TV broadcast coverage, 18 

hours of live UK TV broadcast coverage and 8 hours of live US TV broadcast 

coverage. 

4.3 The Welsh Government is supporting the delivery of the three Senior Open 
Championships between 2014 and 2024 with a grant of £5 million and a request 
has been submitted by the event organisers for a contribution from Bridgend County 
Borough Council (BCBC) of £50,000 as part of a proposed Rights Agreement, 

Page 64



 
 

which is a document developed by the European Tour (ET) that sets out use of the 
funding package, benefits to BCBC and payment terms. 
 

4.4  The £50,000 contribution will be the total funding package provided by BCBC 
towards the event and will cover as considered appropriate by the European Tour 
(ET) the costs associated with any or all the following: 

 
1. The ET commissioning a contractor for the preparation of the private lane leading 
to the main Championship car park in the form of pothole repairs and hedge 
trimming, where necessary. 

 
2. Hiring and rectifying costs associated with BCBC’s playing field for use as the 
entrance for players, officials, and courtesy cars and as an overflow car park, as 
necessary. 

 
3. Staff costs over and above the average for other comparable events involved in 
the liaison and assistance with the Championship’s traffic management plan and 
engagement with the Highways Department and the Events Safety Advisory Group. 

 
4. Provision and distribution of cones to line any roads, as deemed necessary, 
leading to and from Royal Porthcawl Golf Club. 

 
5. All costs associated with local promotion and marketing, including local school 
initiatives in partnership with Wales Golf. 
 
These points are considered to be a full and thorough list at the time of writing of 
the items for which the ET will use the financial contribution from BCBC.  Where 
required advice will be sought from all relevant departments, such as Highways, 
Property and Planning.  

 
4.5 In return for the financial contribution, the Championship will provide the following 

benefits to BCBC:  
 

1. Official Designation – “Championship Sponsor of The Senior Open Presented by 
Rolex 2023”.  

 
2. Championship Logo – the right to use the Championship logo in BCBC’s 
advertising and promotions until 31 December 2023, subject in each instance to 
supplying draft artwork for prior approval by the PGA European Tour.  

 
3. On-Course Advertising Boards – the right to four on-course advertising boards 
which will be positioned on the golf course to attract TV exposure with 
www.visitbridgend.co.uk  and BCBC logos.  
 
4. Logo Identification – the right to display the BCBC logo on the welcome 
archways, digital versions of the official programme, daily drawsheet, and any 
promotional literature such as posters and flyers.  

 
5. Website Acknowledgement – inclusion of the BCBC logo on the Championship 
sponsors’ page on europeantour.com, linking to www.visitbridgend.co.uk  

 

Page 65

http://www.visitbridgend.co.uk/


 
 

6. Official Digital Programme – one full colour page of advertising and a welcome 
message from the Leader of BCBC.  

 
7. Exhibition Space – allocated space within the public tented village of the event for 
an information stand from which to promote Bridgend County. Size of exhibition 
space to be agreed.  

 
8. Admission Tickets – one hundred daily tickets for use in BCBC’s marketing 
campaign. Additional tickets may be purchased at a 50% discount.  

 
4.6 BCBC will establish a liaison group and shall invite relevant officers and a 

representative of ET. If considered appropriate external organisations may be invited 
to strengthen the partnership approach. The group will aim to provide advice and 
guidance to the ET to assist with their decision making, broker relationships between 
the ET and local stakeholders and identify opportunities in relation to local partnership 
development, business engagement and promotion and marketing for the ET to take 
forward. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no direct impact on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. It is therefore not 
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal. 

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The proposal within this report demonstrates the sustainable development principle 

by ensuring that by meeting the needs of the present they do not compromise the 
ability of future generations to meet their own needs. This is evidenced through the 
5 ways of working as follows: 

 

 Long-term: The trail will create a very timely opportunity to animate the 
destination and enhance the visitor experience and understanding of the 
area. This will foster a longer term understanding of Porthcawl and enable the 
area to raise awareness. In addition to the community, tourism and economic 
benefits there is a Golf Development programme associated with the event 
which will engage with schools across the South Wales region, which will 
support wellbeing.  
 

 Prevention: The introduction of this event into the events calendar for 
Porthcawl for 2023 will support the destination to diversify its appeal to a wider 
range of visitor target markets and thereby support the economic resilience of 
the visitor economy of the area. Events that support an active lifestyle will 
assist public bodies in providing opportunities for a greater number of people 
to take part in physical activity.  
 

 Integration: The event will support economic, social, environmental and 

Page 66



 
 

cultural outcomes through boosting the local economy, raising the profile of 
the area through media coverage, increasing tourism, fundraising, and overall 
event experience. 

 

 Collaboration: The project will be delivered by a range of partners working 
together.  As part of the wider ‘Golf Wales’ offer it will offer the opportunity to 
develop relationships with other neighboring destinations  
 

 Involvement: Planning of the event will take place in partnership with 
departments across BCBC and with private and third sector partners.  

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The Senior Open Championship 2023 liaison group will be supported by 

Communities Directorate staff resources. 
 
8.2 The proposed £50,000 contribution to the 2023 Senior Open Championship event 

will be provided through the Public Realm Fund 2022/23. The contribution of 
£50,000 shall be paid in two instalments, the first instalment of £25,000 being due 
on 1 January 2023 and the second instalment of £25,000 due on or before 31 
March 2023. 
 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:  
 

 Approve the proposed contribution of £50,000 for the purposes set out in paragraph 

4.4 above;  

 

 Delegate authority to the Corporate Director Communities, in consultation with the 

Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy and Chief 

Officer – Finance, Performance and Change to sign a Rights Agreement on behalf 

of the Council;   

 

 Authorise officers to establish and support a Senior Open Championship liaison 

group for the purposes set out in paragraph 4.6 above. 

 

Janine Nightingale  
Corporate Director - Communities 
24 January 2022 

 
Contact officer: Ieuan Sherwood 
   Group Manager: Economy, Natural Resources and Sustainability  
 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 815333 
 
 
Email:  Ieuan.Sherwood@bridgend.gov.uk 

Page 67



 
 

 
Postal address:      Bridgend County Borough Council, Communities Directorate,  

Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 

 
Background documents: None 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET  
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES  
 

A FUTURE APPROACH TO EMPLOYABILITY  
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to note the success that has been achieved and the 

difference that has been made to the lives of people throughout the County through 
the delivery of Employability Bridgend and to seek Cabinet endorsement for the 
Framework for Future Employability in the Cardiff Capital Region, which builds on the 
Cardiff Capital Region Employment and Skills plan.  The report proposes that the 
framework be used as the basis for officers to work collaboratively across the Cardiff 
Capital Region and Wales to secure suitable future resources for employability work 
that replace those previously available through European Union (EU) funds.   
The report notes that the Enterprise and Employability Manager to lead for Bridgend 
County Borough Council (BCBC) on negotiations with appropriate stakeholders in the 
development of partnership working and associated arrangements.  The report also 
notes the Corporate Director Communities, in consultation with the Corporate 
Director Education and Family Support, Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy and Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and 
Change will submit proposals to secure resources for employability through 
appropriate funds and agree partnership working and associated agreements which 
the Council are able to agree to, in line with the Scheme of Delegation.  Any resulting 
funding offers would be presented to future meetings of Cabinet as considered 
appropriate for information or decision. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 All 10 local authorities in the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) (BCBC, Vale of 

Glamorgan County Council (VGCC); Torfaen County Borough Council (TCBC); 
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council (BGCBC); City of Cardiff Council (CCC); 
Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC); Merthyr Tydfil County County Borough 
Council (MTCBC); Monmouthsire County Council (MCC); Newport City Council 
(NCC); Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council (RCTCBC) currently deliver 
employability activity to support people into employment or to help them progress to 
more sustainable or better paid employment. 

 

3.2 Since 2014, across the CCR, this has supported over 50,000 residents to secure a 
qualification and has helped almost 15,000 long-term unemployed into employment. 
Employability Bridgend has contributed to this figure by supporting 4,661 participants, 
with 1,589 of these entering employment and 1,609 receiving training to further their 
employment journey. This figure includes 410 not in Employment, Education or 
Training (NEET) from our most vulnerable communities, with 162 of these finding 
employment.  People experiencing in-work poverty have also been supported locally 
with 249 residents helped to find a better position in the labour market.  

 
3.3 Working alongside Employability Bridgend, Inspire 2 Work has also contributed 

towards this figure by supporting 876 NEET young people (aged 16 to 24 years old) 
who were classified by Careers Wales and Job Centre Plus as their ‘hardest to reach’. 
As a result of their respective intervention, 427 young people have successfully 
progressed into employment (344) or education (83).     

 
3.4 For the last two rounds of European Union (EU) funding (2007-2013 and 2014-2020) 

the employability projects run by Local Authorities, Welsh Government, Further 
Education (FE) and the third sector have largely been funded from the European 
Social Fund (ESF).  

 
3.5  The ESF programme was split between West Wales and the Valleys (BGCBC; 

BCBC; CCBC; MTCBC; RCTCBC) and East Wales (CCC; MCC; NCC) This meant 
that two sub-regional suites of projects had to be developed.  

 
3.6 The requirements of ESF funding resulted in different employability projects being 

created for long-term unemployment, short-term unemployment, NEET, in-work 
poverty and support for those with work-limiting health conditions or disabilities. This 
created a number separate projects operating concurrently in different areas within 
the CCR.  A summary of this is presented below: 

 
Summary of Recent EU-Funded Employability Programmes 
 

 Clientele Geography Improvements to 

Bridges into 
Work 

 Long-term 
unemployed 

 Age 25+ 
 

 BGCBC, TCBC, 
CCBC, BCBC, 
MTCBC 

 Non-CF* areas  

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Economic Inactivity 

Working Skills 
for Adults 

 In Employment 

 Age 16+ 

 QCF2 or lower 

 BGCBC, TCBC, 
CCBC,  BCBC, 
MTCBC 

 In work poverty / career 
progression 

Page 70



 

Nurture, Equip, 
Thrive 

 In Employment 

 Age 16+ 

 BGCBC, TCBC, 
CCBC, BCBC, 
MTCBC 

 Underemployment & 
Work limiting health 
conditions  

 Workforce development 

Journey 2 Work   Long-term 
unemployed 

 Age 25+  

 CCC, NCC, MCC 

 Non-CF areas 

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Economic Inactivity 

Skills @ Work  In Employment 

 Age 16+ 

 QCF2 or lower 

 CCC, NCC, MCC  

 Non-CF areas 
 

 In work poverty / career 
progression  

Building 
Resilience, 
Prosperity & 
Wellbeing 
(SWAW) 

 In Employment 

 Returning to Work 

 WLHC 

 RCTCBC 

 Non-CF* & CF 
areas 

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Underemployment & 
Work limiting health 
conditions  

Communities 4 
Work 

 Age 16+  

 AND QCF2 or lower; 
OR  

 WLHC; OR  

 BME; OR 

 Jobless Household 

 Whole CCR 

 CF areas 
 

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Economic Inactivity  

PACE  Economically Inactive 

 Parents 

 AND NEET 16-24 OR 
25+ 

 Non-CF 

 Whole CCR 
 

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Economic Inactivity  

ReAct  Redundant less than 
3 months  

 <16+ hours /week 
since redundancy 

 Whole CCR 
 

 Short-term 
unemployment 

 Careers advisory role 
 

Traineeships  Age 16-17  

 NEET 

 Whole CCR 
 

 Youth Unemployment 

 Careers advisory role 

Active Inclusion 
Fund 

 Age 25+ AND 

 54+ econ. inactive;  

 OR BAME & long-
term unemployed; OR 

 Carer & econ. 
inactive;  

 OR QCF2 or lower;  

 OR WLHC 

 Whole CCR 
 

 Long-term 
unemployment 

 Economic Inactivity 

 Underemployment & 
Work limiting health 
conditions  

Upskilling at 
Work 

 Employees QCF2 or 
lower 

 Whole CCR 
 

 Developing priority 
sectors 

 Career progression 

Inspire to 
Achieve  

 Age 11-16 

 At risk of NEET 

 Whole CCR (East & 
West projects) 

 At risk of NEET 

 Careers advisory role 

Inspire to Work  Age 16-24 

 NEET 

 Whole CCR (East & 
West projects) 

 Youth Unemployment 

*CF – Communities First 

 
3.7 Following the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the EU, ESF funding will no longer 

be available to support projects such as those highlighted above to deliver on-going 
benefits for individuals, communities and the economy of Bridgend County Borough.  
Those ESF funded projects that are still active are now entering a closure phase and 
all projects must close, according to EU rules, by December 2023.  

 

Page 71



 

3.8  Information provided by the UK Government Department for Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities (DLUHC) indicates that the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
is a domestic successor to the ESF programme. Information provided by the 
Industrial Communities Alliance (ICA) highlights that the UK Government has 
indicated that the UKSPF, set to be worth on average £1.5bn a year, is to come into 
operation in April 2022. This may see a degree of handover between projects 
depending of timing of launch of new activity and closure of current activity. It is 
suggested that the UKSPF will help people access opportunity in places in need, 
such as ex-industrial areas, deprived towns and rural and coastal communities, and 
for people in disadvantaged groups across the UK. However, the extent to which 
UKSPF will support employability activity is currently unclear as is the approach that 
will be taken for the allocation, distribution and delivery of UKSPF resources.    

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 In order to avoid a gap in delivery of much needed employability services it is 

important that issues relating to employability are clearly understood and articulated 
so that decisions about the UKSPF reflect the needs of the people, businesses, 
communities and economy of the County Borough and the wider CCR. 

 
4.2  To support this the CCR Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) have adopted an 

Employment and Skills Plan. This sets a clear vision of the future skills needs of the 
CCR and the activities that regional partners need to deliver to achieve this. The value 
and importance that employers place on ‘employability’ skills is clearly reflected as is 
the need to help individuals address their personal barriers to employment to avoid 
communities being excluded or marginalised in a very competitive labour market.  

 
4.3 To build on this, the 10 CCR Local Authorities have worked together to create a 

single, clear, consistent framework for future employability projects in the region 
based on a shared vision, shared principles, and common tools. 

 
4.4  The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR, which is set out in Appendix 1, 

aims to shape a shared vision for an employability service which is:  
 

 Responsive enough to rapidly changing employability trends / priorities  

 Flexible enough to still address individual barriers 

 Still aligned to local circumstances and still delivered by local teams 

 Engaged with industry to support people into more sustainable roles  

4.5 Within the framework there is a particular focus on the following challenges:  
 

 Poverty arising from unemployment, under employment and unsustainable 

employment  

 Early Interventions for young people at risk of NEET  

 Barriers to high quality sustainable employment faced by adults  

 Priority Industry Engagement  

4.6       The framework is based on shared principles, set out below, which reflect on the 
lessons learnt from over 20 years’ experience of delivering employability projects 
across the region. 

 

Page 72



 

4.6.1 Subsidiarity works: Local Authority (LA) delivered projects have great 
penetration into their target communities. LA employability teams have been 
embedded in communities for over 20 years and so have a strong understanding 
of residents’ barriers, good networks with local support organisations, and are 
delivered by experienced, well-established (and well-known) practitioners. Local 
Authority delivered projects have developed good knowledge of local labour 
markets, and good relations with local and regional employers built over many 
years. Collectively Local Authorities have networks of thousands of employers who 
engage employability as part of their recruitment. As a result, local authority teams 
have been able to select those activities which best work for the participants and 
businesses in their respective local area. 

 
4.6.2 A trusted brand: Local authority delivered projects are trusted by participants. 

Without trust, it is impossible to engage those furthest from the labour market. 
They are also trusted by local employers because of the positive impact that they 
have had on local recruitment and upskilling. 

 
4.6.3 Prevention over profitability: Local Authority led delivery has been motivated by 

tackling the root causes of participants barriers, however complex and however 
long that intervention takes. They have been successful at working as part of a 
wider Early Intervention & Prevention coalition of support agencies, employer 
networks and early intervention teams (e.g. money advice, benefits, foodbanks, 
English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) provision, volunteering 
agencies, adult learning, children’s services, education welfare, housing and 
health & wellbeing advisory services) to help participants. 

 
4.6.4 Continuity of provision is valuable and cost-effective: Under current EU 

programmes Local Authority employability teams employ support workers, 
counsellors and employment liaison officers. Many have developed networks in their 
local area over 20 years. Collectively there are hundreds of years of experience and 
local knowledge that would be lost if employability projects were to end. In a 
profession that relies on building long-term 1:1 relationships with clients, the loss of 
this expertise could take decades to recover. Add to this the financial cost of 
decommissioning existing services (office costs, redundancy costs, re-branding) 
and it is clear that continuity between projects significantly improves the short and 
long-term cost-effectiveness for the region. 

 
4.6.5 Shared learning adds value: Over the past two decades strong networks have 

emerged between employability projects, training providers, higher and further 
education institutions, the voluntary sector and the business community. Local 
Authority led provision is effective at working in partnership to deliver in areas where 
partners have greater expertise, experience of knowledge. 

 
4.6.6 Decades of progress towards real change: Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, 

regional qualifications levels were rising and unemployment was low. Youth 
employability teams were able to implement a 10-year preventative approach 
(through successive projects like Prevent, Lift and Inspire) which is benefitting a 
generation of young people. As a result of intervention, NEET figures were amongst 
their lowest ever. 

 
4.6.7 Simplified Costs has reduced bureaucracy: During the 2014-2020 ESF 

programme, the EU introduced a model of simplified costs called “FR40” which has 

Page 73



 

had a significant and positive impact on efficiency. FR40 essentially pays 40% of 
the total staffing costs to the provider to create a fund that can be used for all other 
non-staffing costs. This allows for the creation of a flexible barriers and training fund 
that can be tailored to the individual project participants. Local Authorities can now 
design interventions around a participant’s needs and not around a pre-conceived 
list of compliant purchases. 

 
4.6.8 Assess participants for their “employability” journey, not their “project” 

journey: Currently a participant is assessed when they enter each project. Each 
uses a different approach to determine eligibility and to assess what support to 
provide to a participant. To some extent this is necessary – the questions asked of 
an 11 or 16 year-old will be different from those asked of a 30 or 50 year-old. But 
there should be more commonality between and coordination of assessment tools 
so that a client can seamlessly move in and out of support at key stages in their 
employability journey. 

 
4.6.9 Flexible outcomes: Whilst FR40 has made project delivery more flexible, the current 

ESF funded programmes are still rigid in their outcomes. The Covid-19 pandemic has 
again highlighted the need for employability to adapt quickly to changing labour 
market conditions and priorities (e.g. the flexibility to switch from economic inactivity 
to unemployment; from long-term unemployment to short-term unemployment; or 
from unemployment to under-employment). The end of EU funding requirements 
means that apprenticeships, further learning and volunteering (as stepping stones to 
employment) could all become more acceptable progression outcomes. Moreover, 
flexible outcomes can be better aligned to the regional labour market and 
demography. 

 
4.6.10 One Framework, but not necessarily one Project: Some projects (particularly 

Communities 4 Work (C4W)/+) are wider than just employability. Others (particularly 
the Inspire 2 Achieve reduction of at risk of NEET project) require specialist 
interventions. Whilst these interact with an employability project, they may also sit 
alongside rather than within it. They are however, part of the overall employability 
approach. 

 
4.6.11 Not just a job, but a sustainable job: - closer alignment with industry. There is 

substantial change taking place in the economic base of the CCR, accelerated by 
Covid-19. The employability ‘skills’ needed to work in this emerging economy are also 
likely to evolve. With the adoption of a regional Employment and Skills Plan, and 
cluster groups in priority sectors, there is an unique opportunity to improve the 
alignment between project design and the demands of industry in the local area whilst 
supporting participants into fair, long-term employment. Analysis has already 
commenced with Data Cymru and the Regional Skills Partnerships on entry level 
opportunities within the priority sectors. 

 

4.7 Delivery of the Framework for Future Employability in the CCR relies on the use of 
common approaches, particularly at 5 key transition points:  

 

1. The interface with Pre-16 NEET prevention activity  

2. Recruitment and engagement of participants 

3. Triage and caseworker allocation: understanding the goal and the support 

available 

Page 74



 

4. Client assessment process: assessing barriers and what a participant can 

do.  

5. The menu of support and intervention: co-designing and delivering the 

intervention 

 

4.8 The diagram below shows a representation of the key components of the framework 
and will simplify the experience for both residents and employers.  

 
  

 
 
 
4.9 It is proposed that Cabinet endorse the Framework for Future Employability in the 

CCR, which builds on the CCR Employment and Skills plan, and for that Framework 
to be used as the basis for officers to work collaboratively across the CCR and Wales 
to secure suitable future resources for employability work that replace those 
previously available through EU funds.   

 
4.10 DLUHC have stated that the Community Renewal Fund (CRF) is a pilot ahead of 

UKSPF. Therefore, lessons learnt, the model of working and experience developed 
through the Community Renewal Fund (CRF) project CELT as reported to Cabinet 
on the 18th January 2022, will form part of the basis for securing future resources.  

 
4.11 If, as is anticipated, details on the UKSPF are to be set out in the Levelling Up White 

Paper, and if the fund is to commence at the start of April 2022, BCBC needs to be 
in a position to respond accordingly and promptly – to assess the announcement, to 
identify opportunities, and to develop proposals for consideration.  

 
4.12 Cabinet is asked to note that BCBC’s Enterprise and Employability Manager will lead 

for BCBC on negotiations with appropriate stakeholders in the development of 
partnership working and associated arrangements based on the principle of a 
collaborative locally delivered, regionally coordinated approach to employability post-
EU through the Local Authority (LA) Cluster Group outlined in Appendix 1.  

 
4.13 Cabinet is  also asked to note that in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation the 

Corporate Director Communities, in consultation with the Corporate Director – 
Education and Family Support, Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory Services, HR 
and Corporate Policy and Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change will 
submit proposals to secure resources through the UKSPF and other appropriate 

Page 75



 

funds around employability and any other projects developed around employability in 
accordance with the framework in Appendix 1 and agree any consequential 
partnership working and associated agreements which the Council has the power to 
agree to.  Any resulting funding offers would be presented to future meetings of 
Cabinet as considered appropriate.     

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no direct impact on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. 
It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal at this 
stage. 

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR demonstrates the sustainable 

development principle by ensuring that by meeting the needs of the present they do 
not compromise the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. This is 
evidenced through the 5 ways of working as follows: 

 

 Long term – endorsement of the Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 

seeks to understand and mitigate the long-term implications on Bridgend County 

Borough residents of the withdrawal of EU funding for employability by seeking 

alternate funding.  

 Prevention – working with partners to identify potential replacement funding 

opportunities. 

 Integration – The endorsement of the Framework for Future Employability in the 

CCR to the well-being goals: An Equal Wales, a Prosperous Wales, and a Healthier 

Wales.  It contributes to the well-being objective of Reducing Social and Economic 

Inequalities. 

 Collaboration – the success of the Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 

and any future employability projects relies on collaboration with partners across the 

CCR region including local authorities, Department for Work and Pensions and 

Welsh Government. 

 Involvement – a significant element of the Framework for Future Employability in 

the CCR involves engaging with local residents, their families and communities. 

8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 Endorsement of the Framework for Future Employability in the CCR is not considered 

at this time to have any direct financial implications for BCBC. 
 
8.2 It is considered that work to undertake negotiations with appropriate stakeholders in 

the development of partnership working and associated agreements will be 
undertaken using existing revenue budgets within the Communities Directorate.   

Page 76



 

 
8.3 In noting that the Corporate Director Communities, in consultation with the Corporate 

Director – Education and Family Support, Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy and Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and 
Change will submit proposals to secure resources for employability through 
appropriate funds and agree partnership working and associated agreements it is 
noted that an element of match funding may be required from BCBC.  As it is not yet 
known at this stage what finance would be required it is considered that any match 
funding requirement would be confirmed by the Corporate Director Communities, in 
consultation with Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate 
Policy and Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change prior to submission in 
line with the Authority’s Grant Financial Management Policy.  

 
8.4 Any resulting funding offers would be presented to future meetings of Cabinet as 

considered appropriate. 
 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

 Notes the success that has been achieved, and the difference that has been 

made to the lives of people throughout the County, through the delivery of 

Employability Bridgend; 

 

 Approves the Framework for Future Employability in the CCR as set out in 

Appendix 1, which builds on the CCR Employment and Skills plan, and 

agrees that the framework be used as the basis for officers to work 

collaboratively across the CCR and Wales to secure suitable future resources 

for employability work that replace those resources previously available 

through EU funds;   

 

 Notes that the Enterprise and Employability Manager will lead on negotiations 

with appropriate stakeholders through the LA Cluster Group set out in 

Appendix 1 in the development of partnership working and associated 

arrangements based on the principle of a collaborative locally delivered, 

regionally coordinated approach to employability post-EU; 

 

 Notes that in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation the Corporate 

Director Communities, in consultation with the Corporate Director – Education 

and Family Support, Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and 

Corporate Policy and Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change will 

submit proposals to secure resources through the UKSPF and other 

appropriate funds around employability and any other projects developed 

around employability in accordance with the framework in Appendix 1 and 

agree any consequential partnership working and associated agreements 

which the Council has the power to agree to;   

Page 77



 

 

 Notes that any resulting funding offers will be presented to future meetings of 

Cabinet as considered appropriate. 

 
Janine Nightingale  
Corporate Director – Communities  
25 January 2022 
 

 
Contact officer: Ieuan Sherwood 

Group Manager: Economy, Natural Resources and Sustainability  
 
Telephone:  (01656) 815333 
 
Email:  Ieuan.Sherwood@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:      Bridgend County Borough Council, Communities Directorate,  

Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 

 
Background documents:   
None.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
In 2019 the Cardiff Capital Regional Skills Partnership adopted its Employment and Skills Plan. This 

sets a clear vision of the future skills needs of the City Region and the activities that regional partners 

need to deliver to achieve this.  

Employability features strongly. The value and importance that employers place on ‘employability’ 

skills is clearly reflected. So too is the need to help individuals address their personal barriers to 

employment to avoid communities being “left behind” in a very competitive labour market. With the 

impact of the Covid-19 pandemic now being felt in the economy and labour market, employability is 

more important now than ever.  

There is recognition too of the important role and impact of Local Authority employability projects. 

With expertise built up over 20 years, the projects epitomise the benefits of subsidiarity and 

devolution. They are delivered as close as possible to the citizen. They are flexible making them highly 

responsive to local labour market changes. They are focussed on the personal needs of the client and 

not the need to generate profit. They create a long-term relationship with thousands of clients, helping 

people into work, to remain in work, and to progress into better paid work at various stages in their 

lives. They work together, solving problems in partnership with each other and with other early 

intervention and prevention services. They are respected and trusted by residents.  

The end of EU funding is an opportunity to learn lessons: to remove some of the artificial barriers, 

constraints and bureaucracy. It is an opportunity to shape a new long-term local authority-led 

employability programme. But with EU funding ending in 2022, there is a need to do so quickly.   

In this context, this discussion paper considers: 

• The lessons learnt from employability delivery during the EU programmes 
 

• The achievements and impact of locally-led employability programmes  
 

• CCR labour market challenges and the “new context” for future employability 

And concludes with the principles of a future employability approach:  

o Local Authority-led delivery using… 

o … a common approach to “pre-assessment & engagement” and… 

o … a common “Triage system” and… 

o … a common “Assessment Toolkit” and … 

o … a common but flexible “menu of support & interventions” 

  

Shaping Employability to Achieve the Vision of the CCR 

Employment & Skills Plan  

A Discussion Paper from the RSP Cluster Group  
 

Page 79



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

What is Employability?  
At its core, employability is about removing an individual’s barriers to finding, maintaining or 

progressing in sustainable employment whatever that barrier may be. This could be skills (general or 

occupationally specific), it could be job readiness/awareness, or it could be the availability of support.  

Employability programmes target the individual but they impact on families, communities, employers 

and the economy too. From an employer’s perspective, staff with the right skills, knowledge and 

attitude can “hit the ground running” and can introduce new thinking on products and processes 

adding significant value for the company. At a macro-economic scale, employability programmes can 

help prepare the workforce to move from lower demand to higher demand (or higher value) 

occupations.   

Consequently, employability programmes have a positive impact on various economic policy 

objectives including:  

• Early intervention & prevention 

• Child poverty 

• Young people at risk of becoming NEET 

• Preparation for work and long-term unemployment  

• Youth unemployment 

• Short-term unemployment 

• Economic integration of refugees (e.g. REACH) 

• Under-employment and work-limiting health conditions 

• Maximising income, in-work poverty & progression 

• Workforce development and employee retention 

• Preparation for entry into RSP priority sectors 

 

With such wide impacts, employability is well-reflected in several national strategies and policy 

documents:  

• CCR Industrial and Economic Growth Plan: “We must… target our most deprived 

and isolated communities and support regenerative growth… GVA per capita remains 

low, like other regions in the UK. Participation rates - the proportion of the population 

that is economically-active - could be higher” 

 

• UK Industrial Strategy:  “We need to narrow disparities between communities in 

skills and education and remove barriers faced by workers from underrepresented 

groups in realising their potential.” 

 

• WG Employability Plan:  “It is one of the prime responsibilities of Government to 

educate, train and prepare people for the world of work and to remove barriers which 

prevent people from accessing work so that they can make a contribution to society.” 
 

“We are creating a new service, the Employment Advice Gateway, to provide 

employment-related advice and guidance to people in Wales… Careers Wales will be 

given an enhanced role to operate the Employment Advice Gateway” 

 

Getting  
Involved 

Becoming More 
Employable 

Getting  
a Job 

Staying  
in a Job 

Progressing in 
Employment 

Page 80



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

• WG Programme for Government: “Low skill levels are the single biggest barrier to 

building the Welsh economy we want, and often the biggest barrier for individuals in 

securing meaningful work. It is critical we tailor skills support to individuals’ needs, 

while addressing other barriers such as poor health, transport and caring 

responsibilities to drive up prosperity levels for all.” 

We will deliver the Young Persons Guarantee, giving everyone under 25 the offer of 

work, education, training, or self-employment.” 

• WG: Regional Framework in Wales After Brexit: [What works] “Unemployed 

participants on EU-funded employability projects are 46 per cent more likely to find 

work over twelve months than non-participants. Economically inactive participants 

are 84 per cent more likely to find work than similar economically inactive people who 

have not benefited from this support” 

 

• WG: A More Equal Wales: Preparing for the commencement of the Socio-

economic duty. Socio-economic disadvantage leads to inequality of outcome 

including lower paid work and poorer skills and attainment.  

 

• WG: Wellbeing of Future Generations Act: “Applying the well-being goals can help 

tackle poverty as it helps you identify where the main determinants of poverty exist, 

how they work together and what opportunities there might be.” 

 

• One Million Welsh Speakers:  “The evidence received suggests that there is a 

demand for a bilingual workforce to meet business and customer needs; this can be 

addressed by developing the linguistic skills and confidence to meet the requirements 

of businesses.”  “Employers in the Childcare sector were the most likely of all sectors 

to consider Welsh language skills important. 84 per cent considered such skills 

important, and 42 per cent ‘very important’.  

 

• Youth Engagement and Progression Framework: “The recently published Tackling 

Poverty plan clearly identifies that reducing the number of young people who are not 

engaged in education, employment or training (NEET) will have a long-term impact 

on the lives of not just today’s young people, but generations to come. The cost of not 

addressing this issue is not just economic, but impacts on levels of unemployment, 

under employment, crime, well-being, substance misuse, premature death and early 

motherhood.”  

What have Employability Programmes Achieved?  
It is well-established that reducing unemployment and economic inactivity, improving skills levels and 

equipping workers with the ambition to progress in their careers is one of the principal drivers of 

regional productivity growth. Employability programmes in the Cardiff City Region have helped 

thousands of people to improve their skills, gain new qualifications and enter / progress in 

employment.  

 

 

 

‘2014-2020 Structural Funds’ in the CCR 

The projects supported 14,522 long-term unemployed into 

employment and 51,127 to gain qualifications 

Page 81



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

For over 20 years local authority led programmes have had success in deprived communities; success 

working in partnership with the third and private sectors; success working with young people and with 

vulnerable adults. Highlights include  

 

But the statistics do not show the full impact of these interventions. It is well-established that 

employability programmes have a high social return on investment. A 2012 evaluation of 

employability programmes showed cashable impacts across various government departments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

‘2014-2020 projects’  

in Bridgend 

Programmes have collectively 

helped 12,299 participants 

with 1534 gaining 

employment and 5756 gaining 

qualifications 

‘’2014-2020 Projects’ 
in Torfaen 

Programmes have collectively 

helped 12,456 participants 

with 1,580 gaining 

employment and 5,313 
gaining qualifications 

 

‘Journey to Work’ in 

Cardiff 

A small team of 6 staff have 

helped 517 long-term 

unemployed tackle 
employability barriers securing 

employment for 143 and 

qualifications for 131 

‘Voluntary Sector 

Options’ in Merthyr 

Working in partnership with the 
third sector to secure 

employment for hard to reach 
residents. Achieved job entry 
rates for participants of over 

60%  

‘Youth Employability  in 
RCT 

Over 1,687 young people at 

risk of NEET have been 

supported with 568 gaining 

long-term employment.  

‘Inspire’ in 

Monmouthshire 

Working with 11-24 year olds 
since 2014, the Inspire 

programmes have helped 872 
young people at risk of NEET 

with 226 gaining qualifications.  

Taken from a 2012 SROI assessment of the “Ready for 

Work” Employability Project: 

https://www.socialvalueuk.org/app/uploads/2016/06/socia

lreturn.pdf  

 

 

Page 82

https://www.socialvalueuk.org/app/uploads/2016/06/socialreturn.pdf
https://www.socialvalueuk.org/app/uploads/2016/06/socialreturn.pdf


Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

Closer to home, a 2019 social return on investment study for RCT showed a net social impact of 

£2,080,078 on the £405,000 Inspire to Work project alone. A social return on investment of £5.10 for 

every £1 spent.   

 

 

 

Nor do they show the impact on individuals:  

Monmouthshire Inspires to Achieve  

In Spring 2016, Monmouthshire Inspire to Achieve (I2A) was asked to intervene to 

support a year 9 boy (“X”) who was not attending school. He had a turbulent family 

background, no contact with his dad and had recently seen his older sister sectioned 

under the Mental Health Act leading a severe decline in his own mental health. “X” 

withdrew from all facets of life and was becoming increasingly violent.  His school 

attendance fell to 30% with 56% unauthorised absence. At this point I2A was asked to 

intervene.  

“X” continued to work towards core subjects in school whilst receiving pastoral support 

for his emotional needs and employability skills support from I2A. Through intense 1:1 

support, “X” and his case worker have developed a trusting and effective relationship 

which has identified his barriers to employment and has significantly reduced his 

anxiety and improved his confidence. He is now close to completing a BTEC L2 

Qualification in Work Skills (ahead of his peers) and his attendance has increased to 

almost 90% (a 200% increase). He now has the ambition to progress into a career in 

advertising and design.  

 

Torfaen Bridges into Work helps land Dream Job 

In Winter 2020, Torfaen Bridges into Work (BiW2) supported Andrew Wilkinson into his 

dream job. Andrew was paralysed from the chest down following a road traffic accident 

18 years ago. Prior to his accident he worked as a full-time scaffolder. Considered as 

long term unemployed and having no formal qualifications, he contacted BiW2, where 

he received support from Employment Mentors who helped him to build his confidence, 

develop his CV, complete online qualification and ultimately to secure a job as an 

assistive technologist at Rookwood Hospital – the hospital that provided him with 

treatment following his accident. 
 

How employability has been delivered in CCR 
The project-based nature of EU structural funding led to a plethora of employability programmes, 

each based on the principles above, but targeting a different clientele, geography, or employability 

outcome and using slightly different models, assessment tools and interventions. 

To add to the complexity, there are many wider programmes that have an employability component, 

including: DWP Restart, DWP Kickstart, and Communities 4 Work+. This is alongside the Working 

Wales service that provides an independent careers information, advice, coaching and signposting 

service that incorporates referrals to the full breadth of  employability and other provision 

“RCT I2W:   A social return on investment of £5.10 for every £1.00 spent” 

Page 83



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

Summary of Recent EU-Funded Employability Programmes 
 

 Clientele Geography Outcome 
Bridges into Work • Long-term unemployed 

• Age 25+ 
 

• BGCBC, TCBC, CCBC, 
BCBC, MTCBC 

• Non-CF* areas  

• Long-term unemployment 

• Economic Inactivity 

Working Skills for 
Adults 

• In Employment 

• Age 16+ 

• QCF2 or lower 

• BGCBC, TCBC, CCBC,  
BCBC, MTCBC 

• In work poverty / career 
progression 

Nurture, Equip, 
Thrive 

• In Employment 

• Age 16+ 

• BGCBC, TCBC, CCBC, 
BCBC, MTCBC 

• Underemployment & Work 
limiting health conditions  

• Workforce development 

Journey 2 Work  • Long-term unemployed 

• Age 25+  

• CCC, NCC, MCC 

• Non-CF areas 

• Long-term unemployment 

• Economic Inactivity 

Skills @ Work • In Employment 

• Age 16+ 

• QCF2 or lower 

• CCC, NCC, MCC  

• Non-CF areas 
 

• In work poverty / career 
progression  

Building Resilience, 
Prosperity & 
Wellbeing (SWAW) 

• In Employment 

• Returning to Work 

• WLHC 

• RCTCBC 

• Non-CF* & CF areas 

• Long-term unemployment 

• Underemployment & Work 
limiting health conditions  

Communities 4 
Work 

• Age 16+  

• AND QCF2 or lower; OR  

• WLHC; OR  

• BME; OR 

• Jobless Household 

• Whole CCR 

• CF areas 
 

• Long-term unemployment 

• Economic Inactivity  

PACE • Economically Inactive 

• Parents 

• AND NEET 16-24 OR 
25+ 

• Non-CF 

• Whole CCR 
 

• Long-term unemployment 

• Economic Inactivity  

ReAct • Redundant less than 3 
months  

• <16+ hours /week since 
redundancy 

• Whole CCR 
 

• Short-term unemployment 

• Careers advisory role 
 

Traineeships • Age 16-17  

• NEET 

• Whole CCR 
 

• Youth Unemployment 

• Careers advisory role 

Active Inclusion 
Fund 

• Age 25+ AND 

• 54+ econ. inactive;  

• OR BAME & long-term 
unemployed; OR 

• Carer & econ. inactive;  

• OR QCF2 or lower;  

• OR WLHC 

• Whole CCR 
 

• Long-term unemployment 

• Economic Inactivity 

• Underemployment & Work 
limiting health conditions  

Upskilling at Work • Employees QCF2 or 
lower 

• Whole CCR 
 

• Developing priority sectors 

• Career progression 

Inspire to Achieve  • Age 11-16 

• At risk of NEET 

• Whole CCR (East & 
West projects) 

• At risk of NEET 

• Careers advisory role 

Inspire to Work • Age 16-24 

• NEET 

• Whole CCR (East & 
West projects) 

• Youth Unemployment 

*CF – Communities First 

Page 84



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

Each employability project relies on staff resource to deliver or procure the appropriate mix of 

interventions that address their participants’ barriers and achieve the project outcome. In some cases 

this involves specialist referrals to other programmes. These staffing roles / interventions / specialist 

referrals are summarised below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lessons Learnt from the EU Programmes 

What has Worked Well? 
 

• Subsidiarity works: Local Authority delivered projects have great penetration into their target 

communities. LA employability teams have been embedded in communities for over 20 years and 

so have a strong understanding of residents’ barriers, good networks with local support 

organisations, and are delivered by well-established (and well-known) practitioners.  
 

• Local knowledge is crucial: Local Authority delivered projects have developed good knowledge of 

local labour markets, and good relations with local and regional employers built over many years. 

Collectively we have networks of thousands of employers who engage employability as part of 

their recruitment. Importantly, Local Authorities also have a strong understanding of the emerging 

employment opportunities in their local area.   
 

• A trusted brand: Local authority delivered projects are trusted by participants. Without trust, it is 

impossible to engage those furthest from the labour market.  
 

• Prevention over profitability: Local Authority led delivery has been motivated by tackling the root 

causes of participants barriers, however complex and however long that intervention takes. They 

have been successful at working as part of a wider Early Intervention & Prevention coalition of 

support agencies, employer networks and early intervention teams (e.g. money advice, benefits, 

foodbanks, ESOL provision, volunteering agencies, adult learning, children’s services, education 

welfare, housing and health & wellbeing advisory services) to help participants.  
 

Health & Wellbeing Support 

Financial Inclusion Officers 

Design & Deliver Qualifications (e.g. Agored) 

Delivery of courses via accredited 

centres (e.g. Pearsons, Highfields) 

Specialist referral: Prison leavers 

Counsellors Volunteering 

FE Referrals  

Job Prep / Employment Support 

Barriers Fund 

Post-16 Youth Worker Support 

Workers 
Pre-16 Youth Support Workers 

Staff Resource Interventions / Activities Specialist Referrals 

Specialist referral: LAC 

Specialist referral: Learning difficulties 

Work Placements 

Specialist referral: work limiting 

health condition 

 

 

Employer Liaison Officers 

Page 85



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

• Continuity of provision is valuable and cost-effective: Under current EU programmes Local 

Authority employability teams employ 100s of support workers, counsellors and employment 

liaison officers. Many have developed networks in their local area over 20 years. Collectively there 

are hundreds of years of experience and local knowledge that would be lost if employability 

programmes were to end. In a profession that relies on building long-term 1:1 relationships with 

clients, the loss of this expertise could take decades to recover. Add to this the financial cost of 

decommissioning existing services (office costs, redundancy costs, re-branding) and it is clear that 

continuity between programmes significantly improves the short and long-term cost-

effectiveness for the region  
 

• Shared learning adds value: Over the past two decades strong networks have emerged between 

employability programmes, training providers, higher and further education institutions, the 

voluntary sector and the business community. Local Authority led provision is effective at working 

in partnership to deliver in areas where partners’ have greater expertise, experience of 

knowledge.  
 

• Decades of progress towards real change: Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, regional qualifications 

levels were rising, unemployment was low. Youth employability teams were able to implement a 

10-year preventative approach (through successive programmes like Prevent, Lift and Inspire) 

which is benefitting a generation of young people. As a result of intervention, NEET figures were 

amongst their lowest ever. 
 

• Simplified Costs has reduced bureaucracy: The FR40 simplified costs model used during the 2014-

2020 programmes has had a significant impact on efficiency. This essentially creates a barriers and 

training fund for project participants. Local Authorities can now design interventions around a 

participant’s needs and not around a pre-conceived list of compliant purchases.  

 

What could be improved? 
 

• Assess participants for their “employability” journey, not their “project” journey: Currently a 

participant is assessed when they enter each project. Each uses a different approach to determine 

eligibility and to assess what support to provide to a participant. To some extent this is necessary 

– the questions asked of an 11 or 16 year-old will be different from those asked of a 30 or 50 year 

old. But there should be more commonality between and coordination of assessment tools so that 

a client can move seamlessly in and out of support at key stages in their employability journey.  
 

• Flexible outcomes: Whilst FR40 has made project delivery more flexible, the current ESF-funded 

programmes are still rigid in their outcomes. The Covid-19 pandemic has again highlighted the 

need for employability to adapt quickly to changing labour market conditions and priorities (e.g. 

the flexibility to switch from economic inactivity to unemployment; from long-term 

unemployment to short-term unemployment; or from unemployment to under-employment). 

The end of EU funding requirements means that apprenticeships, further learning and 

volunteering could all become more acceptable progression outcomes. 
 

• One Framework, but not necessarily one Programme: Some programmes (particularly C4W/+) 

are wider than just employability. Others (particularly the Inspire 2 Achieve reduction of risk of 

NEET programme) require specialist interventions. Whilst these interact with an employability 

programme, they may also sit alongside rather than within it.  
 

Page 86



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

• Hide ‘even more’ of the wiring: Each project currently has strong brand identity amongst their 

clients, but the sheer number of brands can create confusion. There are examples of good practice 

in “hiding the wiring” (creating a seamless experience for a participant) within individual local 

authorities, but as a region there are still too many brands for employability alone (let alone 

complementary national programmes like Communities 4 Work/+, Jobs Growth Wales or Restart). 

There should be a clearer brand hierarchy, fewer brands, and a more consistent and universally 

accepted approach to triage across all employability interventions in the CCR. 
 

• Closer alignment with industry: We want to move from projects which focus on ‘how do I support 

an individual into a job’ to ‘how do I support an individual into a sustainable job’ There is 

substantial change taking place in the economic base of the CCR, accelerated by Covid-19. The 

employability ‘skills’ needed to work in this emerging economy are also likely to evolve. With the 

adoption of a regional Employment and Skills Plan, and cluster groups in priority sectors, we face 

a unique opportunity to improve the alignment between our programme design and the demands 

of industry. There are some good innovative ideas:  
 

o E-learning modules for employability staff so that they are better placed to understand 
and therefore direct support towards priority sectors. 
 

o “Try before you qualify” model, supporting employability candidates into the workplace 
in priority sector roles before they make a decision on which qualification route to pursue.  

 

The Future Context for Employability  
The Covid-19 pandemic has brought into sharp focus the scale of the employability challenge. 
Structural changes are taking place in the economy at a rate not seen for decades with some well-
established sectors declining rapidly.  

The following represent opportunities / threats to the delivery of employability support:  

• Brexit: The impact of Brexit on the industrial base of the CCR remains uncertain. Pre-departure 
assessments highlighted a high risk to the South Wales economy with its relatively high 
proportions of manufacturing employment and personal/financial services. Brexit impacts do not 
yet appear to be impacting on the labour market, but any decline in manufacturing employment 
will impact on the number of opportunities for employability clients. 
 

• Retail & Customer Service: Even before Covid-19 restrictions the retail sector was transitioning 
away from bricks and mortar premises in town and city centres. Retail is one of the most popular 
and accessible routes from our employability programmes and any decline in retail employment 
will impact on opportunities for employability clients. The shift online (accelerated by Covid-19) 
will create other opportunities – in delivery and warehousing occupations in particular – but the 
propensity of these workplaces to cluster near to major transport routes will impact on the 
accessibility of any vacancies to employability clients. This is a particularly acute risk for young 
people at risk of becoming NEET. 
 

• Automation and Industry 4.0: The CCR Industrial Strategy recognises a regional strength in 
advanced manufacturing and seeks to promote growth and innovation within key manufacturing 
sub-sectors (including medical devices and diagnostics, compound semi-conductors and transport 
engineering). The extent to which automation will reduce employment in South Wales’ largely 
SME manufacturers is unclear, but there is clearly a need to prepare employability programmes 
for the impact of a reduced number of lower-skilled occupations within these sectors. This will 
require better employability pathways, improved perceptions of the sector amongst clients and a 
stronger link between employability and technical skills.  
 

Page 87



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

• Human Foundational Economy: The Human Foundational Economy includes several priority 
sectors for the CCR RSP and has continued potential as a strong source of vacancies for 
employability clients. But there is a risk that these roles may perpetuate a low-wage economy and 
a need for employability programmes to engage with the sector to promote fair work, improve 
job security, improve the reputation of the sector and stimulate progression opportunities.  
 

• Covid-19: labour market tightening: The Covid-19 pandemic has forced many businesses to either 
cease trading temporarily or adjust their business model. Schemes like the Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme (furlough) and relief funds have to date limited the number of redundancies, 
but there remain risks to the labour market as this support is gradually withdrawn. At the peak of 
the pandemic, the ratio between claimants and vacancies rose substantially, and further such 
peaks may be seen. Any tightening of the labour market is likely to reduce opportunities for 
employability clients. In addition, employability teams are likely to be working with a more diverse 
range of clients, many of whom may not have previously been unemployed and may need to reskill 
/ upskill. The extent to which demand on employability services will increase post Covid is, as yet, 
unknown 
 

• Covid-19: The psychological barriers: Research conducted with children and young people by the 
Children’s Commissioners Office shows that young people’s emotional and psychological 
wellbeing has been severely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. This is highly likely to ‘present’ 
as an additional barrier to employment amongst the most vulnerable and may affect their ability 
to achieve their potential in education and/or to sustain employment. 

 

An Employability Framework Fit for the Future 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The priorities for future delivery 
 

Reflecting on the context, on what has worked well, and on the lessons from earlier 

programmes, any future employability approach for the CCR should:  
 

• Use a single long-term employability “model” which can rapidly respond to changeable 

policy priorities, but is flexible enough to cater to individual barriers and needs…… 
 

• …… as the basis for designing common programmes together and with our partners across 

the region which address our three principal employability themes: “flexible employability 

support”; “anti-poverty interventions” and “early intervention for young people at risk of 

becoming NEET” …… 
 

• …… which would include a common triage process, a “single front door” that ‘hides the 

wiring’, and common participant assessment tools …… 
 

• …… and which would be delivered by teams in each of the 10 LAs with the flexibility to 

directly deliver, procure or refer participants onto a range of approved interventions …… 
 

• …… funded through the Levelling Up Programme or other similar funds…… 
 

• …… alongside activity to work with the RSP cluster groups to design pre-employment 

pathways for priority sectors.  
 

• ……with the aim to give the region the direction, stability and maturity to collectively 

engage with or bid for other emerging contracts (e.g. Kickstart, CAEHRS, Jobs Growth 

Wales+, apprenticeship programmes)……  Page 88



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

The Pre-Assessment Process 

The pre assessment engagement process is about reaching out to individuals, supporting them into 
regular activity and positive routines, and helping them to connect with others. 

Many economically inactive and unemployed individuals are not actively engaged with employability 
services. This may be because they are not interested in working, have had poor experiences of 
employability services in the past, or are unaware of the range of services available. 

To overcome this lack of engagement, a number of mechanisms will be used to reach out to 
individuals and engage them in employability services. These include: 

• Pro-active marketing.  
• Effective location of services 
• Community outreach workers 
• Partnership working with community organisations.  
• Co-location of services. 
• Adopting area-based approach and client group-based approach 

 
Upon engagement, Triage officers will begin the Triage process to identify the most suitable provision 
for the client. 
 

The Triage Process 

A triage process is an integral feature of employability programmes to successfully refer a client to 

the project which can best support the skills, needs and circumstances of the client and for which 

the client is eligible. Under the proposed framework, all 10 authorities, and partner organisations, 

will design a common, collective, consistent approach to triage. 

In practice the client or referral body completes, with the client’s agreement, an expression of 

interest which is sent to a Triage Officer. The Triage Officer must fully understand all the provision in 

the area, what that provision can achieve for the client and then assesses the details of the client 

that have been provided. If there are areas which need further clarification the Triage Officer would 

contact the client to ask for more details. When the Triage Officer is confident they have that level of 

detail which allows them to make a sound judgment they refer to the most suitable provision for the 

client in that locality.  

The Triage Officer would notify the referrer that the client had been triaged to the particular project. 

The receiving agency would be asked to notify Triage when the client is successfully enrolled on the 

provision. Should the Mentor on that project undertake assessment  with that client and determine 

that the provision is unsuitable for that clients needs they would refer back to the Triage Officer with 

any  new information which would able the Triage Officer to make a new provision.  

When clients complete their time on a particular project, for example they get a job, and would 

leave that project a judgment must be made if there is other provision which could continue to meet 

the clients needs, for example in work support, a referral back to Triage or at least informing Triage 

that a referral is made to another project is key so the clients employability journey can be tracked. 

Many clients are re-referred to provision and seeing what schemes they have successfully or 

unsuccessfully completed helps inform Triage Officers when making the next referral and ensures 

that the client is eligible for that provision.  

Page 89



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

The Client Assessment Process 

The model below provides a comprehensive and complete range of employment and skills 

interventions coordinated by the RSP. The ability to seamlessly link the client’s journey, whatever 

their age, from their first engagement with employment and skills provision, demonstrates a model 

of local integration and delivery of services, which maximises benefits for clients. The various stages 

of the model below allow a client to re-engage at various stages of their employability journey. This 

section provides further information about the pipeline, and the different stages and interventions 

within it. 

 

 

   

Readiness 

 Design the Interventions 

 

 Assess the Goal  

(1) Getting  
Involved 

(2) Becoming 
More Employable 

(3) Getting  
a Job 

(4) Staying  
in a Job 

(5) Progressing 
in Employment 

Assess the Barriers 

Page 90



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

Alignment to Other Provision 

An employability programme should not be developed in isolation from the wider skills provision in 

the CCR to ensure that participants can readily and seamlessly access specialist support, and, 

importantly, to provide opportunities for participants to progress into more technical skills 

development activities in priority sectors. 

The following conversations should be prioritised during programme design: 

 

• Communities 4 Work(+):National anti-poverty programmes have wider objectives which can 

complement the employability proposals in this discussion paper. In some LAs the projects may 

be delivered under the same management structures. Discussions should focus on a 

shared/consistent approach to branding, triage, and assessment.  
 

• NEET prevention: Any successor programme to Inspire 2 Achieve will be an important feeder 

into the employability programme. Discussions should focus on the referral process from Inspire 

2 Achieve into the employability programme.  
 

• RSP Priority Sector Cluster Groups: Learning the lessons from previous EU programmes, the 

successor employability framework will need to establish a clear pathway into each sector for 

employability clients. This will need to consider the requirements of entry level job roles as well 

as technical skills requirements. This work – looking at starter roles – is now underway jointly 

between the local authorities and the RSP team. 
 

• Working Wales & School’s Employer Engagement: The creation of Working Wales and the launch 

of Jobs Growth Wales+ creates an opportunity to join up “careers & aspirations” workstreams 

with employability programmes. There are already pockets of good practice focussed on STEM in 

schools (BGCBC) and coordination of opportunities for young people (Cardiff Commitment).  
 

• Further Education Provision & Technical Skills: Upskilling / reskilling is likely to remain an 

important part of the employability offer and technical skills will play an increasing role in that. 

Discussions with FE should focus on the assessment/intervention model and how it can act as a 

seamless feeder into existing/proposed FE provision.   
 

• Work-based Learning & Specialist Apprenticeship Provision: The end of EU funding restrictions 

provides an opportunity to embrace apprenticeships as a progression route from employability 

programmes. There are opportunities for joint promotion, and the co-design of the 

assessment/referral process. There are also opportunities to align to local-authority / third-sector 

led specialist apprenticeship provision like Y Prentis and Aspire. This collaborative programmes 

brings together education, industry and the local authority to provide skilled opportunities in the 

advanced manufacturing sector. With its strong industry links and track record of supporting 

industry with recruitment, training & work placements, the Aspire programme could represent a 

link from employability provision into technical skills development. Y Prentis can do likewise into 

construction routes.  
 

• Public Sector Shared Apprenticeships and InFuSe: A public sector testbed is likely to stimulate new 

service provision and new occupational routes in the public sector. This could be a strong source 

of future opportunities for employability clients and should be considered at an early stage of 

InFuSe’s development.  

 

• CCR Investment Pipeline: The CCR City Deal is developing a strong pipeline of upcoming 

investments in infrastructure (creating opportunities for construction vacancies) and innovation 

Page 91



Appendix 1 - The Framework for Future Employability in the CCR 
 

(creating opportunities for technological vacancies). If a clear “early warning” system could be 

created to notify employability programmes when an investment proposition looks likely to 

receive support, it will help the employability teams to begin to prepare the workforce to reskill 

for these opportunities.  

 

 

Conclusions and Next Steps 
The adoption of a new framework for employability and a commitment from the RSP to seek funding 

to sustain the teams required to deliver this framework would usher in an exciting new era for 

employability in the CCR.  

Learning lessons from the EU programmes, our proposed framework would create a system based on 

coordination not competition; a system based on flexibility and responsiveness to structural changes 

in the regional labour market; a system aligned to the priority sectors with distinct employability 

pathways into each one.  

The case is strong for locally delivered employability. It provides excellent value for money and social 

return on investment. It is based on over 20 years of experience, and relationships with local 

communities that would take years to recover if that expertise was lost. 

Adopting the proposed framework for employability would give the Regional Skills Partnership a 

mechanism to:  

• Rapidly adapt to changing regional employability priorities in response to structural changes in the 

economy and labour market (i.e. getting the right mix between short-term unemployed, long-

term unemployed, NEETs, under-employment etc). 
 

• Improve the integration of employability with the other elements of the Regional Employment 

and Skills Plan, like careers and aspiration, technical education and cluster development.  

And it would provide direction to local authorities (working with the Cardiff City Deal) to seek funding 

from the Levelling Up fund to establish a long-term, regionally-minded, locally-delivered employability 

approach. It would provide a launchpad for further collaboration with other emerging contracts like 

Kickstart, Jobs Growth Wales+ or other programmes coming from the CAEHRS.  

 

Immediate Next Step 

Subject to approval on the principles within this paper from the RSP, the LA cluster group will 

commence work with partners on an employability project proposal for submission to Shared 

Prosperity Fund.  

 

Page 92



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING 
 

3 YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN FOR CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE IN BRIDGEND 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 

 Present for Cabinet consideration and approval a 3 year strategic plan for Children’s 
Social Care in Bridgend. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all  resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1  Children’s social care services in Bridgend are fundamental in delivering the Council’s 

statutory duties under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 to 
safeguard, protect and improve outcomes for the most vulnerable children in the 
County Borough. 

 
3.2 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on Children’s social care services is starting to 

become evident in respect of the need and complexity of children and families in 
Bridgend. In December 2021 there was a 40% increase in contacts into children’s 
social care (476) compared to January 2021 (339) when the country was in lockdown. 
The number of children on the child protection register (185) have remained relatively 
stable and the number of care experienced children (380) have remained relatively 
stable over the last year. Quality assurance work has highlighted an increased 
complexity of case work and the issues which children and families are presenting to 
Children’s social care. 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 

3.3 Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) undertook a quality assurance check of social 
services in Bridgend in April 2021. They found some strengths and some areas for 
further development in their analysis of Children’s social care. Overall, practitioners 
and Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) presented as having an understanding 
of the circumstances and experiences of the children and families they were working 
with. They  found more varied practice in relation to co-production and seeking and 
/or recording the voice of the child. Confirmation regarding the active offer of 
advocacy was contained in the files viewed. Co-production, particularly in the context 
of engagement, identification of personal outcomes, risks, and provision of services 
to achieve positive change required some improvement. The assurance letter noted  
‘’the local authority is aware of the need to further embed practice, which is strength 
based and outcome focused and work is currently underway to address this’’. 

 
3.4 Children’s social care in Bridgend, in common with many other local authorities in 

Wales and across the UK, has experienced challenges in the retention and 
recruitment of children’s social workers. There are vacancy rates across Children’s 
services of around 30%. Corporate as well as service level attention is needed to 
deliver a strategic plan and the underpinning culture and values required to ensure 
that Bridgend is able to attract and retain social workers and this strategic plan.  

     
4. Current Situation 
 
4.1 The 3 year strategic plan for Bridgend Children’s social care is attached as Appendix 

1 to this report. The plan sets out the purpose of children’s social care in Bridgend 
and emphasises the importance of culture, behaviour and values in delivering that 
purpose as well as the strategic actions which are detailed in the plan. 
 

4.2 The strategic plan sets out strategic actions for the next 3 years which are themed in 
the following areas: 

 
- A stable, well-supported, motivated permanent workforce  
- Strength based, social work practice which supports children and families to stay 

together (wherever possible) and safeguards children from harm  
- Evidence based services and interventions 
- Seamless partnership working at an operational and strategic level 
- Listening to and acting on the voice of children and families. 
 
As well as detailing the actions required, the plan indicates the measures that will be 
used to understand progress. 
 

4.3 The 3 year timescale for the strategic plan is based on evidence of independent 
evaluations of transformation programmes in Children’s services conducted in other 
local authorities which demonstrate this is the timescale needed to sustain and 
embed change, particularly the implementation of strength based models of practice 
which is a central element of this plan. 
 

4.4 The governance of the plan will be through an ‘Improving Outcomes for Children 
Board’ which will be chaired by the Chief Executive of the Council. The Board will 
provide regular reports on progress to the Cabinet Corporate Management Board, 
the Cabinet Corporate Parenting Committee and the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. The Board will provide regular oversight, challenge and direction 
and ensure that resources are recommended to enable delivery of this plan. The 

Page 94



 

Board will benefit from independent expert advice provided by a specialist in 
Children’s social care who will advise on the priorities set out, measures and 
progress. 

 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules as a result of this 

strategic plan.  
  
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1   An initial EIA screening has identified that there would be no negative impact on those 

with one or more of the protected characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage 
or the use of the Welsh language. It was therefore not necessary to carry out a full 
EIA on this policy or proposal. 

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 

7.1 By taking steps to shift the focus of approach to strength based and solution focussed 
practice we are supporting the delivery of the Government’s wellbeing objectives in 
“Prosperity for all: the National strategy”. It is evident that a disproportionate number 
of children and families who Children’s social care services work with and for 
experience multiple disadvantages including risk of poverty and economic 
disadvantage.  
 

7.2 The links to the Welsh Government “A Healthier Wales, our Plan for Health and Social 
Care” can be evidenced in the emphasis in this plan of the need for enhanced 
partnership working arrangements between Heath, Social Care and other agencies 
to provide seamless assessment and care and support for children and families. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no direct resource implications arising from this report. The Council will be 

asked to consider recurring pressures in Children’s social care workforce and service 
provision in setting its budget for 2022/23 onwards. Priorities for capital investments 
in Children’s social care services will be considered by the Council in consideration 
of the capital programme. Short term resource requirements as a consequence of the 
quality assurance work, training and development and strategic capacity 
requirements to effectively deliver this plan, may require consideration of short term 
earmarked reserves in line with the Council’s Reserves and Balances protocol.  

  
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet consider and approve the 3 year strategic plan for 

Children’s social care in Bridgend attached as Appendix 1.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



 

Claire Marchant 
Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing  
February 2022                         
 

 Contact Officer: Claire Marchant 
Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing 

Telephone:  (01656) 642251 
 E-mail:  Claire.marchant@bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, Civic Offices, Bridgend, 
CF31 4WR 

 
 Contact Officer: Laura Kinsey 

Head of Childrens Social Care  
Telephone:  (01656) 642314 

 E-mail:  laura.kinsey@bridgend.gov.uk  
Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, Civic Offices, Bridgend, 

CF31 4WR 
 
Background documents:  
 
None  
 
 
 
 

Page 96



APPENDIX 1 

1 

 

 

Bridgend Children’s Social Care Strategic Plan 2022-2025 

Improving Outcomes for Children and Families in our County 

Borough 

‘Working together to enable better outcomes for children, young 

people and their families via strong relationships, effective practice 

and timely and responsive services, which support children and 

families to live together (wherever possible) work on difficulties and 

safeguard children from harm’ 

P
age 97



APPENDIX 1 

2 

 

Introduction  
 
This plan has been developed to set out a clear set of strategic actions that will be taken to support a culture and practice of strength based, 
continuous improvement in children’s social care in Bridgend which places safety, wellbeing and improving outcomes for children and their 
families at the heart of everything we do.  
 
The plan is located within a wider programme of organisational and service development being undertaken by Bridgend County Borough Council 
(the Council) in partnership with the people and communities of Bridgend, statutory and non-statutory partners which include: 

 Progressing the priorities in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-23 and developing a new plan for 2023-34 onwards. 

 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Partnership Board Population Needs Assessment which sets out an assessment of the needs of the 
populations of Bridgend, Rhondda Cynon Taff and Merthyr Tydfil and is also an assessment of the range of health, social care and wellbeing 
services needed to meet those needs  

 The priorities of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Safeguarding Board (RSB) which provides strategic leadership for safeguarding children 
and adults at risk across the region and supports learning through the undertaking and publication of Child Practice Reviews (CPRs) 

 Contributing to the Council’s medium term financial strategy (MTFS) 

 Legislation set out in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act (2014), the Regulation and Inspection of Care Act (2016), the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act (2015) and other statute and guidance. 

 The Bridgend Social Services and Well-being Recovery Plan developed to support people, workforce and providers of service to recover 
from the short, medium and long-term impact of the Covid-19 global pandemic. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 98



APPENDIX 1 

3 

 

The Plan forms part of a wider transformation programme to improve outcomes for people in Bridgend ‘Improving Outcomes for the Joneses’ which 
has the following purpose: 
 
Doing what matters for all the Joneses 
 
Through: 

- Keeping people well, connected and addressing health inequalities 
- Relationship based practice and services 

- Seamless well-being, primary and community health and social care co-located in localities and communities delivered by multi-professional 
teams with the person at the centre 

- Understanding and mitigating risks and safeguarding people from harm and supporting their safety and wellbeing and enabling people to 
achieve what matters to them. 

 
Whilst this wider context is important, this plan is specific to the purpose and strategic priorities for children’s social care. It is clear these strategic 
priorities can only be delivered through strong and effective partnerships, most importantly with the children and families who children’s social care 
work with and for but also key partners within and out with the Council. The effectiveness of multi-agency safeguarding and early help arrangements 
that support the protection and wellbeing of children who may need intervention from children’s social care is also fundamental to the successful 
delivery of the priorities within this plan.  
 

The purpose of Bridgend Children’s Social Care: 

 
‘Working together to enable better outcomes for children, young people and their families via strong relationships, effective practice 

and timely and responsive services, which support children and families to live together (wherever possible) work on difficulties and safeguard 
children from harm’ 

 

P
age 99



APPENDIX 1 

4 

 

What will this plan achieve to support delivery of this purpose? 

 

 Children’s social care will have a clear purpose. This purpose will be achieved through culture and values which are inclusive and support 

everyone within the service and we the people we work with to feel part of the ‘family firm’. Our culture will be open and transparent, celebrate 

our strengths and commit to learning and development and continuous improvement; 

 The voice of children and young people will drive the delivery of this strategic plan and their voices will be evident in all work and decisions; 

 Meaningful involvement and engagement of families in the work of children’s social care reflecting a commitment to the long-term 

relationships needed to work together for our children and young people; 

 Effective workforce planning which supports a stable, well- motivated workforce , good retention and recruitment, an optimal mix of skills and 

capabilities. Our workforce feel well supported, professionally supervised and have access to high standards of professional development; 

 Highly effective management and leadership which provides clarity, structure, excellent supervision and provides high support and appropriate 

challenge;  

 Children’s social care teams which are resourced to fulfil their purpose and responsibilities and are good places to work and develop 

professional practice;  

 A strength-based model of effective social work practice which will be implemented systematically. This model will have at its heart protecting 

children from harm, enabling positive outcomes through strong relationships with families and partners who work together as the ‘village’ 

which it takes to raise a child in Bridgend; 

 High standards of safeguarding and child protection practice, recognizing that whilst safeguarding children is an inherently multi-agency 

endeavor children’s social care play a leading role in ensuring Bridgend children are protected from harm; 

 Robust quality assurance and performance systems which ensure that the effectiveness and consistency of excellent practice and interventions 

are understood within a culture and practice of transparency, learning and continuous improvement; 

 Creating a way of working which is ‘proactive’ rather than ‘reactive’, with interventions focused on preventing escalation of needs because 

needs are met effectively at the earliest opportunity, preventing the need for children and young people to become care experienced unless 

P
age 100



APPENDIX 1 

5 

 

this is evidently the right outcome in which case plans for permanence and stability will be timely and support children to achieve their 

potential; 

 A range of effective services and interventions, from prevention through to services for care experienced children which are evidence based, 

are of the highest standards, and are able to support children and young people to achieve positive outcomes; 

 An integrated, seamless ‘whole system’ practice with across the whole system to meeting the needs of the vulnerable children and families in 

Bridgend – across the whole Council, with statutory partners, the third sector and commissioned providers. 

 

P
age 101



APPENDIX 1 

6 

 

From purpose into action – our culture and behaviours 

We recognise that ‘purpose’ and ’strategy’ can feel like ‘empty words’ without the underpinning culture and behaviours which support 

effective delivery.  As a Council, we therefore, commit to the following: 

 A ‘One -Council’ and ‘One Bridgend’ approach in which we commit to working together to working with others to support the delivery 

of the priorities within this plan, recognizing corporate, political and partnership ownership are as critical to effective children’s social 

care as the behaviours and actions within children’s social care 

In Children’s Social Care: 

 Our leadership, management and practice will be strongly focused on delivering our purpose; 

 We will be respectful of each other’s contributions to the lives of children and families and those of our partners; 

 We will work as a team, and as part of other Council and partnership teams, working to each other’s strengths and to improve 

outcomes for children and family; 

 We will listen and have open and honest styles of communication; 

 We commit to reflection, understanding and acting on our individual and collective learning and development needs; 

 We will appropriately challenge and work with others to improve systems, practice and process where this will improve outcomes 

for children and families; 

 We are passionate and motivated about the work we do and the difference we can make;   

 We will take care of, and be mindful of, our own and our colleagues wellbeing; 

 We will work equitably and fairly, creatively, and innovatively within all resources available.  
 

 

 

P
age 102



APPENDIX 1 

7 

 

Values  
  
Work in children’ social care is rooted in the values of the social work and social care and the United Nations convention on the rights of a 
child:  
 

 To hear, listen and act upon the voice of the child or young person in everything that we do  

 Respect for the inherent worth and dignity of all people  

 Promoting social justice  

 Acting with integrity  

 Ensuring our children are safe from harm 

 Treating all people with respect, compassion, empathy and care  

P
age 103



APPENDIX 1 

8 

 

The Governance Structure for this Strategic Plan 

 
Governance  
 
Improving outcomes for children’s social care is a high priority for the Council. To ensure that the strategic plan is effectively led and has the right level 
of resources assigned to support delivery, a Strengthening Outcomes for Children Board (the Board) will be established, chaired by the Chief Executive 
of the Council. The Board will provide regular reports on progress to the Cabinet/Corporate Management Board, the Cabinet/Corporate Parenting 
Committee and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Board will provide regular oversight, challenge and direction and ensure that 
resources are recommended to enable delivery of this plan.  
 
This is Board is in addition to safeguarding as a standard agenda item at each Cabinet/Corporate Management Board meeting in accordance with the 
Council’s Corporate Safeguarding Policy (2021).  
 
Strengthening outcomes for children and families is also a partnership priority and it is critical that senior partners from the NHS, police, housing, 
education and third sector are fully involved in the delivery of this plan. It is proposed that the Board involves partners as appropriate and reports 
through the Bridgend Local Operational Group for Community Safety and Safeguarding to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Safeguarding Board and 
the Bridgend Public Services Board as appropriate as well as reporting to individual governance arrangements within partner organisations.  
 
The Board will benefit from independent professional advice from an experienced expert in children’s social care. The independent expert will provide 
appropriate support and challenge to ensure that priorities set are the right ones, that measures and progress are understood.  
  

P
age 104



APPENDIX 1 

9 

 

 

Improving Outcomes Strategic Plan – 2022-2025  

 

The following Strategic Plan (see Appendix 1) looks to support a ‘whole Council’ approach to achieving the purpose set for children’s social care. As 

such, the plan is the bridge between strategic actions, effective operational practice and improving outcomes for children and families. The 3-year 

timescale of the plan recognises that practice led continuous improvement requires sustained leadership, focus and actions over a prolonged period 

of time.  
 
The detailed plan is Appendix 1 to this paper. There are 5 themes contained within the plan which details the strategic actions required to deliver 
effectively:  
 

 A stable, well- supported, motivated permanent workforce  

 Strength based, social work practice which supports children and families to stay together (wherever possible) and safeguards children from 
harm  

 Evidence based services and interventions 

 Seamless partnership working at an operational and strategic level 

 Listening to and acting on the voice of children and families 
 

  

 

P
age 105



APPENDIX 1 

10 

 

APPENDIX 1 – CHILDREN’S SERVICES 3 YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN  

 

Theme 1 -Stable, well-supported, motivated, permanent workforce (W) 

 

Action Strategic Action Measure of Success 

Priority action W1 Implement new structures for grade 3 social workers in children’s social care 
and consider application for market supplement to address vacancies for 
children’s social workers 

High level of permanent social workers in 
children’s social work teams 

Low vacancy rates in children’s social 
work teams 

Low levels of turnover in children’s social 
work teams. 

 

 

 

 

Priority action W2 Review of skill mix in children’s social care to develop a workforce plan which 
includes consideration of optimal numbers of: social workers, social work 
support officers, social work assistants, social services practitioners, support 
officers, business support, other professionals such as mental health specialist 
workers, behaviour analysts.  

Quality of practice and outcomes for 
children and families evidenced by 
achievement of care plan outcomes which 
are better achieved by multi-professional 
input. 
 
Improved retention and recruitment of 
children’s social workers who are able to 
delegate non social work tasks to skilled 
workers who can work effectively within 
their competencies. 

P
age 106



APPENDIX 1 

11 

 

Priority action W3 Develop a revised business case for the Bridgend ‘Grow our own Social Work 
Programme’ which sets out the resource requirements for Bridgend to achieve 
sustainable permanent recruitment by supporting workforce to develop their 
careers to become qualified social workers through secondment and 
traineeship arrangements. 

Effective social work workforce planning 
evidenced by sufficient numbers of social 
workers to meet requirements. 
 
Improved retention and recruitment/ low 
vacancy levels as it is evidenced that 
social workers who are supported to 
professionally qualify in an LA area are 
committed to the culture and practice in 
the area and more likely to develop their 
careers there. 

Priority action W5 

  

Implement a training programme for all workforce in children’s social care to 
ensure there is a consistent understanding of quality of practice 

 Consistency and quality of practice 
evidenced through quality assurance, 
inspection and the outcomes for children 
and families. 

Priority action W6 Deliver a comprehensive ongoing training and development programme to 
ensure effective and consistent implementation of the preferred strength-
based model of social work practice  

 Consistent strength-based practice which 
achieves the purpose of this strategy to 
improve outcomes for children, young 
people and their families supporting 
children and families to live together 
(wherever possible) and work on 
difficulties and safeguard children from 
harm. This will be evidenced by quality 
assurance, inspection and the outcomes 
for children and families 

Priority action W7 Review and strengthen supervision policy and practice to ensure all 
workforce benefit from strength based reflective supervision, management 
oversight support and focus on quality. 

 

Timely and high-quality supervision 
evidenced through regular quality 
assurance audits. 
 

P
age 107



APPENDIX 1 

12 

 

Priority action W8 Commission a bespoke management and leadership development 
programme to support all managers in children’s social care to support 
current and future managers to develop their skills in leading the 
development of team culture and practice.  

Improved retention of managers and 
leaders of children’s social care in 
Bridgend  
 
Improved retention and recruitment of 
children’s social care staff 
 
Consistently high quality and 
performance from well-managed and led 
social work teams 

Priority action W9 Implement evidence-based mechanisms to ensure that reflective practice is 
embedded including communities of practice and action learning sets. 

High quality strength practice and 
outcomes for children and families which 
benefit from peer led practice reflection 
 
A well-supported, motivated workforce 
who feel well supported in the time 
required for reflective practice.  

Priority action 
W10 

Focus on well-being through implementing a tiered approach to ensure timely 
and effective trauma informed support to workforce including through 
effective line management support, peer support and timely access to 
specialist support where needed.  

Low levels of sickness absence for reasons 
related to workforce stress 
 
Low turnover rates/ high levels of 
retention as staff feel supported in their 
work. 

Priority action 
W11 

Work to implement the most effective recruitment process including drawing 
on marketing expertise to enhance campaigns and ensure the most efficient 
selection processes. 

Increased number of applicants for 
children’s social care roles. 
 
Efficient processes for recruitment which 
lower levels of attrition. 

P
age 108



APPENDIX 1 

13 

 

Theme 2 -Strength based practice which supports children and families to stay together (where possible) and safeguards 
children form harm (P). 

 

Action Strategic Action Measure of Success 

Priority action P1 Undertake an option appraisal of strength- based models of social work 
practice and develop a business case for the implementation of the practice 
model which will best deliver the purpose to support children and families to 
stay together (where possible) and safeguard children from harm. The model 
of practice will build on strengths within the Bridgend operating model of 
locality hubs. The preferred model will enable: 

 Relationship-based, systemic and solutions-focused practice 

 Higher proportion of social worker time invested in direct work with 
family members.  

 Strengthened relationships with specialist services such as mental 
health, domestic abuse and substance misuse services, exploring how 
these can be integrated into teams around the family 

 Consistency of social worker, promoting longer term relationships and 
reduced likelihood of children and families having to repeat their story. 

 

A model of practice is agreed with a 
clear evidence base which is understood 
by the workforce and is clearly evident in 
practice as evidenced by: 

 Quality assurance 
 Outcomes for children and 

families 
 Independent evaluation 

 

 

 

P
age 109



APPENDIX 1 

14 

 

Priority action P2 Systematically implement preferred model of practice ensuring that all 
mechanisms are in place to support this including: 

 Leadership by senior managers at every level 
 Policies and procedures 
 Decision making processes 
 Supervision and case direction 
 Practice leadership positions, coaching and mentoring  
 Systems of quality assurance 
 Operating model  
 Training and development programme 
 Case management system and business support processes  
 Celebration and show-casing good practice and progress 

Measures as above with progressed 
mapped through in-depth independent 
diagnostics on an annual basis. 

Priority action P3 Implement an evidenced based framework to enable practitioners the 
potential for safe reunifications with families for children who become care 
experienced. 

The numbers of children who are 
reunified with their families 
Qualitative review on outcomes for 
children following evaluation 

Priority action P4 Commission a programme of independent detailed quality assurance   to 
provide a thorough assessment of the strengths and areas for development 
in Bridgend children’s social care services to inform the practice 
development programme and the Council, and partnership quality assurance 
programmes.  

Quality assurance reports 
 

P
age 110



APPENDIX 1 

15 

 

Priority action P5 Following completion of action P4, develop a series of practice development 
plans, where appropriate with partners, for key service areas including: 

 MASH and IAA 
 The threshold between early help and safeguarding 
 Children with Disabilities 
 Transition 
 Care Experienced Children 

The practice development plans will include priorities for policy 
development, decision making processes, training and development. 

Development plans for key areas which 
are able to demonstrate progress through 
follow up quality assurance work at 
agreed timescales. 

Priority action P6 Ensure that learning from Child Practice Reviews and other in-depth analysis 
is systematically embedded through learning, training and development and 
follow up quality assurance and review.  

Outcomes for children and families 
Quality assurance reports  

Priority action P7 Undertake a review of integrated family support service and family group 
conferencing, arrangements within Bridgend with a view to determining if this 
whole family approach can be expanded for working with more families.  

Increased number of children and families 
benefitting from these interventions 
Outcomes for children and families 

  

P
age 111



APPENDIX 1 

16 

 

Theme 3 - Evidence based services and interventions (S) 

 

Action Strategic Action Measure of Success 

Priority action S1 Develop an updated commissioning strategy for family support services and 
interventions to ensure the optimal range of commissioned and Council 
provided services to meet the needs and interventions set out in care and 
support and child protection plans 

Commissioning strategy approved by 
Cabinet which demonstrates an analysis 
of need, clear evidence based and 
commissioning intention 

 

 

Ouc Priority action S2  Complete the establishment of the children’s assessment hub at Brynmenyn, 
reviewing the service model as part of the ambition to ensure the right multi-
agency therapeutic input including access to psychological assessments where 
required. 

Outcomes for children who are assessed 
through the hub through effective long-
term care plans which meet their needs 
and reduce unplanned changes of 
placement  

Priority action S3 Working with regional partners in Cwm Taf Morgannwg ensure there is 
sufficient quanity and quality of flexible provision for children who’s needs can 
not be met in standard residential or fostering provision. This planning will be 
informed by the regional maket stability plan which will analyse need and set 
out requirements for service development. 

Sufficiency of supply of accommodation 
care and support – children are supported 
in regulated settings (no un-regulated 
placements) and reduction in the need for 
children to move out of the region to 
have their needs met for reasons of 
sufficiency. 

Priority action S4 Develop a commissioning strategy for the provision of accomodation, care and 
support services for children with disabilities, working closely with education 

Commissioning strategy with analysis of 
need and clear plans to meet the 
accommodation, care and support needs 
of children with disabilities.  

P
age 112



APPENDIX 1 

17 

 

and health partners to ensure integrated models for short and long term care 
provision. 

 
Outcomes for children and young people 

Priority action S5 Develop a commissioning strategy with key partners to meet the 
accommodation, care and support needs of care experienced children and 
young people and care leavers  

Commissioning strategy with analysis of 
need and clear plans to meet the 
accommodation, care and support needs 
of care experienced children and young 
people and care leavers.  
 
Outcomes for children and young people. 
 

Priority action S6 Work with national and regional partners through the National Fostering 
Framework to increase the numbers of Bridgend foster families, including 
carers who have additional skills and experience in caring for children who 
would otherwise require residential care, or are transitioning from such 
provision. The work to increase the numbers of Bridgend foster carers should 
consider the most effective recruitment and retention strategies as well as 
the range of support for foster carers from the Council. 

 

Bridgend children with fostering in their 
care plan are able to have their needs 
met by Bridgend foster carers unless 
there is a specific need identified for an 
independent foster carer, or a foster carer 
who lives out of the Bridgend area. 

Priority action S7 Explore innovative and creative solutions including the use of direct payments 
and family help services as part of care and support arrangements in children’s 
services teams. 

Increased uptake of direct payments 
across children’s services. 
Review of models for family help and 
support and commissioned service in 
place if the review demonstrates a need. 
Improved outcomes for children and 
families. 
 

P
age 113



APPENDIX 1 

18 

 

Priority action S8 Enhance pathways between children’s social care and substance misuse 
services, domestic abuse services, mental health services (for adults and 
children) and third sector organisations. Explore opportunities for integrated 
teams and provision. 

Improved outcomes for children and 
families where substance misuse, mental 
health and domestic abuse is evident. 
 
 

 

  

P
age 114



APPENDIX 1 

19 

 

Theme 4 - Seamless partnership and working and business systems at an operational and strategic level (B) 
 

Action Strategic Action Measure of Success 

Priority action B1 Ensure that senior health, education, housing, NHS and partners work with 
children’s social care services strategically and operationally to deliver the 
priorities in this plan. In delivering this action, existing Bridgend children’s 
partnerships will be reviewed to ensure the most effective set of 
arrangements for joint and integrated working. 

Effective multi-agency strategic 
partnerships for children and families in 
Bridgend in which key partners at a 
senior level are meaningfully involved in 
developing practice, services and 
improving outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

 

Priority action B2 Building on the MASH partnership model, develop business cases for 
integrated multi-professional locality teams to meet the needs of children and 
families with care and support needs, children with disabilities and child 
protection needs. Models that will explored will include integration of mental 
health professionals, substance misuse workers and specialist therapists. 

Improved outcomes for children and 
families achieved through seamless teams 
around the child and family. Less ‘hand 
offs’, waiting times for services referred 
to and children and families tell their 
stories once. 

Priority action B3 Working with partners regionally and nationally ensure that children’s social 
care teams have an effective case management IT system which enables 
integrated working and supports strength based practice and the safeguardng 
and protection of children. 

‘Fit for purpose’ IT system which: 

 Improves the quality of working 
experience for staff  

  enables information sharing 
between professionals  

 Supports improved outcomes for 
children and families 

P
age 115



APPENDIX 1 

20 

 

Priority action B4 Enhance the use of business intelliegence within children’s social care teams, 
through live performance dashboards which support safe and effective 
practice and management oversight and decision making. 

Demonstrable use of dashboards 
Improved performance against key 
measures 
Improved outcomes for children 

P
age 116



APPENDIX 1 

21 

 

Theme 5 – Listening to and Acting on the Voice of Children and Families (V) 
 
 

Action Strategic Action Measure of Success 

Priority action V1  Develop an engagement and involvement framework so children and young 
people have an opportunity to become meaningfully involved in all aspects 
of the work of children’s social care in Bridgend. This will build on existing 
good practice such as involvement in interview panels and tender 
evaluations. 

The involvement of children and young 
people is clearly evident in all strategies 
and service development proposals.  

Priority action V2 Ensure that the quality and effectiveness of practice is understood through 
the lens of the experience of the children and families who we work with and 
for. 

 

Quality assurance processes meaningful 
embed the experience of children and 
families using a range of mechanisms to 
capture their voice and using the 
outcomes of quality assurance to drive 
improvements. 

Priority action V3 Develop a Corporate Parenting Strategy which is led by the children and young 
people for whom the Council is their corporate parent, ensuring all parts of the 
Council and partner agencies understand what matters to care experienced 
children and young people. 

Cabinet approve a corporate parenting 
strategy which clearly demonstrates what 
matters to care experienced children and 
young people in all aspects of their lives. 
The outcomes in the strategy are 
measurable and key partners are held to 
account by care experienced children and 
the Cabinet Corporate Parenting 
Committee for their achievement. 

P
age 117



APPENDIX 1 

22 

 

Priority action V4 Develop a parent’s participation charter setting so the experience of the 
families who work with children’s social care is understood and used enhanced 
practices and interventions. 

Experience of parents who children’s 
social care work with is understood and 
any findings acted upon. 

Priority action V5 Celebrate the achievements of our children and families with an annual 
celebration event. 

The achievements of children and families 
are clearly valued and can inspire others 
to achieve their potential. 

 

 

P
age 118



 

 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
8 FEBRUARY 2022 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT 
 

SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME:  OUTCOME OF THE 
CONSULTATION ON SCHOOLS’ MODERNISATION PROPOSAL TO ENLARGE 

MYNYDD CYNFFIG PRIMARY SCHOOL 
 

1. Purpose of report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:  
 

 inform Cabinet of the outcome of the consultation on the proposed 
enlargement of Mynydd Cynffig Primary School; 

 to present the findings of the consultation in a detailed consultation report 
(Appendix A); and to  

 seek approval to progress to the publication of a public notice as prescribed in 
the School Organisation Code. 

 
2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy - taking steps to make 

the county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, 

study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the 

skills, qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 

as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the 

community that can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

3.   Background  
 

3.1 In April 2009, Cabinet approved a number of individual projects that emerged 
from a feasibility study, which reviewed 3 to 18 learning provision in the Cefn 
Cribwr, Cornelly, Kenfig Hill and Pyle area.  Approval was received to progress 
a project to cater for a proposed amalgamation and enlargement of Mynydd 
Cynffig Infant and Junior Schools.  

 
3.2 In December 2010, the Council’s Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) for the 

21st Century Schools Programme was submitted to Welsh Government (WG) 
and a replacement Mynydd Cynffig Primary School scheme was identified as a 

Page 119

Agenda Item 10



 

Band A project. In 2011, the project was again confirmed as a priority Band A 
scheme in a further SOP submission to WG. 

 
3.3  A feasibility study was undertaken in 2011 to establish the most suitable site for 

the primary school.  That study considered the establishment of primary 
provision on Mynydd Cynffig Infant and Junior Schools’ sites plus the site of 
Cynffig Comprehensive School, the outcome of which determined that the 
preferred site was that of the Junior School. 

 
3.4 Following the establishment of Mynydd Cynffig Primary School in September 

2015, a decision was made to undertake further feasibility work to explore the 
potential of remodeling Cynffig Comprehensive School, in order to 
accommodate Mynydd Cynffig Primary School at that location.  

 
3.5  The feasibility study showed that Cynffig Comprehensive School site allowed for 

suitable alternative solutions to the critical issues of sufficient developable area 
and appropriate site access. It also offered sufficient space to develop a 2-form 
entry (FE) school plus nursery and remove some secondary surplus places.  

 
3.6  The outcome of the feasibility study was reported to Cabinet in July 2016 and 

approval was provided to commence the consultation process to relocate the 
primary school to the secondary school site. 

 
3.7  The outcome of the consultation was reported to Cabinet in January 2017. The 

community strongly opposed the proposal and Cabinet determined to consider 
a counter proposal from the objectors (ie to locate the new school on the 
school’s junior site).    

 
3.8  In March 2017, the outcome of a review of the 2011 feasibility study and the 

counter proposal was reported to Cabinet together with concerns regarding 
revised budget estimates for the new school development at the secondary 
school site.  Cabinet determined to abandon the proposal, as there was 
insufficient funding available to take forward the scheme at the comprehensive 
or junior site. 

 
3.9  In October 2017, Cabinet approved Bridgend’s Band B priorities and agreed 

that further feasibility work would be undertaken for a replacement Mynydd 
Cynffig Primary School which, depending on the outcome and available funding, 
could be delivered as a priority scheme in Band C.  

  
3.10 In November 2019, the Mynydd Cynffig Primary School’s infant site suffered a 

catastrophic failure of its heating system and the repair forced the temporary 
closure of the school building.  

 
3.11 A subsequent building condition survey reduced the school from its previous 

condition, that is ‘C’, to a category ‘D’ (ie ‘Bad – life expired and/or at risk of 
imminent closure, requiring significant immediate/urgent works’). The nature 
and assortment of the disrepairs highlighted within the survey made isolated 
repair works to individual fabric elements at the school extremely challenging 
and economically unfeasible. As a result of the health and safety risk to pupils 
and staff, it was agreed that the school building would close and alternative 
teaching accommodation would be provided as a matter urgency. 

Page 120



 

 
3.12 Funding was made available through the capital programme to procure 

temporary accommodation.  
 

3.13 On 30 June 2020 Cabinet approval was received to reprioritise Band B, bringing 
forward the replacement school scheme for Mynydd Cynffig Primary. Approval 
was received to submit a revised SOP to WG to reflect this and for officers to 
commence an options appraisal and feasibility study for the proposed 
replacement primary school. 

 
3.14 In September 2020 the outcome of the options appraisal process was reported 

to Cabinet and approval received to undertake a feasibility study on Mynydd 
Cynffig Primary School’s junior site. 

 
3.15  In December 2020, the Strategic Outline Business Case received Ministerial 

approval. 
 
3.16. In October 2021, the outcome of the feasibility study was reported to Cabinet 

and approval was given to commence a statutory consultation process to 
enlarge Mynydd Cynffig Primary School to a 2FE school, plus a 75-place 
nursery to be located on the junior site and open with effect from September 
2025. 

 
4.     Current situation/proposal  
 
4.1 In order to progress the proposal, consultation exercises were carried out 

between 30 November 2021 and 12 January 2022 in accordance with the 
statutory School Organisation Code.  A copy of the consultation document was 
made available during this time on the Council’s website:  

 
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-
engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-
school-consultation/  

 
4.2 The consultation document invited views and opinions to be submitted in 

respect of the proposal. A summary of the issues raised by consultees and the 
local authority’s responses are provided in the consultation report as detailed in 
Appendix A of this report. Cabinet will need to consider the consultation report 
and determine the preferred way forward. 

 
4.3 Should Cabinet wish to proceed with the proposal, the next stage of the process 

is to publish a statutory notice outlining the proposals which would need to be 
published for a period of 28 days and any formal written objections would be 
invited during this time.   

 
4.4 If there are no objections during the public notice period then the proposal can 

be implemented with Cabinet’s approval. 
 
If there are objections at this public notice stage, an objections report will be 
published summarising the objections and the authority’s response to those 
objections.  Cabinet will need to consider the proposal in light of objections.  

Page 121

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/


 

Cabinet could then accept, reject or modify the proposal.  The following 
timetable provides an indication of the likely timescales involved: 

 

Activity Date 

Consultation period where we welcome your views and 
observations on the proposal*.  

23 November 2021 
to 12 January 2022 

 
Draft Consultation Report to cabinet on the outcomes of the 
consultation. 
 

 
February 2022 

 
Publish Approved Consultation Report on BCBC website, 
hard copies available on request. 
 

 
February 2022 

 
If agreed by the cabinet of Bridgend County Borough Council, 
a Public Notice will be published and there will be a period of 
28 days in which to submit any objections to the proposal in 
writing. 
 

March 2022 

 
If there are no objections cabinet can decide whether to 
proceed or not. If there are any objections, an Objections 
Report will be forwarded to cabinet for their consideration and 
subsequent determination. The approved report will then be 
published on the BCBC website and hard copies of the report 
will be made available upon request. 
Publication of the decision notice. 
 

 
May 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Implementation. 
 

September 2025 

  
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1  There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 An equality impact assessment has been carried out as part of the consultation 

stage and has been further informed by responses to the consultation papers.  
The assessment has concluded that there is no negative impact anticipated on 
the duties of the Council towards protected groups. 

 
7.    Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides a 

comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation of 
the service.   

 

Page 122



 

Long term        Fulfils the Council’s statutory duty to provide sufficient 
pupil places.  

 Allows teaching and learning to take place on one site, 
assisting with sharing expert knowledge and resources. 

 Supports the day-to-day management and operation of 
the school. 

 Helps parents with drop-off and pick-up arrangements, as 
all pupils will attend one site.  

 
Prevention      Safeguards the Council’s position in terms of any potential 

legal challenge regarding the supply of school places. 
 

 
Integration  Ensures that the curriculum can be delivered from a 

purpose-built facility that meets social, environmental 
and cultural objectives.  
 

Collaboration  Works effectively with schools and many internal and 
external partners to ensure that the building meets the 
short-term and future needs of users and the community 
that it will serve. 

Involvement  Engagement of potential stakeholders including Cabinet, 
members, governors, staff, pupils, community, internal 
and external partners. 
 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 In December 2018, the Council approved a programme envelope of £71.3m, 

covering Band B new school builds of £68.2m and potential highways works of 
£3.1m (the cost of highway works will have to be met in full by the local authority, 
as there is no match funding from WG). Following subsequent amendments to 
the capital programme, the current position is that there are budgets of 
£49.504m for works and £3.4m for infrastructure within the capital programme, 
with the remaining schemes funded via the revenue funded Mutual Investment 
Model (MIM). 

 
8.2  £10.2m has been allocated in the Capital Programme for this project and the 

WG intervention rate is 65%. The additional 15 FTE places for rising 3’s would 
need to be funded from BCBC capital and would form part of the total project 
costs. Contractor inflation and the impact of Covid-19 and ‘Brexit’ may have a 
detrimental impact on the scheme costs. However, this would be monitored 
and reviewed regularly throughout the course of the project. Any changes to 
the total cost of the scheme or council contributions will be reported back to 
cabinet and council as appropriate.  

 
8.3 The scheme, should it go ahead, could generate revenue cost efficiencies as 

a consequence of moving from multiple sites to a single site. The exact 
amounts are difficult to quantify at present as they will form part of the annual 
formula funding process. Any potential revenue costs involved with moving 
allotments and Air Training Corp (ATC) would be minimal. 

Page 123



 

 
8.4 The cost of the feasibility study has been funded from the Band B revenue 

feasibility funding allocation. 
 
9. Recommendations. 

9.1 Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

 note the outcome of the consultation with interested parties as detailed in the 
attached consultation report and appendices; 

 approve the consultation report for publication; and 

 authorise the publication of a public notice on the proposal.  
 
 
Lindsay Iorwerth Harvey 
Corporate Director - Education and Family Support 
 
8 February 2022 
 
Contact officer: Nicola Echanis 

Head of Education and Early Help 
 

Telephone:  (01656) 642611 
 
E-mail:  nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk 

 
Postal Address: Angel Street 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4WB 

 
 

Background documents 
 
Welsh Impact Assessment, Equality Impact Assessment, Community Impactment 
Assessment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



 

 
 
  

Page 125



 

APPENDIX A 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CONSULTATION REPORT 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND FAMILY 
SUPPORT 

 
SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME: OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION ON 

THE PROPOSAL TO MAKE A REGULATED ALTERATION TO MYNYDD 
CYNFFIG PRIMARY SCHOOL IN THE FORM OF AN ENLARGEMENT 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 This public report is to inform of the outcome of the consultation on the proposal 

to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in the form of 
an enlargement (ie 2 form entry plus 75-place nursery). 

 
2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This school modernisation programme assists in the achievement of the 

following corporate well-being objectives under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy - taking steps to make 

the county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, 

study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the 

skills, qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 

as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the 

community that can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3.   Background  

 
3.1 In October 2021, Cabinet approval was given to commence a statutory 

consultation process to enlarge Mynydd Cynffig Primary School to a 2FE 
school, plus a 75-place nursery to be located on the junior site and open with 
effect from September 2025. 

 
3.2     This report outlines the responses to the consultation.   
 
4. Consultation process 
 
4.1 In order to progress the proposal, consultation exercises were carried out 

between 23 November 2021 and 12 January 2022 in accordance with the 
statutory School Organisation Code.  A copy of the consultation document was 
made available during this time on the Council’s website:  

Page 126



 

 
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-
engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-
school-consultation/  

 
4.2  The consultation document invited views and opinions to be submitted in 

respect of the proposal.  A list of stakeholders consulted can be seen at 
appendix 16. 

  
5. Summary of responses to consultation 

 
5.1 Key points from the consultation exercise were as follows, with full details 

appended at the end of this report. The local authority held four stakeholder 
consultation meetings at Mynydd Cynffig Primary School (infants site) over two 
dates, and held ‘virtual’ meetings with pupils, staff, governors and Pyle 
Community Council. Representatives from the Pwllygath Allotments 
Association and the Air Training Corp (ATC) attended the sessions held at the 
school. In addition, separate sessions were held with both organisations to 
address their specific concerns. Local members actively engaged and 
supported the process. 

 
5.2 Open consultation evening at Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
 A series of four consultation meetings were held at Mynydd Cynffig Primary 

School on 30 November and 7 December 2021.  Full details of the meeting 
discussions and responses/clarifications given are detailed in Appendix 1, 2, 6 
and 7 of this consultation report.   

 
 Five representatives from BCBC attended all the meetings.  There were no 

attendees at the first consultation evening on Tuesday 30 November 2021 
4pm-5pm.  One member of the public attended each of the meetings held on 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 at 5.15pm-6.15pm and Tuesday 7 December 
2021 at 4pm-5pm.  Three members of Pwllygath Allotments Association 
attended the meeting on Tuesday 7 December 2021 at 5:15pm-6:15pm and 
four members of the allotments association attended a subsequent meeting on 
Monday 10 January 4pm-5pm. 
 
Questions were raised in relation to the relocation of the allotments, 
construction, design and budget of the new school and parking/highway 
concerns.  Council representatives explained the allotments will be located 
behind the school. Further discussions will be held with the Pwllygath 
Allotments Association relating to water supply and the relocation of their 
pigeons and sheds.   The entrance to the allotments will be to the side, next to 
the current ATC building and there will be a central route through the 
allotments.  An area has been identified that can accommodate up to four 
parking spaces, one of which would be a disabled / accessible space.  Secure 
by Design standards will be adhered to in respect of fencing and security / 
gates will be included.   
 
The new school will be built as a two-storey building and will gain space by 
using land currently occupied by the ATC.  The existing junior building will be 
demolished. The project will be undertaken in phases.  Contractors will have 
an on-site compound and officers advised that if there are any problems, to 

Page 127

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-consultations/mynydd-cynffig-primary-school-consultation/


 

contact a member of the team to deal with any issues.  A school car park will 
be included in the scheme and the road leading to the school will be widened, 
with a landscaped bio-retention area between the road and the pavement to 
create a separation between pedestrians and vehicles.   

 
The school will have a main hall and a studio hall, with the total m² exceeding 
current provision.  The school will have a budget as per the number of learners 
for furniture and IT equipment.  The team are exploring options to relocate the 
ATC building, there is potential for them to utilise the school facilities.   

 
The project phases were explained and the group were reassured that any 
asbestos found on the site will be appropriately dealt with. A full ecology 
survey has been undertaken and mitigation measures will be in place.   

 
Funding is determined by Welsh Government’s 21st Century Schools 
standardised cost.  We will work with them to ensure there is sufficient funding 
to complete the project.  

 
5.3 Governing body consultation 

 A ‘virtual’ consultation meeting was held with representatives from Mynydd 
Cynffig Primary School governors on 2 December 2021.  Full details of the 
meeting discussions and responses/clarifications given are detailed in 
Appendix 3 of this consultation report.  Questions were raised mainly 
concerning the road/lane outside the school, the school playground and sport 
facilities and the residual infant school site and what the plans are for 
relocating ATC.   

 
 Council representatives were asked if the lane will have a one-way system 

and explained that options will be investigated as the scheme develops.  
Council representatives explained that there are m² rates per child when 
determining hard standing areas. No decision has been made as to how the 
residual infant site will be used.  Subject to the outcome of the consultation 
process, Cabinet will make a decision.  Corporate Landlord are currently 
looking at alternative sites for the ATC and there may opportunity for them to 
use the school hall / facilities.  A question was asked regarding a disability 
impact assessment, as the school will be on two levels. It was explained that 
as well as building regulations, we have to satisfy the Disability and 
Discrimination Act and the school would be fully compliant.  

 
5.4 Learners consultation 

 Mynydd Cynffig Primary School’s school council met virtually with BCBC 
council representatives on 6 December 2021 to discuss the proposal.  The 
pupils were given a child friendly version of the consultation document prior to 
the meeting and asked about their views.  Full details of the meeting 
discussions and responses/clarifications given are detailed in Appendix 4 of 
this consultation report.  

 
The main concerns for the pupils related to where the school will be located 
and what will happen to the infants building, what facilities the new school 
would have and where the allotments will be located.  Council representatives 
explained that although detailed design has not yet been undertaken, sufficient 
outdoor space would be provided including circulation space, sports pitches, 

Page 128



 

games courts, soft play areas, hard play areas and habitat space. Should the 
proposal progress, further meetings would be arranged so that pupils can 
input into the design process.  Council representatives also explained that the 
proposed new school would be located at the current junior school site, with 
both the infants and juniors in one building and construction work will be 
phased to ensure safety.  The allotments will move 100 metres from where 
they currently are to behind the school building.  Cabinet will need to make a 
decision whether to proceed with a new school, then a decision will be taken in 
respect of the infant school site.  A school council vote as to whether the 
learners felt that the proposal was generally a good or a bad idea was held at 
the end of the meeting.  All 16 learners present agreed that they felt it was a 
good idea. 

 
 
5.5 Staff consultation 
 A ‘virtual’ consultation meeting was held with the Mynydd Cynffig Primary 

School staff on 6 December 2021.  Full details of the meeting discussions and 
responses/clarifications given are detailed in Appendix 5 of this consultation 
report.  Questions were raised mainly concerning access to outdoor spaces, 
parking and drop-off areas and the school hall. 

 
Council representatives explained the school will have a learning plaza (street) 
and there will be at least two staircases for learners to access the yard.  All 
foundation phase will have direct access outside from their classrooms.  We 
will work with the school to ensure the yard space works and we will be 
consulting formally with staff in the future regarding design requirements, if 
approval for this scheme is received from Cabinet.  The lane will be widened 
and a 2m bio retention area will be created, with a 3.5m wide footway in 
between to allow for walking, scooters and cycling.  The drawing demonstrates 
site-fit and is not finalised.  There will be a main hall and a studio with a 
“moving” wall and a community kitchen/food technology room which will be 
located adjacent to the studio. 

 

 
5.6 Pyle Community Council consultation 
 A ‘virtual’ consultation meeting was held with Pyle Community Council on 15 

December 2021.  Full details of the meeting discussions and 
responses/clarifications given are detailed in Appendix 8 of this consultation 
report.  Questions were raised mainly concerning traffic congestion in the 
lanes and Croft Goch Road and engagement with the local community to raise 
awareness of the project.   

 
 Council representatives explained that all options in relation to the highway are 

still open at this stage.  Previous draft plans showed the drop-off circle coming 
from Croft Goch Road, this is a good idea to move traffic from the main road, 
but would result in not being able to accommodate all of the playing fields on 
the school site.  It will not benefit the school by putting car park in that area. 
Relocating the allotments and ATC will release more land.  The lane will be 
widened and a 2m bio retention area will be created, with a 3.5m wide footway 
to allow for walking, scooters and cycling.  Opportunities will be created to link 
active travel routes with the wider area. Councillors were asked to engage with 
the local community to raise awareness of the plans. 

Page 129



 

  
5.7 Air Training Corp consultation 

 A ‘virtual’ consultation meeting was held with the ATC on 20 December 2021.  
Full details of the meeting discussions and responses / clarifications given are 
detailed in Appendix 9 of this consultation report.  Questions were raised 
mainly concerning the future location and facilities for the ATC.   
 
Council representatives explained the phasing process for the construction 
work to the school.  Corporate Landlord Department is currently looking at 
alternative sites for the ATC and it was noted that there may opportunity for 
the group to use the school hall / facilities, as the school would be a 
community school.  The team will need to know the requirements of the ATC 
in terms of usage of the building and storage requirements.  It was explained 
that BCBC intend to oppose to any new tenancy agreement once the lease 
comes to an end in 2023. However, officers will provide as much notice as 
possible.   The team offered to hold a further meeting with the ATC if required. 
 
 A second ‘virtual’ consultation meeting was held with the Air Training Corp on 
10 January 2022.  Full details of the meeting discussions and responses / 
clarifications given are detailed in Appendix 10 of this consultation report.  It 
was expressed that the ATC needs to have a presence in the Kenfig Hill area.  
They may be able to utilise the school facilities, but there may be potential 
safeguarding issues.  The team requested information regarding the 
requirements of the ATC; what storage facilities and floor space they will need 
in order for us to explore potential opportunities.  The ATC has a flight 
simulator room, however there are several cadet sites in Bridgend that have a 
flight simulator room, that can be used if necessary.  Officers confirmed that 
BCBC will be opposing renewal of the lease and 12 months’ notice will be 
served in February 2022.   It was explained that no decision has been made 
as to how the residual infant site will be used as this would be subject to the 
outcome of the statutory process in relation to the proposed new school. 
 
A site meeting was held at Mynydd Cynffig Primary School infants hall on 10 
January 2022 and a member of the ATC attended.  A presentation and an 
overview of the scheme was presented, along with information regarding the 
construction phases.  A link to the consultation on the BCBC website was 
emailed the following morning, along with a request for information relating to 
the usage of the ATC.   
 
Questions were raised in relation to the play area and the team explained that 
it will move a few metres from its current position.  it was noted that the 
airplane located at the ATC site is one of only ten in the United Kingdom, it is 
listed and will need to move with the ATC.  It was suggested that use of the 
school facilities would not be appropriate; the ATC has a shooting range and a 
flight simulator room which will need to be considered.  Officers advised that 
consideration will be given to what could provided for the ATC.  Concern was 
raised that the area will lose the ATC and that cadets will have to travel 
elsewhere.  95% of the cadets live locally and can walk to the unit.  Concerns 
were expressed that the budget will not support the new school in future years.  
The team explained that the whole site will be utilised and there is very little 
land left over for future development.  The small space that is left will be 
developed for ecology.  The school design will be informed by Building Bulletin 

Page 130



 

99 area guidelines for school, as required by Welsh Government.  Full details 
of the meeting discussions and responses / clarifications given are detailed in 
Appendix 14 of this consultation report 
 

 
5.8   Pwllygath Allotment Association 

A site meeting was held at Mynydd Cynffig Primary School infants hall on 10 
January 2022, four members of the allotments attended.  The purpose of the 
meeting was to specifically discuss the requirements of the allotments 
association.  BCBC staff provided a proposed site layout plan of the new 
allotments and a discussion was held regarding sizes and positioning of the 
plots and access points.  It was explained the allotments will benefit from a 
perimeter security fence and each plot will have a fence.  Secure by Design 
requirements will be followed (eg fencing and security / gates will be included).   
Four parking spaces will be included and there is space available for a secure 
container for tools.  The representatives were concerned that the entrance 
point will be blocked by inconsiderate parking.  The team gave reassurance by 
explaining that the school drop-off area will be improved and parking will be 
provided for staff.  There is no traffic control at present and this development 
provides an opportunity to put new controls in place, such as “no waiting / 
loading” signage, there are lots of ideas to explore.  Speed and traffic issues 
will be addressed as part of the highway proposals.  There will be a bio-
retention area created between the pavement and road.   The provision of a 
replacement pigeon loft has been agreed by BCBC.  It is suggested that the 
best option is to place a loft outside of any allotment plot and that it is 
managed by Pwllygath Allotment Association.  Sheds and water butts will be 
provided and the ground for each plot will be treated.  At this stage we are 
aiming at getting a site layout that the allotment association are happy with.  
The finer detail will be discussed further along the scheme.  A copy of the 
plans will be shared with the allotments.  It was explained that no option is “off 
the table”, these are proposed designs.  Access to the allotments will be from 
the rear of Pwllygath Street with a pedestrian access from the lane. 

 
5.9 Summary of written representations 

Three items of direct correspondence were received during the consultation 
period. See Appendix 12 of this consultation report for details and 
responses/clarifications. 

 
5.10 Responses were sent to the originators of items of correspondence thanking 

them for their submissions and stating that their comments would be taken into 
consideration. 
 

5.11 Two letters of correspondence were received raising issues relating to the 
Welsh Language Impact Assessment, which has been updated following the 
consultation. 
 

5.12 In the meeting on 10 January 2022, a representative of Pwllygath Allotments    
   Association, advised that they wrote to object to the plans for the allotments,    
  not to object to the plans for the school.  The objection concerns arose from  
  the proposed access point at Caer Wetral.  The access point at Pwllygath  
  Street is identical to the current provision and therefore alleviates those  
  concerns. 

Page 131



 

 
5.13 Summary of online survey responses 

 Overall, 78 respondents completed the online questionnaire. In respect of the 
question on whether they support the proposal, 65 responded ‘Yes’ and 8 
responded ‘No’.  See Appendix 3 of this consultation report for details and the 
authority’s responses/clarifications in respect of issues raised. 

 
6. The view of Estyn, her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training in 

Wales 
 
6.1  Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal.  See Appendix 

14 of this consultation report for full details.  Estyn’s has concluded as follows: 
 

“The proposal is aligned to the five key principles which form part of the 
framework for school organisation in Bridgend local authority.  These key 
principles inform the organisation and modernisation of the local authority’s 
schools.  The proposals are likely to maintain the standard of education 
provision in the area.  The proposal is likely to improve provision for foundation 
phase pupils”. 
 

7 Impact Assessments 
 
7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the 

consultation stage and was published as part of the consultation document. 
The assessment concluded that the proposal is unlikely to impact 
disproportionately on any protected group. Having reviewed responses to the 
consultation, the conclusion remains valid. 
 

7.2 A Welsh Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the consultation 
stage and was published as part of the consultation document. It concluded 
that there would be no significant impact on the Welsh language provision 
currently experienced by learners at the school and that Welsh would continue 
to be taught through the curriculum as presently.  The Welsh Impact 
Assessment has been updated following consultation. 
 

7.3 A Community Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the 
consultation stage and was published as part of the consultation document. 
The infant and junior school sites are located within 0.4 miles of each other.  It 
is therefore not anticipated to be significant potential for there to be negative 
impact on the community. However, there is a possibility that there may be a 
positive impact on community cohesion as should the proposal go forward, 
learners would be attending a new school building which will incorporate 
purpose-built community facilities.  Having reviewed responses to the 
consultation, the assessment has been updated and the conclusion remains 
valid. 
 

7.4 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 has been considered 

in formulating the proposal (see Appendix 15). 

8 Financial Implications 
 

Page 132



 

8.1 £10.2m has been allocated in the Capital Programme for this project and the 
WG intervention rate is 65%. The scheme, should it go ahead, could generate 
revenue cost efficiencies as a consequence of moving from multiple sites to a 
single site. The exact amounts are difficult to quantify at present as they will 
form part of the annual formula funding process. Any potential revenue costs 
involved with moving allotments and ATC would be minimal. 

 
 
9.  Statutory process in determining proposals 
 
 - The following table sets out the provisional timetable: 
 

Activity Date 

Consultation period where we welcome your views and 
observations on the proposal*.  

23 November 
2021 to 12 
January 2022 

 
Draft Consultation Report to cabinet on the outcomes of the 
consultation. 
 

 
February 2022 

 
Publish Approved Consultation Report on BCBC website, hard 
copies available on request. 
 

 
February 2022 

 
If agreed by the cabinet of Bridgend County Borough Council, a 
Public Notice will be published and there will be a period of 28 days 
in which to submit any objections to the proposal in writing. 
 

March 2022 

 
If there are no objections cabinet can decide whether to proceed or 
not. If there are any objections, an Objections Report will be 
forwarded to cabinet for their consideration and subsequent 
determination. The approved report will then be published on the 
BCBC website and hard copies of the report will be made available 
upon request. 
Publication of the decision notice. 
 

 
May 2022 
 
 
 
 
May 2022 
 

 
Implementation. 
 

September 2025 

 
 
 
Hard Copies of this report are available on request. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Education and Family Support Directorate (Directorate Support 
Unit) 
Telephone:  (01656) 643643 
 

Page 133



 

E-mail:  edsu@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 

Bridgend, 
CF31 4WB 

Page 134



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x5 

Teacher x1 
 
No attendees. 
 

  

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting – Open event 

Tuesday 30 November 2021  

4pm-5pm 

Page 135



 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x5 

Teacher x1 
Member of the public x1 

 
The Schools Programme Manager introduced the consultation session and set out 
the purpose of the meeting, nature and process of the consultation and outlined the 
proposal. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

Where will the allotments be located? They will move behind the school.  Access 
will be from the existing lane where the Air 
Training Corp (ATC) is currently situated. 

Will there be enough space for the school? We will gain space by using land currently 
occupied by the ATC.  The new school will 
be built as a two-storey school. 

What will happen to the current school 
building? 

The current building will be demolished and 
re-built.  Construction will be undertaken in 
phases. 

Have the allotments been given any notice 
and how will their premises be secured? 

We have been in discussion with Pwllygath 
Allotment Association throughout the 
process and have discussed their 
requirements and needs.  We follow secure 
by design for example fencing and security 
will be included. 

Parking is a concern, where will staff and 
visitors to the school park? 

A car park is included in the scheme. 

There is a lot of on-street parking and 
parents waiting to drop-off / collect their 
children, it gets very busy and the 
surrounding lanes won’t cope with extra 
traffic, visibility is poor and there is parking 
at each side, it’s not safe. 

The road leading to the school will be 
widened.  There will be a landscaped area 
between the road and the pavement to 
create a separation between pedestrians 
and vehicles.  We are in discussion 
regarding a drop-off area at the school.  The 
school will have a school travel plan and we 
are actively encouraging people to walk, 
cycle or scooter to school.  Bringing both 
schools to one site may alleviate some of 
the issues where parents are racing 
between both schools. 

Is there any school transport to the school? No, only transport to sporting events. 

Will there be a “green roof”? A green roof, along with the cost 
implications is being considered.  There will 
be green technology throughout the school, 
such as solar panels, windows, and heat 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting – Open event 

Tuesday 30 November 2021  

5.15pm -6.15pm 

Page 136



 

sources.  The school will be built as Net 
Zero Carbon. 

Who will design and construct the school? We have an in-house architect to design, 
and we will hold a tendering process to 
employ the construction company. 

Where will construction vehicles park? They will have an on-site compound.  There 
will be a strict “no vehicle movement” policy 
in place during peak times.  These 
conditions will be written into their contract.  
If there are any problems, please email a 
member of the team and we will deal with 
the issue. 

 

  

Page 137



 

APPENDIX 3 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x5 

Teacher x1 
School Governors x5 

 
The Schools Programme Manager introduced the consultation session and set out 
the purpose of the meeting and explained the nature and process of the consultation 
and outlined the proposal.  The team introduced themselves. The Principal 
Architectural Assistant shared the site plan to the screen. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

 Noted the amount of information received 
before and during the consultation process 
has been great. 

Will the lane have a one-way system?  
 
 
 
 
 
XX requested further investigation.  
Residents are positive about the 
development.  The garages back on to the 
lane and two-way traffic is unsafe. 
 

We need to consider the views of local 
residents.  This can investigated as we 
develop the scheme further.  
 
 
 
XX: will speak with traffic management and 
explain that residents may be more in 
favour.  We can undertake a pre-
consultation.  XX will provide feedback to 
the team.  
 
XX and XX are happy to approach 
residents. 

How close to scale is the drawing?  The 
yard space looks small.  Will the artificial 
areas be used as play areas?  There will be 
240 children on the yard. 

There are m² rates per child. The yard looks 
smaller on the drawing than what it is.  This 
is not a final design. 

Does there have to be a playground near 
the school?  There are several playgrounds 
available in the village.  Playgrounds are a 
magnet for vandalism. 

Can’t give an answer to that.  We are 
looking to ensure that we don’t lose any of 
the current facilities.   
The local authority is actively encouraging 
green space and parks and it will be 
expected to keep the playground.  
We follow secure by design, for example 
fencing and security / CCTV will be 
included. 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting with  
 School Governing Body 

Thursday 2 December 2021 at 16:15pm 
 

Page 138



 

Will the CCTV encompass the park? 
 
 
 
If the sport facilities can be used by the 
community during the evening, this will 
deter vandalism in the area during the 
evenings. 

The CCTV will cover the car park and may 
possibly cover the playground.  We would 
need to check the regulations. 
 
Will help to facilitate the women’s rugby 
team.   
 
All agreed that the facility will be an asset to 
the community. 

How would the community be affected by 
floodlighting, overlooking their homes? 

Floodlighting will need to be considered.  
There are floodlights at the Rugby Club, no 
complaints have been received to date. 

Will a disability impact assessment be 
undertaken?  The school will be on two 
levels. Have lifts, stairways and doorways 
been considered? 

As well as building regulations, we have to 
satisfy the Disability Discrimination Act.  
Stairs and ramps must be set at a certain 
gradient and there will be a lift.  The 
teaching block will have fire exit staircases 
and an evacuation chair, including call 
points which are directly linked to the 
emergency services. 

What will happen to the residual infant 
school site?  The Local Development Plan 
has the site earmarked for residential 
development.  We can’t have more 
residential developments if we haven’t got 
the services to accommodate them.   
Could a bigger playground be located 
there? 

No decision has been made as to how the 
residual infant site will be used.  Subject to 
the outcome of this process, Cabinet will 
make a decision. 

The lease is coming to an end for the Girl 
Guides Club, could they utilise the infant 
school site?  Also, could the Air Training 
Corp (ATC) use that site? 

Corporate Landlord Department is currently 
looking at alternative sites for the ATC.  
There may opportunity for them to use the 
school hall / facilities. 
The Girl Guides/Rainbows/Brownies are 
currently in a Valleys to Coast property 
(Scout Hall). 
The school would welcome the option for 
the Girl Guides to use their facilities. 
There will be a main hall and a studio hall 
with a community kitchen. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 139



 

APPENDIX 4 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC staff x6ve p 

Teacher x1 
School Council members (x16) 

 
The Corporate Director introduced the consultation session and set out the purpose 
of the meeting and the team introduced themselves.  The Project Manager, School 
Modernisation, explained the nature and process of the consultation and outlined the 
proposal.  The Principal Architectural Assistant shared the site plan and photographs 
of other new schools to the screen. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

Where are the allotments moving to? They will move behind the school, 
approximately 100 metres from where they 
currently are. 

xx:  will the new school be where our 
current play area is?   

Explained the new location using a map on 
screen.  The teaching block will be situated 
where the current grassed area is. 

Will the new school hall be bigger? Yes 

Will the new school be situated at the junior 
and infant site as it is now? 

It will be situated on the junior school site.  
Everyone will be on the same site in one 
building. 

What will happen to the infants school 
building? 

We have not decided what will happen with 
the infant school building yet.  Cabinet will 
need to make a decision whether we can go 
ahead with the idea to build a new school, 
then we can explore what will happen with 
the infant school. 

Will the infants school have their own yard, 
or will we have to share the yard space? 

There will be a soft play for nursery and 
reception learners.  The other yards will be 
shared.  Some areas will be segregated and 
will be managed by the school. 
Once the design is more developed, we can 
work with learners and school staff 
regarding the yard space and usage.  We 
are not at that stage as yet. 

Will the rugby and football pitch be all-
weather? 

It will be all-weather, artificial pitch. 

Where will we be located while the school is 
being built and will we still be able to play 
sport? 

Building work will be phased.  Learners will 
remain in the buildings they are in now.  
Builders and learners will be separated to 
ensure safety.    The playing field will 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting with School Council 

Monday 6 December 2021 at 10am 
 

Page 140



 

remain operational as much as possible, 
there may be a short period of time where 
the field is out of use, but we will try to do 
that during the school holidays to minimise 
the impact. 

How big will the netball court be? It will be bigger than what you currently 
have.  It will be a regulation sized court. 

Will there be different types of toilets? We hope to provide a shared toilet facility 
between two classrooms.  There will be 
plenty of provision and different types for 
everyone. 

xx:  Will the junior and infant schools be 
attached to each other, or separate 
buildings? 

The school will be a two-storey building, 
with the infants on the ground floor and the 
juniors on the first floor. 

 Informed the learners that if they think of 
any further questions, to let their teacher 
know and they can be sent to the team for 
answers. 

Project Manager, School Modernisation: 
Asked the group if they felt that a new 
school building is a good idea. 

School Council unanimously agreed “yes”. 

XX asked if the school council would like to 
visit a new school building to look around 
and to speak with other learners about their 
experiences. 

School Council unanimously agreed “yes”. 
 
Shared photos of Pencoed and Betws 
Primary Schools 

Did you design the inside of the schools? Yes 

 When the consultation process ends and if 
Cabinet make a decision to proceed, we will 
arrange a meeting with the School Council 
to ask for ideas of what you would like to 
see included at your new school. 

 
  

Page 141



 

APPENDIX 5 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x5 

Teacher x1 
BCBC Catering Services x1 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School Staff 

 
The Schools Programme Manager introduced the consultation session and set out 
the purpose of the meeting and explained the nature and process of the consultation 
and outlined the proposal.  The team introduced themselves.  The Principal 
Architectural Assistant shared a potential site layout plan and photographs of other 
new schools to the screen. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

Yard space for foundation phase (FP) has 
direct access to the yard, what about key 
stage 2? 

Explained there will be a learning plaza (the 
street).  There will be at least two staircases 
for learners to access the yard.  There will 
also be an emergency escape route.  In 
effect they will have three ways to access 
the yard. 

Will the kitchen be in the upper admin area, 
with a side access for deliveries? 
Will the design take into consideration the 
commitment for free school meals for all 
primary schools for three years in the m² 
allocations of the kitchen and the hall? 

Yes the kitchen will be situated in the upper 
admin area, with a side access for 
deliveries. 
Design brief is to follow the Building Bulletin 
(BB) 99 Guidelines (BB99). 
Welsh Government (WG) has indicated they 
will be reviewing the floor area allocation 
advised in BB99 and BB103. 

Will there be a pathway running alongside 
the school by the rugby pitch, it is quite a 
dangerous route at present. 

The lane will be widened and a 2m bio 
retention area will be created, with a 3.5m 
wide footway in between. 

Pencoed Primary School has a nature area 
including a pond, are there plans for this at 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School (MCP)? 

Part of our commitment as a local authority 
is to enhance biodiversity.  We cannot 
determine if the site can accommodate a 
pond at this point in the project, but if we 
can fit one in safely, we will look at the 
options. 

Will there be outdoor learning areas to 
accommodate whole classes? 

The drawing demonstrates site-fit and 
therefore is not finalised.  Once we know 
the exact amount of space we have, we can 
determine if it can be provided and its 
location.  The boundary will be hedgerow 
and we could incorporate small, wooded 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting with school staff 

Monday 6 December 2021 at 3:45pm 
 

Page 142



 

areas.  The levels allow to place a small 
amphitheatre. 

Will the walkway outside the school 
incorporate a cycle area? 

The pathway will be 3.5m² to allow for 
walking, scooters and cycling. 
WG advice is not to segregate the cycle and 
walkway.  3.5m² will allow sufficient space. 

Will the cycle pathways link to other local 
areas to allow for safe active travel and 
improve infrastructure? 

We have an integrated network map 
detailing aspirational routes.  We are 
currently considering routes around the 
scout’s club and the surgery.  Once we 
know if this project will go ahead, we will 
look at further details. 

We currently have two halls available to us, 
will we have one big hall available at the 
new school?  It will have to accommodate 
indoor PE, concerts etc. 

Essentially there will be two halls; we will 
install a “moving” wall to create a main hall 
and a studio.  The total m² will exceed 
current provision. 
We will also include a community 
kitchen/food technology room which will be 
located adjacent to the studio. 

Will we have a stage in the hall and what is 
the capacity? 

Not a fixed stage, but a portable stage. The 
capacity will be determined by the fire 
officer.  

Commented that the image is not to scale.  
The school will have two floors.  There will 
be a lot more space and sport facilities.  We 
will need to be creative with the space.   

Suggested a staff visit to other new local 
schools to explore their facilities and to ask 
questions of how they use their site. 

How imposing will a two-storey building be 
on local residential areas? 

The teaching block is a large structure. 
However, the existing school building height 
is currently one and a half storeys.  The 
level of the building will drop along the side 
of the grounds.  We will be adding trees to 
mitigate. 

A lot of schools have stopped using the 
turning circle, due to safety.   
Where is the access road for the 
allotments?  
There is a lot of parking in front of school 
where cars are coming in. 

We have considered a few options for 
access to the allotments and that has not 
been finalised.  The design for drop-off 
areas is acceptable, habits of usage are 
not.  Further education is required to ensure 
that the drop-off areas are used safely.   
Workshops will be held between education 
officers, highways and the School Transport 
Advisory Group to determine whether a 
drop-off is included in future developments.   
We will be consulting formally with staff in 
the future regarding their requirements in 
respect of the design, if approval for this 
scheme is received from cabinet. 

Free school meals for all primary pupils will 
require an extension of lunch time use of 
the hall which will impact on school use of 
hall times. 

This will have an impact on all schools.  We 
will await advice regarding floor area from 
WG. 

Page 143



 

There is an issue with storage at the junior 
site, will the new site have enough storage 
capacity? 
 
 
 
 
 
Is there a m² allowance of storage per 
learner? 

Every classroom will have its own storage 
facilities.  There will be external storage, 
dining and PE in the hall, curriculum stores, 
kitchen stores and a central stock room. 
The Building Bulletin is generous with 
storage solutions and the changing levels of 
the school will allow for additional storage. 
There are guidelines for storage, not 
regulations. 

FP access to the playground, does this 
allow for free flow to a patio area? 

All FP will have direct access outside from 
their classrooms.  We will work with the 
school to ensure the yard space works for 
you.  We will be consulting formally with 
staff in the future regarding design 
requirements, if approval for this scheme is 
received from Cabinet. 

Shared photographs of Pencoed Primary 
School and provided an overview.  

 

New schools usually receive an influx of 
children, what is the scope for expansion of 
the school? 

The school will be a 2-form entry school.  
The site is not big enough for expansion.  If 
new houses are planned in the area, a 
catchment review will be necessary.   
Expansion would take space required for 
yard space.  We explored other sites to 
develop which were discounted. 

Will the drop-off area be similar to 
Pencoed? 

If a drop off was provided, it would look very 
different to Pencoed and there would be 
more green space.  Discussions are 
ongoing. 

Does Pencoed have a separate 'music' 
room for visiting peri teachers? 
 

No, but there are a number of group rooms 
that can be utilised. 

Would like to arrange a visit to Pencoed or 
Brynmenyn Primary School to enable staff 
to envisage the new school.   

XX suggested meeting with ‘Band A’ 
headteachers to discuss lessons learnt. 
XX will involve as many staff as possible 
and will provide the team with feedback.  

 
Further questions can be emailed to the project manager. 
 
XX extended thanks to the group for attending. 
 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School will be the first school in Bridgend to be Net Zero 
Carbon.  This scheme is an exciting opportunity for the community. 
 
We will arrange visits to other schools for both staff and learners.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



 

APPENDIX 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x4 

Teacher x1 
1 member of the public 
Councillors x2  

 
Apologies: BCBC Staff x1 
 
The team introduced themselves.  The Schools Programme Manager introduced the 
consultation session and set out the purpose of the meeting, nature and process of 
the consultation and outlined the proposal. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

 The school has opportunities for community 
use.  There is a possibility the Air Training 
Corp (ATC) and the Brownies to use the 
facilities. 
There are a number of local clubs who 
could benefit and the school would welcome 
and encourage them. 

Will the Allotment Association receive any 
compensation? 

We are working with the Allotment 
Association and have received a list of 
requirements / needs from them.  We will 
continue to meet with them and ensure they 
are not at any detriment due to the move. 

Will the Allotment Association have running 
water supplied? 

That needs to be considered.  Water butts 
are better for the environment.  There may 
be issues with paying bills with running 
water.  Further discussion is required. 

What size will the school hall be? Essentially there will be two halls; we will 
install a “moving” wall to create a main hall 
and a studio.  The total m² will exceed 
current provision. 

 Cabinet decision will likely be June, rather 
than May. 

Does the design follow other previous 
school design plans? 

Each site is different and the land available 
at Mynydd Cynffig follows different levels.  
The teaching blocks follow a similar design, 
as we know that this layout works.  There is 
some flexibility in the design of the hall and 
administration areas. 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting – Open event 

Tuesday 7 December 2021  

4pm-5pm 

Page 145



 

The school will have a learning plaza/street, 
which requires some creative thought as to 
how the school wishes to use the space. 

Will the school be given an additional 
budget to purchase new equipment in their 
first year? 

A budget is worked out as per the number 
of learners for things like furniture.  There is 
a separate budget for IT equipment. 

When construction starts, how can you 
ensure the children’s education is not 
disrupted? 

The project will be undertaken in phases: 
Phase 1: allotments will move; 
Phase 2: construction of school building; 
Phase 3: decant the juniors into the new 
building and demolish old school building; 
and 
Phase 4: Car park, pitches and highways. 

How will disruption to the learners be 
minimised, in terms of contractors moving 
around on site? 

The contractors will be allocated their own 
access points and will have a secure 
compound.  The school yard and building 
will be secured from the working area.  
There will be a strict no vehicle movement 
policy in place during peak times.  Our 
highways team will ensure the access is 
kept clear.  XX has powers in terms of the 
planning and XX has contractual powers 
that can be enforced if there are incidents of 
non-compliance. 

Where will staff park? A car park is included in the scheme. 

There will be a period where the contractors 
will need to use the playground? 

We haven’t designed as yet, if we needed 
to use the playground, our health and safety 
team would be involved.  Advice would be 
provided and we would ensure there are 
parking controls in place. 

 

  

Page 146



 

APPENDIX 7 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x4 

Teacher x1 
Allotment Association x3 
Councillor x1 

 
Apologies: BCBC Staff x1 
 

The team introduced themselves.  The Schools Programme Manager introduced the 
consultation session and set out the purpose of the meeting, nature and process of 
the consultation and outlined the proposal. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

Will any of the allotments stay where they 
are? 

No 

How will they all fit on the new site? The area has been designed to 
demonstrate site fit.  Detailed design will 
follow.  There will be no detriment in terms 
of quantity or quality.  Allotments will match 
the current sizes and will have the same 
amount of plots.  There is a possibility to 
have a container for tools. 

Where will the entrance be? At the side, next to the Air training Corp and 
there will be a central route through the 
allotments. 

All new sites have to have a car park by 
law.  Will we have a car park? 

There are parking standards we are 
required to follow.  There will be a drop-off 
and pick-up area, with space for disability 
parking. 
An area has been identified that can 
accommodate up to four spaces, one of 
which would be a disabled / accessible 
space.   

Will we get a meeting room? The school could be utilised to hold 
meetings.  This is a community project and 
we would encourage you to work together 
to share facilities. 

Where will the Air Training Corp (ATC) go? Our Corporate Landlord Department is 
currently reviewing this.  There is potential 
for them to utilise the school hall.  We will 
be holding a separate meeting with the ATC 
to discuss this. 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting – Open event 

Tuesday 7 December 2021  

5:15pm-6:15pm 

Page 147



 

The allotments are an archaeological site 
(XX handed out documents).  An arrowhead 
was found at one of the plots. 

A site investigation has been undertaken. 
However, we will need to liaise with 
planners to investigate this further. 

Noted that the road by the school rugby 
pitch is privately owned. 

We are aware of this. 

Cars travel fast along the road, if you make 
it wider, it will make it worse. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There should be exclusion zones and zig 
zag lines. 

Traffic calming measures will be 
implemented. 
Traffic managers have been on site to 
monitor the traffic for speed and undertaken 
traffic counts.  We will look at the options to 
ensure the road is safe and that it works for 
the community.  There is a possibility to 
introduce a one-way system.  We have an 
opportunity to make something useable and 
safe as part of this scheme. 
 
This will be included. 

This will cause problems for Lawsons 
Garages who are situated in the lane. 

There should not be any problems, 
improvements will consider everyone. 

Will the local authority provide a state-of-
the-art facility for the allotments? 

We follow secure by design, for example 
fencing and security / gates will be included.  
There may be space for a secure container 
for tools.  

Will running water supplied? 
Would prefer to have water butts supplied. 

That needs to be considered.  Water butts 
are better for the environment.  There may 
be issues with paying bills with running 
water.  Further discussion is required. 

What will happen to the pigeons? 
They need to be moved before anything 
else.  They have a breeding season and 
won’t be able to move until October. 
 
Will they have a new shed? 
Currently they have 3 (approx. 
measurements:  40ʺx8ʺ/10ʺx10ʺ/22ʺx8ʺ) 
 
You might say there is not enough money in 
the future. 

We would like to work with you regarding 
this.  Suggest emailing a timeline and 
information to the project manager. 
 
 
Nothing is off limits at the moment, but this 
will require further discussion in the future. 
 
 
We won’t do that; this project is also for the 
community and we want to ensure we work 
together to provide what is required. 

What happens when construction starts? The project will be undertaken in phases: 
Phase 1: allotments will move; 
Phase 2: construction of school building; 
Phase 3: decant the juniors into the new 
building and demolish old school building; 
and 
Phase 4: Car park, pitches and highways. 

When will you remove the asbestos? The school building will be empty and 
sealed.  Different grades of asbestos 
require different approaches and will be 
dealt with accordingly. 

This is not going to work. We want to work with you.  We want to 
ensure that you have an allotment facility 

Page 148



 

that you are excited about and that suits 
your needs.  It is important that you share 
your knowledge of the site with us. 

There are bats in the area. A full ecology survey has been undertaken 
and mitigation measures will be in place.  
No boundaries will be removed without the 
knowledge and investigations required. 

You don’t have the money to complete this 
build. 

Funding is determined by Welsh 
Government’s 21st Century Schools 
standardised cost. We will work with them 
to ensure there is sufficient funding to 
complete the project. 

Will you fox-proof the fencing? Unable to confirm that at the current time. 

Will the road access be wide enough for a 
trailer or tractor? 

Yes, it will be 3.5m². 

Will we have a turning circle? It is difficult to include a turning circle, but 
there is potential for a turning area to be 
included. 
XX added that it is illegal to turn in the 
roadway. 

 
XX expressed this project is an exciting opportunity for the school and the local 
community.  XX encouraged everyone to consider the positive impact this scheme 
will provide.  The school capacity will provide places for local children in a new 
building with excellent learning facilities.  There is opportunity for the community to 
make use of the school and in turn, this will have benefits for local families, learners 
and local clubs.  It would be great for the school to work with the allotments and 
create a garden and ecology area.  
 

  

Page 149



 

APPENDIX 8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC Staff x4  

Councillor x1 
Pyle Community Council x5 

 
Apologies: BCBC staff x1  

Teacher x1 
 
The team introduced themselves.  The Schools Programme Manager introduced the 
consultation session and set out the purpose of the meeting, nature and process of 
the consultation and outlined the proposal.   
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

The Principal Architectural Assistant 
provided an overview of the draft site layout 
and explained the phases of the 
construction work.  Photographs of recent 
new build schools were shared and 
discussed. 

Phase 1: allotments will move; 
Phase 2: construction of school building; 
Phase 3: decant the juniors into the new 
building and demolish old school building;  
Phase 4: Car park, pitches and highways. 

There is traffic congestion in the lanes and 
Croft Goch Road.  The original draft plans 
showed the drop-off circle coming from 
Croft Goch Road, this is a good idea to 
move traffic from the main road.  Is this 
option still being considered? 

All options are still open at this stage.  This 
option that was originally considered, but 
would result in not being able to 
accommodate all of the playing fields on the 
site. It will not benefit the school by putting 
car park in that area. Relocating the 
allotments and Air Training Corp will release 
more land.  The lane will be widened and a 
2m bio-retention area will be created, with a 
3.5m wide footway to allow for walking, 
scooters and cycling. 

Asked councillors to engage with the local 
community to raise awareness of the plans 
and to gather support.  

Advised that traffic management officers 
want to move traffic away from Croft Goch 
Road, as this would mean bringing more 
vehicles into the school and creates queues 
on the road.  We felt the lane offered a 
better solution and provides an opportunity 
to create a cycle path and walkway with 
connections to other active travel routes.  
This will allow us to seek funding from 
Welsh Government (WG), as the 
infrastructure will be in place.   

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting 

Pyle Community Council  
Wednesday 15 December 2021  

5pm-6pm 

Page 150



 

Recently approached BCBC for funding for 
a safe crossing point at the square by the 
miners surgery.  Unfortunately, there is no 
budget to support this at present, but could 
be if WG funding is available. 

The crossing point is vital and could be 
considered as part of the school 
infrastructure, to connect to the wider 
walking network.  BCBC could be involved, 
if we are able to get WG funding. 

Asked what responses have been received 
in relation to the consultation so far. 

We have held four public consultation 
events. No formal responses have been 
received yet. 
the general feedback is that people are in 
support of the project.  There have been 
concerns from residents of Pwllygath Street, 
their garages back on to the lane.  We will 
engage with the residents at design stage to 
discuss their concerns. 

XX asked the community council to 
advertise the project and to raise at 
community council meetings for everyone to 
have an opportunity to comment. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 151



 

APPENDIX 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC staff x6 

Councillor x1 
Air Training Corp (ATC) x1 

 
Apologies: Teacher x1 
 ATC x1 
 
XX declared an interest. 
The team introduced themselves.  The Schools Programme Manager introduced the 
consultation session and set out the purpose of the meeting, nature and process of 
the consultation and outlined the proposal.   
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

The Principal Architectural Assistant 
provided a verbal overview of the draft site 
layout and explained the phases of the 
construction work.   

Phase 1: allotments will move; 
Phase 2: construction of school building; 
Phase 3: decant the juniors into the new 
building and demolish old school building;  
Phase 4: Car park, pitches and highways. 

Has anyone from the Kenfig Hill Squadron 
been in contact with the team? 
 
 
XX and XX will need to respond to 
information provided in the consultation.  XX 
will contact them. 

XX has had previous contact.  Six members 
of the ATC were invited to this meeting 
today. 
 
XX offered to hold another meeting if 
required.  ATC to let us know. 

What do you propose to provide for the 
ATC?  Will they have a new building, or will 
they have to move out and find a new site? 

Corporate Landlord Department is 
considering if there are alternative sites for 
the ATC.  There may opportunity for them to 
use the school hall / facilities. 
There will be a main hall and a studio hall 
with a community kitchen. The school will 
have an all-weather pitch, in addition to the 
yard and hall space. 
We need to know the requirements of the 
ATC in terms of usage of the building and 
storage needs. 

 BCBC intend to oppose to any new tenancy 
agreement once the lease comes to an end 
in 2023.  We will provide as much notice as 
possible, the minimum is 6 months, 
maximum 12 months and we will specify a 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting 

Air Training Corp 
Monday 20 December 2021  

5pm-6pm 

Page 152



 

date.  Landlord and tenant Act procedures 
will be followed.  If the ATC can provide 
their requirements ie floor space, storage, 
BCBC team will help as much as possible.   
180m² is required for a new hut. 

How many evenings/days do they use the 
hut? 

Cadets usually parade over one or two 
evenings a week, between two to four 
hours.  They are a Centre of Excellence and 
they are undertaking the Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award, which means they may 
use the hut at weekends.  It depends what 
the squadron require. 

The ATC will need to consider where and 
how to move the aircraft. 

XX has a list of questions for the ATC. 

The ATC will need to assess their storage 
requirements for uniforms and tuck shop 
items.  It sounds positive that they can 
share the school facilities and community 
kitchen area.  There are a lot of 
considerations to take into account ahead of 
2023.  XX suggested that the ATC need to 
hold an internal meeting prior to further 
discussion with BCBC. 

We can hold another meeting if required 
before 12 January 2022.  The new school 
won’t be built until 2025, but the ATC site 
will be required in 2023 to start construction.  
They may want to consider using the junior 
building during this time, or possibly the 
infants building.  These requests will have 
to be agree with the school governing body. 

XX asked XX to consider storage for the 
ATC during the phasing work. 

We want the school to be shared with the 
community.  There will facilities on the 
school site available and beneficial to the 
ATC. 
There are many benefits to this project. The 
ATC will need to consider if they want to 
share the school site, or if they would prefer 
a separate site with their individual identity. 
 

The ATC may have their own shooting 
range (not live ammunition), this will need 
further discussion. 

XX will discuss notes from the meeting with 
the ATC and will inform the project manager 
if another meeting is required. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 153



 

APPENDIX 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC staff x 5 

School Governor x1 
Air Training Corp x1 
 

Apologies:  BCBC staff x1 
 
The Schools Programme Manager introduced the consultation session and set out 
the purpose of the meeting, explained the nature and process of the consultation and 
outlined the proposal.  The team introduced themselves. The Principal Architectural 
Assistant shared the site plan to the screen and explained the construction phases. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

XX: The ATC needs to have a presence in 
the area.  Utilising the school is not ideal but 
could be workable, there may be potential 
safeguarding issues.  Asked regarding other 
leaseholds in the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
XX: Timescales is an issue.  Appreciate that 
12 months’ notice will be given.  Storage is 
minor.  There are several cadet sites in 
Bridgend that have a flight simulator room, 
that we can use if necessary.  XX will share 
information regarding floor space and other 
requirements to XX. 
 

XX:  The lease agreement is protected 
under the Act.  We will be opposing renewal 
of the lease.  12 months’ notice will be 
served in February 2022 and a date will be 
specified.  We can discuss further once we 
know the timescales.  We have no 
alternative accommodation in the area that 
we can offer at the moment.  We need to 
know your storage requirements and what 
floor area you need, land requirements and 
information on the training aircraft.  The 
best solution we can offer at the moment is 
shared facilities at the new school.  
Compensation will be paid under the Act. 
 
XX offered to liaise directly with XX 
regarding the lease. 
 

XX:  What will happen to the residual infant 
school site?  The Local Development Plan 
has the site earmarked for residential 
development.  We can’t have more 
residential developments if we haven’t got 
the services to accommodate them. It is 
important to keep facilities in the local area.  

XX:  No decision has been made as to how 
the residual infant site will be used.  Subject 
to the outcome of this process, Cabinet will 
make a decision. 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting with  

 Air Training Corp 
Monday 10 January 2022 at 11am 

 

Page 154



 

Is there potential for the ATC to develop a 
site there and it would be big enough to 
accommodate a flight simulator room and 
the aircraft. 

 
 
  

Page 155



 

 

APPENDIX 11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present: BCBC staff x5  

Allotment Association x4  
Air Training Corp x1 

 
Apologies: XX / XX 
 
The Schools Programme Manager introduced the consultation session and set out 
the purpose of the meeting, explained the nature and process of the consultation and 
outlined the proposal.  The team introduced themselves. The Principal Architectural 
Assistant shared the site plan to the screen and explained the construction phases. 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

  

XX:  There are 26 allotments altogether. 
XX:  The allotments measure 30m x 7.5m. 

XX:  The dimensions of the site will be the 
same, the allotments on the proposed plan 
are drawn to double the width and will need 
to be split in two to provide 26 allotments. 
XX explained the access points and 
pathways.  Currently there is a 2.7m wide 
track, the new track will be 3.7m wide.  XX 
explained this is an initial sketch and wants 
to establish a site layout plan that everyone 
is happy with. 

XX:  Will there be a fence? XX:  There will be a perimeter security 
fence and each plot will have a fence.  We 
follow Secure by Design, for example 
fencing and security / gates will be included.   

XX: How many parking spaces will you 
provide? 

XX: Four parking spaces will be included.  
National Planning Policy encourages active 
travel and alternative methods of travel 
There is also space available for a secure 
container for tools. 

XX:  Will there be a gate at the entrance to 
the allotments? 
 
XX:  School parents will park in the spaces 
provided for the allotments. 
 
 
 
 
 

XX:  There will be a security gate / barrier. 
 
 
XX:  Parents will not be able to park there.  
There will be a barrier. It is possible to have 
bollards at each space with a set of keys 
also.  The entrance will only be used for 
kitchen deliveries, rubbish collections and 
the allotments 
 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
Consultation Meeting 

Pwllygath Allotment Association 

Monday 10 January 2022, 4pm-5pm 

Page 156



 

 
XX:  Raised concerns that the entrance way 
could be blocked by inconsiderate parking. 

XX:  The drop-off area will be improved and 
parking will be provided for staff. 
XX:  There is no traffic control at present 
and this development provides an 
opportunity to put new controls in place, 
such as “no waiting / loading” signage, there 
are lots of ideas to explore.  

XX:  The traffic outside the school is 
extremely busy and can be dangerous. 

XX: Traffic issues will be addressed as part 
of the highway proposals.  The lane will be 
developed to alleviate traffic problems. 
XX: Speed reducing measures will be 
incorporated into the development. 
XX:  There will be a bio-retention area 
created between the pavement and road. 

XX:  Are you planning on marking out each 
plot? 

XX: Yes 

XX:  Is the land relatively flat, or does it 
slope? 

XX: The land slopes.  Some parts will need 
to be cut and filled.  XX has ensured that 
each plot will slope less than what they 
currently do. 

XX:  Have you considered the two 
allotments towards the back and can they 
remain where they are?  A new roadway 
might affect them.   

XX:  If we can undertake the work without 
moving them, we will.  We will look at how 
to place a roadway without adversely 
affecting the two allotments. 

XX: Suggested there is an awkward corner 
by the two allotments that may 
accommodate the car park. 

XX:  will have to liaise with XX regarding 
parking.  The number of spaces provided is 
dependent upon the usage of the site. 

XX: There are three pigeon lofts, what will 
happen to them. 

XX:  The pigeon loft has been agreed by 
BCBC.  Suggest that the best option is to 
place a loft outside of any allotment plot and 
that it is managed by Pwllygath Allotment 
Association.  XX requires the sizes of all the 
lofts.   

XX: Will we get glass houses? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
XX: Can we have a copy of the plans? 

XX: Sheds and water butts will be provided 
and the ground for each plot will be treated.  
Glass houses are not currently planned at 
this stage.  We are looking at getting a site 
layout that you are happy with.  The finer 
detail will be discussed further along the 
scheme. 
 
XX will update the current plan and will 
provide everyone with a copy.   

XX explained the consultation and objection 
process.  The allotments have emailed in 
with an objection, but this will have to be 
sent again during the formal objection 
period, should Cabinet determine to 
proceed with the next stage of the process. 
 

XX:  the allotments are not objecting to the 
school, just the proposal for the allotments.  
We were told you would provide like for like, 
but you are not providing that.  You said 
there will be no access from the rear of 
Pwllygath Street. 
 
XX: replied that nothing is “off the table”, 
these are proposed designs.  We said we 

Page 157



 

would try to avoid access from the rear of 
Pwllygath Street.  Access will not work from 
Caer Wetral due to the land gradient.  In the 
meantime, you said you wanted a 
pedestrian access from the lane, therefore it 
made sense that we revert back to that 
option. 
 
XX:  The objection concerns arose from the 
access at Caer Wetral.  The access point at 
Pwllygath Street is identical to the current 
provision and therefore alleviates those 
concerns. 
 

XX:  You keep changing the plans.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
XX:  These plans work so far.  There is 
chance you will change them again. 

XX:  This is a consultation process and that 
is why we are holding these engagement 
sessions to develop the drawings to 
understand what your needs are.  We may 
have created an idea at the beginning, but 
this changes as we go through the process 
for example, due to the surveys undertaken.  
We need information from you so that we 
can build on your requirements and needs.  
Today we want to ensure you are happy 
with the proposed plans. 
XX:  Wants feedback from the proposed 
design and explained that design is a 
process that will change as the scheme 
develops.  There will be more drawings and 
changes as the finer details develop. 
 

XX: Can we have chickens? 
XX:  We would like an opportunity to 
discuss what we will be allowed to do. 

XX:  Chickens are allowed under the Act. 
XX:  We can arrange that. 

XX:  How far away is the school from the 
allotments? 

XX:  The building is approximately 20-25m 
away.  The building is two-storey, but will 
not be much higher than it currently is due 
to the ground levels.  The roof will be less 
steep 

XX:  The allotments is an archaeological 
site, what are you doing about that? 

XX:  Has written to the museum and is 
awaiting a reply. 

XX:  The playground is a magnet for 
vandalism. 

XX:  We follow Secure by Design, for 
example fencing and security / CCTV will be 
included. 

XX:  Can there be a gate for school children 
to access the allotments? 

XX:  Yes, that is something we can 
incorporate. 

 
 
 

Air Training Corp (ATC) 
 

Questions/Issues Answer/Comments 

Page 158



 

  

XX:  Requested a copy of the consultation 
document.  
XX: Shared the presentation and overview 
of the scheme for information. 
XX: informed the group that the consultation 
will end on Wednesday 12 January 2022. 

XX: will email the link to the website. 

XX:  Will there be a play area? XX:  Yes it will be relocated a few metres 
from where it currently is. 

XX provided a paper copy of the current 
layout of the ATC and asked what the plans 
are to relocate the ATC.   
 
 
 
 
 
XX:  It is not suitable for the ATC to use the 
school facilities 

XX:  Corporate Landlord have been 
searching for alternative sites for the ATC.  
There may opportunity for them to use the 
school hall / facilities.  There will be a main 
hall and a studio hall with a community 
kitchen. The school will have an all-weather 
pitch, in addition to the yard and hall space. 
 
We need to know the requirements of the 
ATC in terms of usage of the building and 
storage needs.  XX will email XX with a list 
of requirements. 
 
XX:  We will be opposing renewal of the 
lease.  12 months’ notice will be served in 
February 2022 and a date will be specified.  
We have no alternative accommodation in 
the area that we can offer at the moment.   

The team asked about the airplane on the 
ATC site. 

XX:  the airplane is one of only 10 in the 
United Kingdom.  It is listed and will need to 
move with the ATC. 

The Principal Architectural Assistant 
provided a verbal overview of the draft site 
layout and explained the phases of the 
construction work.   

Phase 1: allotments will move; 
Phase 2: construction of school building; 
Phase 3: decant the juniors into the new 
building and demolish old school building;  
Phase 4: Car park, pitches and highways. 

XX asked will enough space be allocated 
for the ATC.  The range is specifically 
made, they have a new computer suite and 
lecture rooms, including a flight simulator.  
They are a Centre of Excellence.   

XX:  We will prepare a proposal and will 
look at what we can provide for you. 
 
 
 

XX is worried that that the area will lose the 
ATC and that cadets will have to travel 
elsewhere.  95% of their cadets live locally 
and can walk there. 

XX asked how many cadets attend the unit.  
XX will find out and email XX. 

XX explained there is a super school in 
Swansea that had to downsize their 
boundaries due to lack of budget.  If this 
happens in the future at MCP it will be very 
disappointing. 

XX:  We are using the whole site and there 
is very little land left over to develop on in 
the future.  The small space that is left will 
be developed for ecology. 
XX added that we follow Building Bulletin 99 
area guidelines for school, as required by 
Welsh Government. 

 

Page 159



 

APPENDIX 12 
 
Direct correspondence received: 
 
The consensus of the members is that the allotments have been surveyed there is no 
necessity for us to take any measurements. 
 
The members also decided to object to the proposed plans, the ATC also now object 
to the propose plans Mrs Carol John has requested I do this on her behalf she will 
being at attending the meeting on the tenth to confirm, we all feel the planning dept.is 
push the plans through without any consideration for either ourselves or ATC all we 
hear is empty promises. 
 
You may now treat this Email as a full objection to your plans all will be made clear 
by ourselves and the ATC in the meeting on the10/01/22. 
  
 
Local Authority Response: 
 
Thank you for your email, the views of Pwllygath Allotment Association will be 
included in our report to Cabinet. 
 
 
Direct correspondence received: 
 
We note that a consultation on Mynydd Cynffig Primary School has commenced this 
week. 
 
We are surprised and disappointed that no substantive consideration has been made 
of the effects that this school's scheme will have on Welsh-medium Education within 
the county or how those effects will be mitigated. Indeed, a plan to open Ysgol 
Gymraeg was removed from the Band B scheme for the new building of Ysgol 
Mynydd Cynffig to be built. This is another hard blow to Welsh-medium Education. 
 
Indeed, the Welsh Language Impact Assessment as it is, is totally unacceptable and 
the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) states that the impact on the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan is Irrelevant. This is contemptible and we kindly ask you to 
delay this consultation until a full impact assessment on the Welsh language has 
been completed and as part of the consultation. 
 
We also wish to see the Welsh Education Forum identified as a consultee in the 
process as well. 
 
We will write to the Welsh Language Commissioner to note a complaint about the 
failure of the consultation to include the full impact assessment of this scheme on the 
Welsh language. 
 
We look forward to a copy of the Welsh language impact assessment when it is 
completed and the discussion at the next Welsh Education Forum. 
 
 
 

Page 160



 

Direct correspondence received: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Response of Parents for Welsh Medium Education to  
Bridgend County Borough Council’s consultation 

 
on the  

 
Proposal to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in 

the form of an enlargement. 
 

10 January 2022 
 
Parents for Welsh Medium Education would like to thank you for the opportunity to 
respond to Bridgend County Borough Council’s consultation on the Proposal to 
make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in the form of 
an enlargement. 
 
Firstly, we would like to note that we realize the scale of the work involved in 
reorganizing schools for the 21st century. Parents for Welsh Medium Education has 
worked positively with County officials over the years and have been contributing 
ideas and strategies to ensure fairness for Welsh-medium education provision. With 
the introduction of the 10-year plans, there is a real opportunity to make a difference 
to the accessibility of Welsh-medium education within Bridgend County. 
 
On reading the consultation document on the proposed alteration to Mynydd Cynffig 
Primary School, we were extremely disappointed as it does not measure the potential 
impact of this scheme on Welsh-medium education and, in particular, on the 
developments at Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch O’r Sgêr and Llangynwyd Comprehensive 
school. 
 
There is a responsibility within any consultation to measure the impact on a number 
of different aspects, including the Welsh language. 
 
To be clear, we are not saying that the scheme should not proceed but, rather, 
that the consultation is not transparent enough in terms of the impact on the Welsh 
language nor has it included enough detail about the impact of this increase in a local 
English-medium school on Welsh education in the area. Neither does it identify the 
steps which would be taken to mitigate the potential negative effects on Welsh-
medium education in the area. 
 
In the introduction, you state that there will be an increase of 100 places at the 
school. 

Page 161



 

This is a significant increase and its impact needs to be measured not only the 
development of Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch O’r Sgêr and Llangynwyd Comprehensive 
School but also on the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan in general. The decision to 
proceed to the public consultation stage is usually taken when the internal planning 
and impact assessments have been completed thoroughly but we cannot see 
evidence of this in terms of the impact on the Welsh language or Welsh education in 
this area of the county. 
 
In our opinion, the Welsh language has not been a core aspect of this process. Our 
reasons are noted below: 
 
• Bridgend’s Welsh Education Forum was not given an opportunity to comment 

on this scheme as it was drawn up. This is disappointing as the forum has a range of 
expertise and would have been able to advise the officials on the potential impacts 
that should have been included in this consultation. 
 
• A number of counties across Wales now include feedback from Welsh Education 

Forum members in any planning work. In cases where proposals for significant 
developments in local schools could impact on Welsh- medium education, input from 
the Welsh Education Forum can be particularly valuable in ensuring that any scheme 
is resilient in terms of the Welsh language. To have had the opportunity to provide 
feedback on this scheme and to include a strong element of supporting the promotion 
of Welsh-medium education in the area, would have been beneficial during the 
planning stage rather than at the end of the process. 
 
• In the screenshot below, we are surprised that there are two crosses in the "No 

effect" box for the two points listed. 
 
The Welsh language 
 
Is it possible that any aspect of the policy or proposal will have a positive or negative 
impact on the ability of people to use the Welsh language and in terms of treating the 
Welsh language less favourably than the English language? 
 
*Note: If you identify a negative impact on the ability of people to use the Welsh 
language and in terms of treating the Welsh language less favourably than the 
English language, you are required to provide further evicence to complete a 
full impact assessment.   
 

Place an X in the relevant box 

 Positive 
effect/s 

Negative 
effect/s 

No 
effect 

Explanation 
of effect 

Will the policy or proposal 
impact on the ability of 
people to use the Welsh 
language? 

  x  

Will the policy or proposal 
treat the Welsh language 
less favourably than the 
English language? 

  x  

 
 

Page 162



 

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/12402/211119-school-mynydd-cynfic-
consultation-report-v1-welsh.pdf page 37 
 
 
Section 3.4 of the Welsh Government’s School Organization Code states: 
 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP)  
 

 The extent to which the proposal would support the targets in the approved Welsh 
in Education Strategic Plan.  

 How the proposal would expand or reduce Welsh language provision. In the case of 
the latter, set out why provision will be reduced. 
 
The document has not fulfilled the responsibility noted in the code. While the Equality 
impact assessment (EIA) screening form at Annex C includes a reference to 
the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan on page 35, we cannot see 
any further document that elaborates on the impact as required by the code. 
 
The code also states the following: 
 
Where any school involved or affected provides teaching through the medium of 
Welsh the following information must be included in the consultation document:  

 an assessment of the impact of proposal on the Welsh language ( a Welsh 
language impact assessment must be included either in the main part of the 
consultation document or as an Annex ); and  

 an explanation of how the proposal forms part of the WESP 
 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-
second-edition.pdf Section 3.4 page 34 Code 
School Organization Code, Welsh Government. 
 
• The code is clear that you must assess the impact on the Welsh language. In 

Wales, all schools, even our English-medium schools, now teach to some extent 
through the medium of Welsh. The Welsh schools in the area are also an integral 
part of this consultation and I would therefore have expected that the complete 
impact assessment would have been part of the consultation documentation. 
 
• Local Authorities are required to measure the impact themselves from the 

beginning of the consultation, and demonstrate the potential impact and propose 
ways of mitigating these. 
 
• The fact that no negative impact has been identified as part of this EIA assessment 

concerns us greatly and demonstrates a lack of understanding of the Council’s 
responsibility to assess the impact of schemes on the Welsh language, and 
especially in the development of Welsh in Education Strategic Plans. 
 
• On page 7, you provide commendable principles to be adopted as a framework  

for school organization in Bridgend. I would have expected this also when planning 
the provision. 
 
The priciples are as follows: 
 

Page 163

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf


 

i.Commitment to high standards and excellence in provision; 
ii. Equality of opportunity, so that all pupils can access quality learning 
opportunities, regardless of which school they attend; 
iii. Inclusive schools, which cater for the learning needs of all their pupils; 
iv. Community focussed schools, where the school actively engages with its local 
community; 
v. Value for money. 
 
• We do not want to deprive any learner of 21st Century education provision, but 

it is important that fair consideration is given to all new schemes so 
that robust mitigation measures can be introduced should a risk emerge. 
 
• You have offered, on page 11, a Welsh language impact assessment, but you have 

failed to consider the impact of an increase of 100 places at Ysgol Mynydd 
Cynffig on Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch o Sgêr, which is within the Ysgol Mynydd Cynffig 
community area and which is a school which primary learners currently attend. 
 
• As Welsh-medium schools have no catchment areas in the county,  

a detailed study of the impact on Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch o Sgêr should have been 
carried out before this consultation to show that you have followed the schools 
organization code correctly by showing the impact that the 100 additional places 
would have on the Council's ability to meet its target in outcome 2 of 
the county's Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-2032, and also to suggest 
measures which would mitigate those risks. 
 
What are the potential risks and mitigation measures? 
 
• I would propose that an additional risk should be included on page 13 i.e. “reduction 

in the number of applications for places at Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch o'r Sgêr”. 
Measures would clearly be needed to mitigate this risk. 
 
• It would have been beneficial to have also included the scheme to expand Ysgol y 

Ferch o’r Sgêr in a Welsh language impact assessment. A new stream will be 
available 
in the area and it would have been beneficial to set out clearly that this is going to 
mitigate the situation to some extent. 
 
• It would have been beneficial to have identified other schemes within the county to 

develop Welsh-medium education and to have considered these in a Welsh 
language impact assessment. 
 
• I would point out though that there is a difference between the community’s 

perception of a brand new provision and a remodelled provision. Promotional steps 
should have been taken to mitigate this risg. 
 
• The proposal has also failed to recognize the potential impact on the number of 

pupils 
transferring to Llangynwyd Comprehensive School from this area specifically 
and, thereby, disregards the responsibility to strengthen outcome 4 targets in the  
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan. 
 

Page 164



 

• Could a new provision for latecomers be set up on the site of Ysgol y Ferch o’r 

Sgêr? 
 
The above are only initial ideas and I’m certain that the members of the Welsh 
Education Forum would have been able to offer further constructive suggestions and 
comments. 
 
We are disappointed that the county decided not to delay this consultation until 
an adequate language impact assessment was conducted as part of the consultation 
- as required by the code. 
 
A complaint has been made to the Welsh Language Commissioner regarding this 
document and the lack of a thorough and transparent impact assessment on the 
Welsh language as we suspect you may have broken Welsh language standards 91, 
92 and 93. 
 
Therefore, as things stand, we disagree with the proposal to extend the school as a 
full assessment has not been conducted on the impact on the Welsh language and in 
particular on Ysgol Gymraeg y Ferch o’r Sgêr and Llangynwyd Comprehensive 
School and on the Welsh in Education Strategy. 
 
We wish to see a comprehensive impact assessment and promotional plan as soon 
as possible to ensure that this scheme does not adversely affect Welsh-medium 
education 
in the area. 
 
As always, we will be happy to discuss our response with Bridgend County Borough 
Council officers and councillors at any convenient time. 
 
 
Local Authority Response: 
 
The Bridgend South East scheme at Parc Afon Ewenni (a proposed dual stream 
Welsh and English-medium 2FE school), could not be delivered without the proposed 
residential development being progressed. As there was a delay in bringing forward 
the residential development identified in the Local Development Plan, (to which the 
school scheme needed to align), the provision was not deliverable within the Band B 
period. Therefore, Cabinet determined to bring forward a scheme for the replacement 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School which had suffered serious issues with the infant 
building.   
 
School organisation is strictly governed by legislation namely the School Standards 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the School Organisation Code Wales (Code). 
 
The Code clearly sets out each step in the consultation process together with the 
statutory consultees.   The Welsh Education Forum unfortunately is not one of the 
prescribed consultees per the Code (however, anybody is of course welcome to 
respond to the consultation). 
 
As part of the consultation process an equality impact assessment together with a 
Welsh impact assessment were undertaken in accordance with the Code.  

Page 165



 

The Authority are satisfied that the consultation has been carried out in accordance 
with Welsh Government legislation and the requirements of the code. 
 
The Code provides that Local Authorities must ensure that there are sufficient 
schools providing Primary and Secondary Education for the area. The Code also 
provides that where proposals affect schools where Welsh is the medium of 
instruction (for subjects other than Welsh) for some or all of the time, Local 
Authorities should carry out a Welsh Language impact assessment. 
 
In all other cases Local Authorities should consider: 
*The effect to which the proposal would support the targets in the approved Welsh in 
Education Strategic plan. 
*How the proposal would expand or reduce the Welsh Language provided and in the 
latter, set out why provision would be reduced. 
 

The Mynydd Cynffig consultation is specifically regarding the enlargement to an 
existing English-medium school (ie the medium of instruction is not Welsh – it is an 
English- medium school using the Welsh Government Circular 23/2007 “Defining 
schools according to Welsh-medium provision”).  The existing school is split over two 
sites, is overcrowded and the infant school building is in significant disrepair and not 
fit for purpose. The foundation phase department is now mainly located in mobile 
classrooms.  The proposal is to bring together the infant and junior departments onto 
one site. 
It is important to appreciate that the increase in places proposed is predominantly to 
deal with already existing overcrowding issues at the school. Consequently, negative 
effects on Welsh-medium education in the area is not anticipated should the proposal 
be taken forward. 
 
While the Mynydd Cynffig Primary School proposal, for the reasons stated above, 
has been assessed by the local authority as likely to be neutral in terms of the extent 
to which it would support the targets in the approved Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan, it should be noted that the Welsh-medium school in this area is Ysgol y Ferch 
O’r Sger. The local authority also plans to enlarge this school and the proposed 
enlargement has been subject to its own separate consultation (which set out the 
anticipated impacts on targets in the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan) and has 
been approved by Cabinet.  Consequently, both the English-medium and Welsh-
medium school are to be enlarged in this area. The Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 
itself proposal neither expands nor reduces Welsh language provision. 
 
The School Organisation Statutory Code does not prescribe the format of impact 
assessments, it simply states that impact assessments should ideally be included in 
consultation documents. The local authority has undertaken an initial impact 
assessment (which, as explained in the consultation document, will be reviewed in 
light of consultation responses received). 
 
Impact assessments are reviewed and updated continually throughout the process. 
The updated Welsh Impact Assessment is provided in appendix 16 on page 64. 
 
 

 
  

Page 166



 

APPENDIX 13 
(Snap Online Survey) Responses 
 
Are you (please tick): 
Parent/guardian (37) 52% 
School staff (20) 28% 
Other interested party (please specify) (10) 14% 
School governor (4) 6% 
School pupil (-)  
 
Do you support the proposal: 
No (8) 11% 
Yes (65) 89% 
 
If you do not support the proposal – please state why: 
 
The parking situation is very dangerous. There is not sufficient parking in the 
surrounding streets to accommodate the current provision. As a parent and a 
resident I am opposed to the planning. It’s dangerous for pupils. And there is a 
hindrance for residents. Until a suitable parking provision can be factored in I feel the 
planning should relocate to a more suitable and open area. 
 
I cannot support a proposal that does not include information regarding the plans for 
the infant site. I also do not support this proposal at this time because an increase in 
pupils on this site will mean an increase in the number of children being driven to 
school and this lane becoming increasingly dangerous. There is no support to the 
school from the council in keeping this a car free zone during school start and finish. I 
do not know which land is going to be used for the allotments or the park? I feel this 
is more natural space being destroyed without creative and critical thinking. 
 
The site is too small to house a primary school. Traffic is already crazy with just the 
primary school. I’ve witnessed countless cars speed up Garth street and nearly 
knock children over just to skip the lights to get their children to school Road links 
need to be seriously thought of before doing this before children and adults get killed. 
 
Parking & traffic concerns. As a resident of Garth Street, there is a serious parking 
issue at certain times of the day in the car park at the rear of our house. There are 
days when people park outside our garage and I can’t get to work on time. Also the 
car park itself is in a serious state of disrepair. I have brought this up with valleys to 
coast but nothing has been done about it. 
 
The roads were made for horse and carts and not cars. There is severe traffic 
congestion on these roads when parents drop off and collect the children from the 
current school. 
 
We have too much traffic now and this will double. Some of the parents are so rude, 
they park where they like and will not move even if they are blocking access to your 
own premises. How there hasn't been an accident I don't know. The people pushing 
this through don't live in this street and wouldn't put up with it around their properties. 
And to be putting another sports field there is ridiculous when the existing one is 
rarely used. Somewhere else for trouble makers to hang around in the evenings and 
cause more aggravation to the residents. 

Page 167



 

 
It is ridiculous.  It will be ridiculously busy in the area and the streets will be even 
more busy than they already are. 
 
The traffic situation now around the school is very dangerous and the beginning and 
end of the school day. With the increased volume of pupils and therefore traffic this 
would far worse. 
 
If you would like to suggest any changes or alternatives to the proposals 
presented please give details: 
 
I think this is the best outcome for such a brilliant school. 
 
In principal I support the coming together of the two key stages but I do not support 
the use of the infant site for more housing. If we are going to bring the two sites 
together, the infant site should also be used to support and enhance the life quality of 
our future generations. 
 
I can't say whether I support the change or not as I don't think I've got all the 
information. What is happening to the infant site once it is closed? Will something be 
put in its place that benefits the local community or will it be sold off for private 
development? I hope it's the former. Can I see a map of the planned development of 
the junior site? I can't imagine where the allotments will go or where the new park will 
end up. The lane leading to the junior site has no safe pavement and is already 
dangerous at either end of the school day. Can the lane be made traffic free while 
pupils at the start and end of the school day. 
 
Alternative - could the infant's site be used instead? 
 
Children need modern building and equipment. Both my children attended both sites 
and staff use facilities to the best of their abilities. Children will no doubt benefit new 
state of the art equipment. Staff and children will benefit from this move. 
 
My only concern is the traffic on pwyllygath street, my Nan loves there now and it is 
chaos now with just the juniors there and has been since I’ve gone to the school. I 
would consider alternate routes maybe to school? 
 
Spend the money on doing the infants school up it’s a lovely school and the right size 
for our children to provide the best education not massive schools where they get lost 
in. 
 
Parking on site. 
 
Please find a safer site for the children. 
 
Yes, put it somewhere with better roads. 
 
Why couldn't the Infants school be rebuilt on the original site. The children are all in 
school now and there would be no disruption to them in the future. 
 
I fully support the proposal. The primary school needs to be on one site to fully 
function as a primary school. With the school expanding I feel there should be a 

Page 168



 

provision for pupils with additional learning needs. Unfortunately we are seeing a 
larger need for this within the community and very little schools within BCBC that 
have this provision. 
 
Find a car park for the parents as it's dangerous were it is now people who walk 
always has to be carefull with dodging the cars as no one cares up there. 
 
 
Comment/suggestions/requests/questions: 
If you would like to suggest any changes or alternatives to the proposals 
presented please give details: 
 
The opportunity to bring the Infant and Junior schools together onto one site with a 
school built for the twenty-first century can only be a huge positive for the children 
and their families within the Mynydd Cynffig Primary School community. Our previous 
school inspection in 2017 stated that the school would face increasing difficulties 
moving forward whilst the pupils were on a split-site which I could only agree with. 
Our fantastic teaching and support staff continue to do all they can to work closely 
together on, for example, implementing and embedding our approach towards the 
Curriculum for Wales, despite the barriers of being on opposite sides of the village of 
Kenfig Hill. Locating to a single site would bring us all closer together, to ensure that 
we all feel 'one school' rather than us still being Infants and Juniors. I am very much 
in support of this project and I am confident that it will have such a positive impact on 
the future of the village, the town, the Local Authority and beyond. There is an 
incredible amount of potential within our fantastic children and having the right 
environment with us all working in the same direction underneath the same roof can 
only result in excellence being achieved. 
 
I support the present location. 
 
More resource type rooms. four is not enough for both stages, foundation and Ks2. 
 
This is essential in order to equip the school for the future. 
 
No park at front of school. Needs to be away from entrance. Individual 
play/classroom area's outside each foundation class entrances. Too many pitches. 
Can use same 1 for all outdoor sports. 
 
Any other comments: 
 
Parking needs to be looked at in order for this to go ahead.  
 
Rather than move the allotments to a nearby space on the same land, this could be 
moved to the infant site (it is only 0.4 miles away). I am not confident having the 
cadets site as part of the school site. These are separate things and I think they 
should stay that way. The infant site could be developed as a wonderful outdoor site 
for children. Kenfig Hill is hugely lacking in anything exciting and creative for our 
children. The school needs to have a no car / traffic free zone at the start and end of 
the day. OR we should be asking why so many people need to drive their children to 
school when they should all be living within walking distance! 
 

Page 169



 

I'm not against the proposal to move the infant school to the junior site but need the 
full picture before I can support or oppose the plans. My main concern is the 
provision of safe walking routes to school as we do not have that at the moment and 
it bothers me every day. 
 
What is the plans for the infant's site? What will happen to the allotments, air cadet 
site etc? Where will they be relocated? Are there proposals for an alternative 
entrance/route to the school as the back lane is already very busy and dangerous 
during school times. Alternatively, will there be staggered start and finish times? 
 
Our village of kenfig hill need this new school building to go ahead every other area 
seems to get one built we have been waiting long enough now i think its our turn now 
i think. 
 
Parking arrangments for parents dropping/picking up pupils. The road where the 
school is now is already congested in mornings and afternoons during pickups. 
 
There’s no parking already where is everyone going to park? 
 
Parking / traffic arrangements would need to be looked at too. 
 
Please consider the nearby residents before making a final decision. 
 
 
Any other comments: 
The proposal to build a new primary school on the site at the rear of Pwllygath Street, 
is an opportunity to provide a 21st century school for the children of Kenfig Hill. 
Having a split site school as at present, results in logistical and physical difficulties 
which can impact on the teaching and learning provided. I realise that the proposed 
site has its difficulties and that there is no room for expansion. However given that 
there is no other obvious site available, the present proposal is the best option. 
 
Hope it works out. 
 
I think this new Primary school in one site is long over due and needs to be 
completed as soon as possible. The children need a building on one site that is fit for 
purpose to come together as a whole school. 
 
The new school should be a priority. The community needs a 3-11 school where we 
can all be on one site. 
 
This is a very exciting time for both pupils and all staff at the school. Although 
foundation phase and key stage two amalgamated years ago there are multiple 
benefits of all pupils being together and this is something of which to look forward. 
Careful considerations of possible obstacles have been addressed and we can 
hopefully look forward to the next phase. 
 
This new school will benefit all of the children in the area and the community. 
 
Local Authority responses/clarifications to summary issues raised: 
 
Parking, traffic concerns, school drop-off 

Page 170



 

The local authority acknowledges the concerns raised in the consultation responses 
regarding parking, traffic and school drop-off concerns.  Any traffic issues created by 
the proposal will be addressed as part of the highway proposals in close consultation 
with the Highway Authority.  Pwllygath lane will be developed and widened to 
alleviate the increase in traffic.  Speed reducing measures, together with robust ‘no 
parking’ and ‘no waiting’ traffic orders during school drop off and pick up times will be 
incorporated into the development.  There will be a bio-retention area (grass verge) 
created between the pavement and road to create a separation between pedestrians 
and vehicles to improve pedestrian safety.  A staff car park is included in the scheme, 
along with a car park for the allotments association.  Entrances and drop-off points 
would be determined at detailed design stage, they would be designed in accordance 
with the latest highway design guide and would be informed by a full Transport 
Assessment (Transport Assessments consider the impact of the development on all 
transport modes, set out proposals to minimise the impact of the development on the 
transport network and promote measures to encourage sustainable and 
environmentally friendly transport). Any necessary transport network improvements 
(including crossing points, footpaths, cycleways) identified by the Transport 
Assessment would form part of the proposed new build scheme.  The Local Authority 
and the school will develop and implement a school travel plan to actively encourage 
people to walk, cycle or scooter to school as an alternative means of travel.   
 

 
Mynydd Cynffig primary school – residual infants school site 
No decision has been made as to how the residual infant site will be used.  Subject to 
the outcome of the consultation process, Cabinet will make a decision.  The infant 
school site is not big enough to accommodate both the infants and junior school 
together.  In March 2019 the infant building condition was reported as being category 
D (ie bad/urgent work required) and the backlog maintenance was £1,094,891.  Due 
to the condition of the building, the local authority decided to close the majority of the 
teaching spaces and replace with temporary mobile classrooms.  A subsequent 
condition report confirmed the backlog maintenance had reduced to £767,323, as a 
result of the mobile classrooms being installed.  The replacement school will provide 
a 21st Century replacement primary school.   
 
 
Mynydd Cynffig primary school – Junior school site 
The local authority does not accept the concerns raised in the consultation responses 
in relation to the size of proposed junior school site being insufficient.  Site ‘test-fit’ 
analysis undertaken has demonstrated that the site is large enough to accommodate 
the proposed new 21st century primary school. Building Bulletin (Briefing Framework 
for Primary School Projects) recommended areas for new primary schools (including 
all types of space in primary schools eg teaching areas, circulation space, sports 
pitches, games courts, soft play areas, hard play areas and habitat space) were 
compared to the land available on the sites to ensure that they are of sufficient size. 
Design of the proposed new school would be in accordance with Building Bulletin 
design standards (and will take full account of eg aspect, fencing, planting, safety 
and security, privacy, environmental issues, energy, ventilation, acoustics and 
lighting).  The new school will require to utilise land currently occupied by the 
allotments, the ATC and the playground.  Once the school is built, there will be no 
residual land for future development.  The small areas of available land will be 
developed for ecology purposes.  The junior school is a condition category C building 

Page 171



 

(ie poor exhibiting major defects and/or not operating as intended) with a backlog 
maintenance cost of £304,550.   
 
 
Pwllygath Allotment Association  
 
The allotments located at Pwllygath Street would need to be relocated. However, the 
design team has demonstrated that the allotments can be accommodated on land 
adjacent to the junior site.  Access will be from the existing lane where the ATC is 
currently situated.  The local authority will ensure that the allotments are at no 
detriment. 
 
 
Air Training Corp (ATC)  
The land on which the ATC building is located would form part of the school 
development site.  Consideration will be given to incorporating the ATC usage into the 
new school development. 
 
 
The Playground 
The playground next to the junior school would have to be relocated, but it will still be 
within 50m of the school.  The local authority follows “secure by design”, for example 
fencing and security / gates will be included.  There will be a perimeter security fence 
around the school and the allotments.  
 
 
 
  

Page 172



 

 

APPENDIX 14 
 
Estyn’s response to the proposal by Bridgend County Borough Council to 
make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in the form of 
an enlargement. The existing split-site arrangement would cease and the infant 
department would relocate to a new build primary school on the existing 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School junior site at Pwllygath Street, Kenfig Hill, 
Bridgend, CF33 6ET with effect from September 2025.    
 
 
Introduction 
This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training 
in Wales.  
 
Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn. 
However, Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code 
and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 
organisation matters. Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 
opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals.  
 
Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 
following response to the information provided by the proposer.  
 
Summary/ Conclusion  
The proposal is aligned to the five key principles which form part of the framework for 
school organisation in Bridgend local authority. These key principles inform the 
organisation and modernisation of the local authority’s schools. The proposals are 
likely to maintain the standard of education provision in the area. The proposal is 
likely to improve provision for foundation phase pupils.  
 
Description and benefits  
The proposer has provided a clear rational for the proposal throughout the 
consultation document. The proposal provides a detailed and clear description of the 
plans for Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, including the projected timetable for 
statutory procedures for the implementation of the proposal. The council has brought 
forward the proposal in order to provide additional primary places to serve the 
traditional catchment of the school, to address building condition and overcrowding 
issues, and to bring the infant and junior departments onto one site.  
 
The expected benefits and possible disadvantages of the proposal are made clear 
throughout the consultation document. Due consideration is given to the proposal’s 
benefits when compared to maintaining the status quo. The proposal is to make a 
regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary school, currently on two sites. The 
existing split-site arrangements would cease, and the infant department would 
relocate to a new build Primary school on the existing Mynydd Cynffig Primary 
School junior site, which is located 0.4 miles from the current infant site. The current 
infant building is in a poor state of repair, and the proposal gives due consideration to 
the impact of the proposed changes on the school during the interim period.  
 

Page 173



 

The infant building is in category D (‘bad condition with urgent work required’ noted in 
March 2019) with significant backlog maintenance of over £1000 000. Due to the 
poor condition of the building the local authority made the decision to close the 
majority of teaching spaces and establish temporary mobile classrooms at the site.  
 
The proposal sets out reasonable alternatives and reasons why these have been 
discounted. It also acknowledges the minimal impact on learner travel arrangements 
as the infant and junior sites are 0.4 miles apart. The proposal demonstrates that the 
proposed changes are unlikely to increase surplus places at the school. Projected 
numbers show that the proposal’s plans for pupil numbers align with current 
projections. Current capacity at the school is 333 full time and 67 full time equivalent 
nursery places, (in place since the school was established in 2015) The proposal is 
for the capacity to increase to 420 learner places (2 form entry) and 75 full time 
equivalent nursery places. January 2021 data show the school to be above their 
agreed capacity. Outline projections up to 2025 show that the school is likely to 
remain above its capacity.  
 
The proposal includes details of financial implications of the prosed changes at 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School and potential savings.  
 
Educational aspects of the proposal  
The proposal demonstrates clearly that the local authority has considered the impact 
of proposed changes on quality and standards in education at the school. It outlines 
the advantages of brining the infant and junior departments together on one site. 
Learners and staff would benefit from providing for learners in a brand-new facility, 
designed to facilitate teaching and learning. This is noted as being particularly 
significant for the foundation phase pupils, who would access a more appropriate 
provision. The proposal also refers to the possibility of incorporating a community 
provision into the new building.  
 
The proposal refers to the impact of developing the school on outcomes for learners 
and concludes that prosed changes are likely to have a positive impact on quality 
and standards. It notes the comments made by Estyn inspectors during the most 
recent inspection in 2017, referring to the negative impact of the school being housed 
over two sites. The report’s findings were positive, with all inspection areas 
considered ‘good.’  
 
The quality of provision, including teaching at the school are considered in the 
proposal. It states that the school already makes best use of its learning 
environments but would benefit significantly from having learning environments 
designed to facilitate the principles of foundation phase pedagogy and to support the 
implementation of the Curriculum for Wales.  
 
The historically strong leadership at the school brings the proposal to the conclusion 
that the proposed changes are unlikely to have a significant impact upon leadership 
and management at the school, and how the school is run. However, it 
acknowledges the advantages of the whole team being located on one site.  
 
The proposal considers the most recent Estyn reports for each of the schools which 
may be affected. It also considers the possible impact on members of the local 
community who may be affected unfairly by the carrying out of the proposal. It invites 
the views of interested parties. The proposal includes a community impact 

Page 174



 

assessment and highlights community groups likely to be affected by the proposed 
changes. It also includes the steps the local authority proposes to mitigate the impact 
on individuals and organisations.  
 
The proposal outlines that construction of the new school building would be 
undertaken in a phased manner to ensure that teaching and learning can continue at 
the junior site during the construction period. 
 
 
Local Authority responses/clarifications to summary issues raised: 
The proposed new school building would be suitably designed to meet the 
requirements for the delivery of 21st Century teaching and learning and will address 
building condition and overcrowding issues.  The school will provide additional 
primary pupil places to serve the traditional catchment area of the school and bring 
both the infant and junior departments together onto one site.  This is an exciting 
opportunity for a school, which is designed to provide the right learning environment 
and curriculum opportunities, particularly at the foundation phase. The building will 
also present opportunities to share facilities with local clubs and to provide shared 
community facilities.   
 
The proposed changes are unlikely to have a significant impact upon leadership and 
management at the school and how the school is run.  However, there are many 
advantages of the whole team being located on one site.  
   

Page 175



 

APPENDIX 15 
 

Community Impact Assessment - updated following consultation 
      
Name of proposal:  
Proposal to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in the 

form of an enlargement. The existing split-site arrangement would cease and the 

infant department would relocate to an enlarged primary school at the existing 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School junior site at Pwllygath Street, Kenfig Hill, Bridgend, 

CF33 6ET with effect from September 2025. 

 
Who will make the decision?  
Cabinet 
 
Who has been involved in developing the proposal? 
Corporate Director – Education and Family Support 
Head of Education and Family Support 
Schools Programme Manager – Education and Family Support 
Group Managers – Education and Family Support Directorate 
School Modernisation Strategic Programme Board 
Project Manager – School Modernisation 
Technical officers of the local authority 
 
Aims and objectives: 
Proposal to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in the 

form of an enlargement. The existing split-site arrangement would cease and the 

infant department would relocate to an enlarged primary school at the existing 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School junior site at Pwllygath Street, Kenfig Hill, Bridgend, 

CF33 6ET with effect from September 2025. 

 
Key actions:  

 Statutory procedure to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary 
School 
 

Expected outcomes:  

Mynydd Cynffig Infant School will relocate to the Mynydd Cynffig Junior School site in 
an enlarged primary school building.  The proposal means that a new school will be 
constructed to provide a 2 Form Entry (FE) primary school with a capacity of 420 
learners plus a nursery of 75 full-time equivalent learners, with effect from September 
2025. 

Who will be affected: Staff, governors, learners, parents and wider the community.  
 

Approximately how many people will be affected: potentially more than 1000 
people. 

Page 176



 

 

Expected date of decision: June 2022. 
 
Scope/focus of the assessment  

Consideration given to: 

 the existing use of the schools by the community 

 accessibility to learners, staff, parents and the community 

 impact of moving a primary school 

 impact on the school building 

 impact on the extended community 

 

Relevant data and/or research: 

 Out of hours use of school buildings  

 ‘Strategy, Principles, Policy and Planning Framework’ which informs the 
approach for addressing strategic priorities within the County Borough and the 
subsequent 2015 ‘Principles Document’ 

 Learner projections, capacity and building conditions 

 
Findings: 
Community Use:   

 None of the existing buildings are utilised for out of-hours use by local 
organisations or for adult and community learning.  

 The infant site holds a breakfast club and a simply out of school club in the 
school hall after school.   

 The junior site holds a breakfast club and teacher led after school clubs. 
 

Primary Policy: 

 This proposal aligns with the March 2015 ‘Principles Document’ 
 

Learner projections, capacity, building condition: 

 The learner projections affecting primary schools in the cluster show that the 
learner population is increasing for certain areas within the cluster.  

 Building conditions in respect of the existing buildings are outlined below: 
 

School Quality of Accommodation 

Mynydd Cynffig 
Infant School 

Overall condition rating D (Bad; life expired and/or risk of 
imminent closure) As a consequence, mobile 
classrooms have been installed. 

Mynydd Cynffig 
Junior School 

Overall condition rating C (poor; exhibiting major defects 
and/or not operating as intended) 

 
Impact on extended community 

 
There will likely be a positive impact in terms of modern, accessible, purpose-built 
community facilities located in the proposed new school. 

 
Impact on other schools 

Page 177



 

It is considered that relocating the infant school to the junior school site will not 
directly have a significant impact on other schools within the area.  The council has 
considered the extent to which this proposal supports the target of the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Pan (WESP)and has concluded that the proposal is likely to be 
neutral in terms of the extent of WESP targets. 

 
How will the decision affect people with different protected characteristics?  
 
It is not considered likely that the proposal will impact disproportionately on any 
protected characteristics.  If anything, there would potentially be a positive impact 
given that the new school would be designed to be fully DDA compliant which would 
support all learners, staff, visitors etc. 
 
Consultation 

Has there been specific consultation on this decision (if not, state why not 
and/or when this may happen):  
 
Consultation commenced 23 November 2021 to 12 January 2022. 
 
What were the results of the consultation?  
The impact of this proposal has been considered and updated.   

 
Across the protected characteristics, what difference in views did analysis of 
the consultation reveal? 
The assessment concluded that the proposal is unlikely to impact disproportionately 
on any protected group. 

 

What conclusions have been drawn from the analysis on how the decision will 
affect people with different protected characteristics? 
It is not considered likely that the proposal will impact disproportionately on any 
protected characteristics.  If anything, there would potentially be a positive impact 
given that the new school would be designed to be fully DDA compliant which would 
support all learners, staff, visitors etc. 
 
Assessment of impact on staff 
Please give details of impact on staff, including staffing profile if/as 
appropriate: 
 
The proposal may have an impact on teaching and non-teaching staff.  Determination 
of this is a matter for the governing body and will be based on educational need and 
the budget available. 
 
 
Assessment of impact on wider community 

Please give details of any impacts to the community as a whole: 
 
The infant and junior school sites are located within 0.4 miles of each other.  It is 
therefore not anticipated to be significant potential for there to be negative impact on 
the community.  
 

Page 178



 

However, there is a possibility that there may be a positive impact on community 
cohesion as should the proposal go forward, learners would be attending a new 
school building which will incorporate purpose-built community facilities. 
 
Analysis of impact by protected characteristics 

Please summarise the results of the analysis: 
It is not considered likely that the proposal will impact disproportionately on any 
protected characteristics. 
 

Assess the relevance and impact of the decision to people with different 
characteristics  

Relevance = High/Low/None Impact = High/Low/Neutral 

Characteristic Relevance Impact 

Age High Low 

Disability None Neutral 

Gender reassignment None Neutral 

Marriage and civil partnership None Neutral 

Pregnancy and maternity None Neutral 

Race None Neutral 

Religion or belief None  Neutral 

Sex None Neutral 

Sexual orientation None  Neutral 

Other socially excluded groups (include health 
inequalities) 

None Neutral 

 

Where any negative impact has been identified, please outline the measures 
taken to mitigate against it: 
 
No negative impact has been identified. 
 

 
Please advise on the overall equality implications that should be taken into 
account in the final decision, considering relevance and impact: 

The assessment concluded that the proposal is unlikely to impact disproportionately 
on any protected group. 

 

Signed: 

 
Project Manager, School Modernisation Team, Education and Family 
Support 

 

Page 179



 

Date: 

 
24 January 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 180



 

Appendix 16 - Welsh Language Impact Assessment – updated following 
consultation 

 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 

 
The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) is the local authority’s strategy which 
sets out the way in which it aims to facilitate an increase in the number of people of 
all ages able to use the Welsh language within the county borough.  
 
The local authority is committed to taking forward plans to strategically grow the 
Welsh language and with effective strategic planning and significant investment, aims 
to significantly contribute to achieving Welsh Government’s ‘Cymraeg 2050’ vision of 
one million Welsh speakers across Wales. 
 
The local authority’s current WESP can be viewed via the following link: 
 
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14163/171219%2010%20WESP%20

Appendix.pdf?LLL=0  

 
A statutory consultation on the new ten-year WESP for the period from 2022 to 2032 
has recently concluded and the plan has been submitted to Welsh Government for 
consideration.  
 
This proposal is to make a regulated alteration to Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, in 
the form of an enlargement. The existing split-site arrangement would cease and the 
infant department would relocate to an enlarged primary school on the existing 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School junior site at Pwllygath Street, Kenfig Hill, Bridgend, 
CF33 6ET, to create a 420-place school plus a nursery of 75 full-time equivalent 
learners with effect from September 2025. 
 
As the proposed school would continue to provide education through the medium of 
English, Welsh would continue to be taught, as presently, through the curriculum. 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School currently uses the Welsh language wherever possible 
promoting the informal use of Welsh amongst learners and employing programmes 
such as ‘Seren yr Wythnos’, ‘Helpwr Heddiw’ and ‘Criw Cymraeg’. This helps creates 
a positive attitude and increases the ability of learners in using the language. This 
approach will continue in the proposed new school building. There is a commitment to 
achieving the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Language Charter, a framework to promote and 
increase the use of Welsh across the school. Using the Welsh language across key 
stages offers learners the opportunity to become fully bilingual and aligns with the 
Curriculum for Wales – 2022.  It is therefore considered unlikely that this proposal 
would have a significant impact on the Welsh language provision currently experienced 
by learners at the school. 
 
If implemented, the proposal could allow for community use of the school’s facilities 
which could be used to hold adult classes and meetings through the medium of Welsh.  
Welsh language courses are offered by Learn Welsh Glamorgan who delivers 
courses online and locally in Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf on 
behalf of the National Centre for Learning Welsh.  They also offer a range of online 
taster courses that anyone can access and offer Sadwrn Siarad sessions 
periodically. Activities through the medium of Welsh are primarily offered by Menter 

Page 181

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14163/171219%2010%20WESP%20Appendix.pdf?LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14163/171219%2010%20WESP%20Appendix.pdf?LLL=0


 

Bro Ogwr although Bridgend Learning Partnership also aims to offer learning 
activities where they are able to and where activities prove viable in terms of 
numbers. 
 
It is important to appreciate that the increase in places proposed for Mynydd Cynffig 
Primary School is predominantly to deal with already existing overcrowding issues at 
the school. Consequently, negative effects on Welsh-medium education in the area is 
not anticipated should the proposal be taken forward. 
 
Pupil numbers at Mynydd Cynffig Primary School remain consistent, with 383 
learners aged 4-11 as at January 2020, and 388 learners aged 4-11 as at January 
2021 on roll. Prior to the installation of temporary accommodation on the infant site, 
the capacity of the combined school was 345, this demonstrates the level of 
overcrowding experienced by learners (a deficit of 11% places as at January 2020).  
 
Increasing capacity to 420, which results in a PAN of 60, aligns to the size of certain 
year groups that the school currently accommodates (ie years 3, 4 and 5 - as at 
January 2021). Therefore, the additional places planned for the school will not have a 
detrimental effect on Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr. Mynydd Cynffig Primary School would 
be sized appropriately to address accommodation needs for learners who are 
already in the system and attend Mynydd Cynffig Primary School. The projections 
demonstrate that the pupil population is not anticipated to increase as a result of the 
new proposed school. 
 
While it does not form part of this proposal, the Council is also working to improve 
and increase Welsh-medium provision in the area by building a new enlarged 
purpose-built school to replace the provision of Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr on the current 
site at Greenfield Terrace, North Cornelly.  
  
Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr currently has significant surplus places (ie as at January 
2021 the school had a capacity of 197 places and 139 pupils aged 4-11 on roll) and 
therefore, parents are not restricted from choosing a Welsh-medium education for 
their children should they so wish, as the school has sufficient places available (ie 58 
pupil places available, which equates to 29% surplus capacity  
 
While the Mynydd Cynffig Primary School proposal, for the reasons stated above, 
has been assessed by the local authority as likely to be neutral in terms of the extent 
to which it would support the targets in the approved WESP, it should be noted that 
the Welsh-medium school in this area is Ysgol y Ferch O’r Sgêr. In September 2024, 
Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr will be expanded to a 2FE school (ie 420 places aged 4-11), 
in order to further promote the Welsh language and take forward the Cymraeg 2050 
agenda. 
 
Current linguistic profile  
 
The 2011 Census indicated that of the 134,545 residents living in the County 
Borough of Bridgend, 9.7% (13,103) were able to speak Welsh, whilst the remaining 
90.3% (121,442) were not able to speak Welsh. This can be compared to the all-
Wales figures that showed of the 2,955,841 residents living Wales, 19.0% (562,016) 
were able to speak Welsh, whilst the remaining 81.0% (2,393,825) were not able to 
speak Welsh.  
 

Page 182



 

The table that follows illustrates the Welsh language skills of residents living in the 
electoral division of Pyle compared to the all Wales figure, and is obtained from the 
2011 Census:  https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language/Census-
Welsh-Language/welshspeakers-by-localauthority-gender-detailedagegroups-
2011census  
 
 

 Pyle  All Wales 

Can speak, 
read and write 
Welsh 

6.6% 14.6% 

Can speak 
and read but 
cannot write 
Welsh 

0.8% 1.5% 

Can speak but 
cannot read or 
write Welsh 

1.4% 2.7% 

Can 
understand 
spoken Welsh 
only 

4.0% 5.3% 

Other 
combination of 
skills 

4.0% 2.5% 

No skills 83.2% 73.3% 

Total 100% 100% 

 
The data demonstrates that in the Pyle electoral division, the Welsh language skills 
of residents are below the All-Wales Welsh language skills level. 
 
The Annual Population Survey for the year ending June 2021, reported that 17.8% of 
respondents living in the County Borough of Bridgend said they could speak Welsh, 
compared to the all Wales percentage of 29.2% of respondents. This can be further 
broken down to the data contained in the table that follows. 
 

Welsh Language Skills of Residents (%) 

 Bridgend County Borough Wales 

Can read Welsh 16.9% 25.9% 

Can write Welsh 15.9% 23.8% 

Can understand spoken 
Welsh 

21.2% 33.7% 

 
 

Welsh Language Skills of Residents (%) 

 Bridgend County Borough Wales 

Speak Welsh daily 6.3% 15.2% 

Speak Welsh weekly 3.1% 5.2% 

Use it less often or never 6.9% 7.3% 

 

 

Page 183

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language/Census-Welsh-Language/welshspeakers-by-localauthority-gender-detailedagegroups-2011census
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language/Census-Welsh-Language/welshspeakers-by-localauthority-gender-detailedagegroups-2011census
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language/Census-Welsh-Language/welshspeakers-by-localauthority-gender-detailedagegroups-2011census


 

The data shows that there is a gap in the Welsh language skills of residents of 
Bridgend when compared to the whole of Wales.  Proposals such as this significantly 
improve the learning environment and the opportunities available for our learners.  
The headteacher of the new school will be encouraged and supported to consider 
using these facilities to increase participation in the Welsh language by offering the 
opportunity to parents/carers and other members of the community to attend Welsh 
classes and/or other opportunities for community engagement through the medium of 
Welsh.  
 

The Council recognises the importance of immersion in the Welsh language for 
learners who wish to transition from English to Welsh-medium education, to further 
encourage the uptake of Welsh-medium education. Although the Council has no 
Welsh language immersion classes for late comers in any of our schools at present, 
schools requiring Welsh language immersion support for learners who are late 
comers are funded to support the accelerated acquisition of Welsh language skills for 
learners as and when the need arises. As such, Welsh-medium schools are provided 
with funding directly to ensure that any late comers to Welsh-medium education are 
provided with the necessary support and skills to enable them to thrive within their 
school. 
 
This is considered to be working effectively, however, given that many local 
authorities are implementing varying models of Welsh language immersion classes to 
support learners who are late comers to Welsh-medium education, work with the 
Welsh Government, central South Consortium, JES and other regional education 
consortia could be beneficial in understanding what opportunities for joint working 
could be had to ensure children and young people who are late comers to Welsh-
medium education are sufficiently supported. Where there is demand, the Council will 
consider creating a Welsh language immersion class for late comers alongside the 
development of its Band B 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme.  
 
Other relevant data or research 
 
Bridgend County Borough Council has four Welsh-medium primary schools for 
learners age 3-11 and one secondary provision for learners age 11 to 18. 
 
Demand and projections are regularly monitored across all schools as part of the 
school organisation planning process. This ensures that all schools have sufficient 
accommodation to meet demand. The process also identifies opportunities to 
promote and grow the Welsh language. This data has been used to inform the local 
authority’s WESP. The projection figures for all schools in the catchment area of 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School, which includes Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr, are detailed 
in the consultation document. 
 
 
Project Manager 
24 January 2022 
 
 

Page 184



 

Appendix 17 

Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) Screening Form 

This document is a multi-purpose tool ensuring the appropriate steps are taken to 

comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty Equality Impact Assessment legislation 

and to demonstrate that we have shown due regard to the need to reduce 

inequalities of outcome resulting from socio-economic disadvantage when taking 

strategic decisions under the Socio-economic Duty.  It also ensures consideration of 

the Welsh Language Standards.  

Click here to access more information and guidance to help you complete this EIA.  

 

 This assessment should be carried out during the formation stage of 

your policy or proposal. Any negative impact identified will support you 

to devise engagement strategies for further evidence gathering.   

 If you are undertaking a full public consultation as part of your policy or 

proposal this form should be completed before the consultation begins 

and used as a tool to inform your consultation questions and 

engagement activities. 

 All sections and all questions require a response and must not be left 

blank even if they are ‘not applicable’ or ‘subject to further consultation’. 

 

Name of project, policy, function, 

service or proposal being assessed: 

Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 

replacement 

Brief description and aim of policy or 

proposal: 

Proposal to provide an enlarged primary 

school to replace the current school and 

bring the infant and junior departments 

onto one site 

Who is responsible for delivery of the 

policy or proposal? 

Director – Education and Family Support 

Date EIA screening completed: 
14/06/21 

Page 185

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gwynedd.urlsand.com/?u=https*3A*2F*2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com*2Fen*2Fadvice-and-guidance*2Fguides-psed-wales&e=c56e375b&h=e8ea3887&f=y&p=n__;JSUlJSUl!!DewiEMc5gbOXUWA!H5xGZKCcPqTCM4BO0x6nDvZM3AEZ1bSufIjfemmqs5F169cpwWThkVzIyDBeHADn-s5xzhTJ$
https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview
https://law.gov.wales/culture/welsh-language/standards/?lang=en#/culture/welsh-language/standards/?tab=overview&lang=en
https://www.bridgenders.net/humanresources/Pages/Equality-Impact-Assessments.aspx


 

Does this policy or proposal relate to 

any other policies? (please state) 
 School Modernisation Programme 

 Flying Start Programme  

 Welsh Government Childcare Offer 

 Infant Class Sizes 

 Additional Learning Needs  

 Bridgend Public Services – Well-
being Plan 

 Corporate Plan 2018-2022   

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Taking Wales Forward Strategy 
2018-2021 

 Wellbeing and Future Generations 
Act 2015 

 Education in Wales: Our national 
mission - action plan 2017-2021 

 Bridgend County Borough Council - 
Local Development Plan (LDP) 

Who is affected by this policy (eg 

Staff, residents, disabled people, 

women only?)  

Learners, parents and staff 

Is the policy related to, influenced by, 

or affected by other policies or areas 

of work (internal or external)? Note: 

Consider this in terms of statutory 

requirements, local policies, regional 

(partnership) decisions, national 

policies, welfare reforms. 

 Flying Start Programme  

 Welsh Government Childcare Offer 

 Infant Class Sizes 

 Additional Learning Needs  

 Bridgend Public Services – Well-
being Plan 

 Corporate Plan 2018-2022   

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Taking Wales Forward Strategy 
2018-2021 

Page 186



 

 Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 

 Education in Wales: Our national 
mission - action plan 2017-2021 

 Bridgend County Borough Council - 
Local Development Plan (LDP) 

 Bridgend County Borough Council - 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

 Cymraeg 2050 Welsh Language 
Strategy 

 

If this is a review or amendment of an 

existing policy, has an EIA been 

carried out? Please include date of 

completion: 

N/A 

If an EIA exists, what new data has 

been collected since its completion? 

N/A 

 
Assessment of Impact 
 
Protected characteristics 
Is it possible that any aspect of the policy or proposal will have a positive or negative 
impact on people from different groups in different ways? 
 
*Please note: If you identify a negative impact for any protected characteristics 
you will need to undertake further evidence gathering to complete a full EIA. 

 Please place an X in the relevant 
box 

Explanation of impact 

Positive 
impact(s) 

Negative 
impact(s) 

No 
impact 

 

Gender X   Building design will 
cater for gender neutral 
users 

Disability   X  

Race   X  

Religion and belief   X  

Sexual Orientation   X  

Age X   Ensure improved school 
environment for learners   

Pregnancy & 
Maternity 

  X  

Page 187



 

 
Socio-economic impact 
Is it possible that any aspect of the policy or proposal will have a positive or negative 
impact on people or communities experiencing socio-economic disadvantage? 
*Please note: If you identify a negative socio-economic impact you will need to 
undertake further evidence gathering to complete a full EIA. 

 
Welsh Language 
Is it possible that any aspect of the policy or proposal will have a positive or negative 
impact for persons to use the Welsh language and in treating the Welsh language 
less favourably than the English language? 
 
*Please note: If you identify a negative impact for persons to use the Welsh 
language and in treating the Welsh language less favourably than the English 
language you will need to undertake further evidence gathering to complete a 
full EIA. 

 Please place an X in the 
relevant box 

 

Positive 
impact(s)  

Negative 
impact(s) 

No 
impact  

Explanation of 
impact 

Will the policy or proposal 
impact on opportunities for 
people to use the Welsh 
language 

  X Welsh will 
continue to be 
taught at the 
school.   
 

Will the policy or proposal 
treat the Welsh language no 
less favorably than the 
English language 

  X  

 
 
  

Transgender   X  

Marriage and Civil 
partnership 

  X  

 Please place an X in the 
relevant box 

Explanation of impact 

Positive 
impact(s) 

Negative 
impact(s) 

No 
impact 

Socio-
economic 
disadvantage  

X   Improved facilities for learners 
attending, living with socio-
economic disadvantage.  
Potential for wrap around 
provision, potentially enabling 
parents to seek employment or 
training 

Page 188



 

 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
The Public Sector Equality Duty consists of a general equality duty and specific 
duties, which help authorities to meet the general duty. 
The aim of the general equality duty is to integrate considerations of the 
advancement of equality into the day-to-day business of public authorities.  In 
summary, those subject to the equality duty, must in the exercise of their functions, 
have due regard to the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct that is prohibited by the Act.  

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a characteristic 

and those who don't 

 Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those 

who don't 

How does this policy or proposal demonstrate you have given due regard to 
the general equality duty? 

 
Procurement and partnerships 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) requires all public authorities to consider the 
needs of protected characteristics when designing and delivering public services, 
including where this is done in partnership with other organisations or through 
procurement of services.  The Welsh Language Standards also require all public 
authorities to consider the effects of any policy decision, or change in service 
delivery, on the Welsh language, which includes any work done in partnership or by 
third parties. We must also ensure we consider the Socio-economic Duty when 
planning major procurement and commissioning decisions to consider how such 
arrangements can reduce inequalities of outcome caused by socio-economic 
disadvantage. 
 
Will this policy or proposal be carried out wholly or partly by contractors or 
partners? 

 Please place an X in the relevant box: 

Yes X (partly) 

No  

 
If yes what steps will you take to comply with the General Equality Duty, Welsh 
Language Legislation and the Socio-Economic Duty in regard to procurement and/or 
partnerships? 

 Steps taken to ensure compliance: 

General Equality Duty Robust procurement and contract documentation 
includes due regard to this 

Welsh Language 
legislation  

Robust procurement and contract documentation 
includes due regard to this 

The scheme would be developed to ensure there is no negative impact on any 
protected group. 

Page 189



 

 
What have you decided to do? 
Record of decision based on assessment of impact on protected characteristics, 
socioeconomic impact and Welsh Language. Please place an X in the relevant box. 
 
If you identify negative impact on one, some or all protected characteristics, 
socioeconomic duty or Welsh Language you will MUST complete a full EIA. 

Impact identified Next steps: Please place an X 
in the relevant 
box: 

No negative impact 
identified  
 

Screen out: carry on with the 
policy or proposal 

X 

One or more negative 
impact identified  
 

Complete full EIA to gather more 
evidence on potential negative 
impacts 

 

Please explain the reasons for this decision. If you have ‘screened out’ you 

must include information and evidence to justify your decision.   

It has been identified that the proposal is unlikely to negatively impact on any 
protected group.  There have been positive impacts identified, including gender 
and age as detailed in the table above.  As there have been no negative impacts 
identified, it will not be necessary to undertake a full equalities impact assessment. 
 

 
 
Approval:  

Date EIA screening 

completed: 

14/06/21 

Approved by (Head of 

Service): 

Nicola Echanis 

 

Date of approval by 
HoS:  

 
10 November 2021 

 

If this screening has 

identified that a full 

EIA is needed, who 

will carry out the full 

EIA? 

N/A 

If this screening has 

identified that a full 

EIA is needed when 

will the Full EIA be 

completed by (Date): 

N/A 

  

Socio-economic duty Robust procurement and contract documentation 
includes due regard to this 

Page 190



 

Appendix 18 
 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT 
 

Project Description (key aims): Delivery of Mynydd Cynffig Primary School as 
part of Band B of the School Modernisation Programme  
 
 

Section 1  Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied 
the 5 ways of working. 

Long-term 
 
(The 
importance of 
balancing 
short-term 
needs with the 
need to 
safeguard the 
ability to also 
meet long term 
needs) 

1. How does your project / activity balance short-term need 
with the long-term and planning for the future? 

This scheme has been identified through a collaborative strategic 
approach with officers from key departments of the Council including 
education, planning and corporate landlord.  A strategic group 
considered current and projected data including capacity of schools, 
housing, building condition etc.  An options appraisal process was 
undertaken to identify the preferred education option for the school 
and a feasibility study is being undertaken on the preferred site.  
Should the new school scheme proceed, it will fulfil the Council’s 
statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and will allow 
teaching and learning to take place on one site, assisting with 
sharing expert knowledge and resources among the staff.  It will also 
support the day-to-day management and operation of the school 
and will also assist parents with drop-off and pick-up arrangements, 
as all pupils will attend one site.   

Prevention 
 
(How acting to 
prevent 
problems 
occurring or 
getting worse 
may help 
public bodies 
meet their 
objectives) 

2. How does your project / activity put resources into 
preventing problems occurring or getting worse? 

Provision of places at schools is reviewed on an annual basis to 
ensure there is a sufficient supply and there is suitable 
accommodation to deliver the curriculum effectively.  This scheme 
has been identified to ensure that pupil places can be delivered in 
the future and to prevent pupils not being able to obtain a pupil 
place. Certain schemes will also ensure that the Council aids on the 
Welsh Government commitment of Cymraeg 2050. Councils have a 
statutory duty to ensure there are a sufficient supply of school 
places, and these schemes will safeguard the Council’s position in 
terms of any potential legal challenge in this regard.  

Integration 
 
(Considering 
how the public 
body’s well-
being 
objectives may 
impact upon 
each of the 
wellbeing 
goals, on their 

3. How does your project / activity deliver economic, social, 
environmental & cultural outcomes together? 

Providing sufficient places at Mynydd Cynffig, ensures that the 
curriculum can be delivered and meets the social, environmental 
and cultural objectives of pupils and the community it will serve.  
This scheme will promote inclusion and community use of facilities 
will be explored and, where appropriate, will be incorporated into the 
design. Construction will be competitively tendered, thereby 
achieving best value for money. Main contractors will be asked to 
advertise work on Sell to Wales which will potentially provide 

Page 191



 

objectives, or 
on the 
objectives of 
other public 
bodies) 

opportunities for local SMEs to tender for the construction, which 
would support economic activity in the area. Community benefits will 
be maximised. 
 
 
 
 

Collaboration 
 
(Acting in 
collaboration 
with any other 
person (or 
different parts 
of the body 
itself) that 
could help the 
body meet its 
well-being 
objectives) 

4. How does your project / activity involve working together 
with partners (internal and external) to deliver well-being 
objectives? 

The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn, Central 
South Consortium (CSC), health, community councils and many 
internal and external partners to ensure that the building meets the 
short-term and future needs of the users and the community which it 
will serve. Officers will work with technical colleagues developing the 
scheme to ensure that the building design is sustainable and energy 
efficient.   The project team will ensure that the scheme will work 
effectively, in order to maximise the use of resource and capitalise 
on the expenditure ensuring it meet the needs of current and future 
generations. 

Involvement 
 
(The 
importance of 
involving 
people with an 
interest in 
achieving the 
well-being 
goals, and 
ensuring that 
those people 
reflect the 
diversity of the 
area which the 
body serves) 

5. How does your project / activity involve stakeholders with 
an interest in achieving the well-being goals? How do those 
stakeholders reflect the diversity of the area? 

This scheme was subject to a long list of options, which included 
education and site. These were systematically evaluated and have 
been reduced from a long list to a short list to confirm the preferred 
option. Further work involves the engagement of all potential 
stakeholders including Cabinet, members, governors, staff, pupils, 
community, internal and external partners which will include third 
sector organisations, during the consultation exercise. 
 

 

  

Page 192



 

 

Section 2  Assess how well your project / activity will result in multiple 
benefits for our communities and contribute to the national 
well-being goals (use Appendix 1 to help you). 

Description of the Well-
being goals 

How will your project / 
activity deliver benefits 
to our communities 
under the national well-
being goals? 

Is there any way to 
maximise the benefits 
or minimise any 
negative impacts to our 
communities (and the 
contribution to the 
national well-being 
goals)? 

A prosperous Wales 
An innovative, productive 
and low carbon society 
which recognises the limits 
of the global environment 
and therefore uses 
resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including 
acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled 
and well-educated 
population in an economy 
which generates wealth and 
provides employment 
opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of 
the wealth generated 
through securing decent 
work. 

It is anticipated that 
construction companies 
will be appointed from the 
SEWSCAP framework and 
therefore will have to 
adhere to sustainability 
strategies developed for 
construction and meet 
targets for recycling.  They 
are also expected to 
provide community 
benefits on each project.  
This could include 
providing apprenticeships, 
employment and work 
experience plus 
employment opportunities 
as appropriate. 

We would maximise the 
benefits by ensuring that 
certain key aspects are 
detailed within the 
construction contract. 

A resilient Wales 
A nation which maintains 
and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment with 
healthy functioning 
ecosystems that support 
social, economic and 
ecological resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change 
(for example climate 
change). 

The scheme will be 
developed to ensure that 
there is no adverse impact 
on the environment.  This 
scheme will be developed 
with due regard to the 
council’s decarbonisation 
strategy.   

N/A 

A healthier Wales 
A society in which people’s 
physical and mental well-
being is maximised and in 
which choices and 
behaviours that benefit 
future health are understood. 

Improved facilities for 
pupils, staff and the wider 
community encourages 
physical and mental well-
being.   
 
 

Ensuring the building is 
designed to current 
regulations. 

A more equal Wales This scheme will be fully 
inclusive in terms of its 

Ensure the building 
design is fully inclusive 

Page 193



 

A society that enables 
people to fulfil their potential 
no matter what their 
background or 
circumstances (including 
their socio-economic 
background and 
circumstances). 

design and will promote 
opportunities for all pupils 
to learn, develop and 
reach their full potential. 

and meets the needs of 
the pupils and 
communities they serve. 

A Wales of cohesive 
communities Attractive, 
viable, safe and well-
connected communities. 

We will engender good 
relations with the 
community that the school 
serves, working closely 
with them to promote 
opportunities to engage 
throughout the course of 
the project and thereafter.  
 

Improved facilities for 
schools present 
opportunities for 
increased community 
use. 

A Wales of vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh 
language 
A society that promotes and 
protects culture, heritage 
and the Welsh language, 
and which encourages 
people to participate in the 
arts, and sports and 
recreation. 

Welsh language will be 
promoted by the Council in 
Band B, thereby 
supporting the aim of 
Cymraeg 2050. Schemes 
will be designed to 
promote opportunities for 
participation. 

Schools would better 
deliver the full curriculum 
which would include 
Welsh, its culture, 
heritage and sport. 
Community use of 
facilities would help 
inform the design 
ensuring the facilities are 
accessible. 

A globally responsible 
Wales 
A nation which, when doing 
anything to improve the 
economic, social, 
environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales, takes 
account of whether doing 
such a thing may make a 
positive contribution to 
global well-being. 

Construction may require 
the use of a contractor 
sourced via the SEWSCAP 
framework however, it is 
likely that materials 
specified may be sourced 
outside of Wales, thereby 
support the global 
economy. 

In order to minimise any 
negative impact, we 
would seek to ensure 
that the majority of 
materials are available 
from Welsh suppliers.  

 

  

Page 194



 

Section 3  Will your project / activity affect people or groups of people 
with protected characteristics? Explain what will be done to 
maximise any positive impacts or minimise any negative 
impacts 

Protected 
characteristics 

Will your project / 
activity have any 

positive impacts on 
those with a 

protected 
characteristic? 

Will your project / 
activity have any 
negative impacts 
on those with a 

protected 
characteristic? 

Is there any way 
to maximise any 
positive impacts 
or minimise any 

negative 
impacts? 

Age: Yes No Ensure improved 
school 
environment for 
pupils 

Gender 
reassignment: 

No No N/A 

Marriage or civil 
partnership: 

No No N/A 

Pregnancy or 
maternity: 

No No N/A 

Race: No No N/A 

Religion or Belief: No No N/A 

Race: No No N/A 

Sex: Yes No Building design 
will cater for 
gender neutral 
users 

Welsh Language: No No N/A 

 
  

Page 195



 

Section 4  Identify decision meeting for Project/activity e.g. Cabinet, 
Council or delegated decision taken by Executive Members 
and/or Chief Officers 

 

Compiling Officers Name: xx 

Compiling Officers Job Title: Strategic Resources and Planning Officer, 
Principal Architectural Assistant and Head 
teacher Mynydd Cynffig Primary School 

Date completed: 14 June 2021 

 
  

Page 196



 

Appendix 19 
 
List of stakeholders 
 

 The Governing Body, parents, staff, carers, guardians and learners of Mynydd 
Cynffig Primary School 
 

 Other schools within the cluster/area: Afon y Felin Primary School, Cefn 
Cribwr Primary School, Corneli Primary, Ysgol y Ferch O’r Sger, Cynffig 
Comprehensive School. 
 

 Neighbouring authorities 
 

 The Church in Wales and Roman Catholic Diocesan Authorities 
 

 Welsh Ministers 
 

 Welsh Government 
 

 Constituency and Regional Assembly Members (AMs) and Members of 
Parliament (MPs) representing the area served by any school which is subject 
to the proposals 

 Estyn 
 

 Teaching and staff trade unions representing teachers and other staff at any 
school which is subject of the proposals 
 

 Central South Consortium Joint Education Service 
 

 South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 
 

 Town and Community Councils representing the area served by any school 
which is subject to the proposals 
 

 Independent or voluntary nursery providers serving the area 
 

 BCBC Childcare team/Children and Young People’s Partnership and/or Early 
Years Development and Childcare Partnerships where present 
 

 Cabinet Members 
 

 Corporate Management Board 
 

 Ward Members 
 

 BCBC Group Manager, Inclusion  
 

 CAMHS, NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health Board.  
 Primary Mental Health Team, NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health Board. 
 Speech and Language Therapy Service, NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health 

Board. 

Page 197



 

 
 Paediatricians, NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health Board. 

 
 Occupational Therapy (OT) NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health Board. 

 
 Physiotherapy Service: NHS Wales, Cwm Taff, Local Health Board. 

 
 Educational Psychologists. Educational Psychology Service, Bridgend County 

Borough Council. 
 

 Social Services & Wellbeing Directorate, Bridgend County Borough Council 
 

 SNAP Cymru 
 

 Barnardo’s Cymru 
 

 Royal Air Force Air Cadets, Kenfig Hill 
 

 Pwllygath Allotments Association (PAA) 
 

 

 

 

Page 198



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

8 FEBRUARY 2022  
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER - LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, HR AND 
CORPORATE POLICY 

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for items to be included on 

the Forward Work Programme for the period 1 March 2022 to 5 May 2022 and for 
Cabinet to note the Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committees Forward Work 
Programmes for the same period. 

 
2   2.        Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities. 
 

2.1      This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being  
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:- 
 
1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 

county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 

taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 
3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Forward Work Programme will be 

prepared by the Monitoring Officer to cover a period of four months except when 
ordinary elections of councillors occur. In this case, as that applies, the Forward 
Work Programme will cover the period up to the date of the elections.   

 
3.2 The Forward Work Programme will contain matters which the Cabinet, Overview 
 and Scrutiny Committees and full Council are likely to consider. It will contain 
 information on: 
 

Page 199

Agenda Item 11



 

(a) the timetable for considering the Budget and any plans, policies or strategies 
forming part of the Policy Framework and requiring Council approval, and 
which body is to consider them; 

 
(b) the timetable for considering any plans, policies or strategies which are the 

responsibility of the Cabinet; 
 
(c) any individual matters on which the Cabinet intends to consult in advance of 

taking a decision, and the timetable for consultation and decision; 
 
(d) the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, to the extent 

that it is known. 
 

4. Current situation/proposal  
 
4.1 The proposed Forward Work Programmes are appended as follows: 
 

 Cabinet 1 March 2022 to 5 May 2022 - Appendix 1  

 Council 1 March 2022 to 5 May 2022 - Appendix 2 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees 1 March 2022 to 5 May 2022 - Appendix 
3 

 
   4.2 Following consideration by Cabinet, the Forward Work Programmes will be 

 published on the Council’s website.   
 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There are no implications relating to the policy framework and procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Impact 2010 Implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

  
7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
 report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
 upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 
 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There will be a translation cost of approximately £60 for each quarterly update of  

the Forward Work programme when it is published on the Bridgend County Borough 
Council Website. These will be met from within existing budgets.  

 
 
 

Page 200



 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

 Approve the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the period 1 March 2022 to 
5 May 2022 at Appendix 1; 

 Note the Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committees Forward Work 
Programmes for the same period, as shown at Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 of 
the report, respectively.  

 
Kelly Watson 
Chief Officer Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy  
February 2022       

 
Contact Officer: Mark Anthony Galvin - 
                                Interim Democratic Services Manager 
 
Postal Address:       Democratic Services 
   Chief Executives Directorate 
   Level 4 
   Civic Offices 
   
Telephone:  (01656) 643148 
Email:   mark.galvin@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
 
Background documents:  None  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 201

mailto:mark.galvin@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 MARCH 2022 TO 5 MAY 2022 
 
 
 
 

Date Title of Report Contact Officer 
 

8 Mar Insurance Renewal Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance Performance 
and Change 
Tel: 01656 643302 
Email: 
Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar Disabled Facilities Grant Framework 
 
 

Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance Performance 
and Change 
Tel: 01656 643302 
Email: 
Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Disabled Facilities Grants  Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance Performance 
and Change 
Tel: 01656 643302 
Email: 
Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
 
 

P
age 203

mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk


Date 
Title of Report 

 
Contact Officer 

 

8 Mar  High Street and Retail Rates Relief Scheme 2022-23 Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance Performance 
and Change 
Tel: 01656 643302 
Email: 
Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Housing Support Programme Strategy Carys Lord 
Chief Officer - Finance, Performance 
and Change  
Tel: 01656 643302 
EmaiI: Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Refugee Programme Carys Lord 
Chief Officer - Finance, Performance 
and Change  
Tel: 01656 643302 
EmaiI: Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Porthcawl Programme Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Bridgend District Heat Network 
 
 
 

Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 

P
age 204

mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk


Date 
Title of Report 

 
Contact Officer 

 

 
 

8 Mar Harbour Byelaws Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  BCBC Economic Strategy Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  2030 De-Carbonisation Agenda 
 
 
 

Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar S 33 Agreement for Short Term Adult Social Care Services Claire Marchant 
Corporate Director Social Services 
and Wellbeing 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Claire.Marchant@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

P
age 205

mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Claire.Marchant@bridgend.gov.uk


Date 
Title of Report 

 
Contact Officer 

 

8 Mar  Schools Admissions Policy 2023-2024 Lindsay Harvey  
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support 
Tel: 01656 642612 
Email: 
Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  
 
 
 
 

Caerau Primary School – Proposed Enlargement Lindsay Harvey  
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support 
Tel: 01656 642612 
Email: 
Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

8 Mar  Park Street Air Quality Management Public Consultation Action Plan Kelly Watson  
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy 
Tel: 01656 643248 
Email: 
Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

P
age 206

mailto:Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 2 
 

COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 MARCH 2022 TO 5 MAY 2022 
 
 
 

Date Title of Report Contact Officer 
 

9 Mar 
 

Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Annual Report 
2022/23 

Kelly Watson  
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy  
Tel: 01656 643248 
Email: Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

9 Mar  
 

Petition Scheme Kelly Watson  
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy  
Tel: 01656 643248 
Email: Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk 

 

 9 Mar Pay Policy Kelly Watson  
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory 
Services, HR and Corporate Policy  
Tel: 01656 643248 
Email: Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk 

 

9 Mar Harbour Byelaws Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 

 

P
age 207

mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk


Date 
Title of Report 

 
Contact Officer 

 

 

 

9 Mar 2030 De-Carbonisation Agenda Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director Communities 
Tel: 01656 643241 
Email: 
Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

9 Mar Related Party Transactions and Statement of Accounts 
 

Carys Lord 
Chief Officer - Finance, Performance 
and Change  
Tel: 01656 643302 
EmaiI: Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

P
age 208

mailto:Janine.nightingale@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk


 

                                                                                                                                                               APPENDIX 3 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME – 1 MARCH 2022 TO 5 MAY 2022 
 
 

Date Title of Report 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Contact Officer 

2 Mar  Budget Monitoring 2021-22 – Quarter 3 Revenue Forecast Corporate 
Overview 

and 
Scrutiny 

Committee  

Carys Lord 
Chief Officer - Finance, 
Performance and Change  
Tel: 01656 643302 
EmaiI: 
Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk 
 

2 Mar Employee Wellbeing Corporate 
Overview 

and 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

Kelly Watson  
Chief Officer, Legal and 
Regulatory Services, HR and 
Corporate Policy  
Tel: 01656 643248 
Email: 
Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.
uk 
 

14 Mar Post Inspection Action Plan Subject 
Overview 

and 
Scrutiny 

Committee 
1 

Lindsay Harvey  
Corporate Director – 
Education and Family 
Support 
Tel: 01656 642612 
Email: 
Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.g

P
age 209

mailto:Carys.Lord@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk


Date 
Title and Description of Report 

 
Scrutiny 

Committee 
Contact Officer 

    

2 

ov.uk 
 

 

P
age 210

mailto:Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk


 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

 8 FEBRUARY 2022    
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, HR AND 
CORPORATE POLICY AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 
INFORMATION REPORT FOR NOTING 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the Information Report for noting 

which has been published since its last scheduled meeting. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

    

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 At a previous meeting of Cabinet, it was resolved to approve a revised procedure for the 

presentation to Cabinet of Information Reports for noting. 
 

4. Current situation/proposal                                                                      
  
4.1 Information Report  
 
 The following Information Report has been published since the last meeting of Cabinet:-     

 
Title          Date Published 
 

 Estyn Inspections For Plasnewydd Primary School,  2 February 2022  
 Ogmore Vale Primary School, Cefn Cribwr Primary  
 School and Archbishop Mcgrath Catholic High School 
                                                                                                                                                                                                           
4.2 Availability of Documents 
 
 This document has been circulated to Elected Members electronically via  

email and placed on the Bridgend County Borough Council website. It is also available 
from the date of publication.  

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 This procedure has been adopted within the procedure rules of the Constitution. 

Page 211

Agenda Item 12



 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. It 
is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report.  

   
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications  
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
 report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
 the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of  this report. 
 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report.  

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 That Cabinet acknowledges the publication of the document listed in this report. 
 
K Watson 
Chief Officer Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy and Monitoring 
Officer   
2 February 2022  

 
Contact Officer: Andrew Rees   
   Democratic Services Officer - Committees  
Telephone:  (01656) 643147 
Email:  cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Democratic Services 
   Legal and Regulatory Services 

Civic Offices 
Angel Street  
Bridgend  
CF31 4WB 
 
 

 
Background documents:  None 

Page 212

mailto:cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk


 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

INFORMATION REPORT TO CABINET 

 

8 FEBRUARY 2022 

 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

 

ESTYN INSPECTION OUTCOMES FOR PLASNEWYDD PRIMARY SCHOOL, OGMORE 

VALE PRIMARY SCHOOL, CEFN CRIBWR PRIMARY SCHOOL  

AND ARCHBISHOP MCGRATH CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL 

 

1. Purpose of report 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Cabinet Members of the outcomes of the 

recent Estyn: 

 

 revisit of Plasnewydd Primary School; 

 revisit of Ogmore Vale Primary School; 

 review of progress at Cefn Cribwr Primary School; and 

 review of progress at Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School. 

 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy - taking steps to make the county 

borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 

ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions 

for all people in the county borough. 

 

Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking steps 

to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council 

and its services. Supporting individuals and communities to build resilience, and 

enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 

Smarter use of resources - ensure that all resources (financial, physical, ecological, 

human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 

support the creation of resources throughout the community that can help to deliver 

the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 

 

Page 213



 

3. Background 

 

3.1 During autumn term 2021, Estyn revisited two primary schools, and reviewed progress 
at one primary school and one secondary school in Bridgend.  The full text of these 
reports is available on the Estyn website: www.estyn.gov.uk.  

 

Plasnewydd Primary School 

 

3.2 Plasnewydd Primary School was inspected by Estyn in January 2018 and the report 

was published on 4 April 2018.  

 

3.3 In accordance with the Education Act 2005, her Majesty’s Chief Inspector (HMCI) 

judged that special measures were required in relation to this school.  Inspectors 

reached the following judgements: 

 

Inspection Area Judgement 

Standards 
Unsatisfactory and needs urgent 

improvement 

Wellbeing and attitudes to learning Good 

Teaching and learning experiences 
Unsatisfactory and needs urgent 

improvement 

Care, support and guidance Adequate and needs improvement 

Learning and management  
Unsatisfactory and needs urgent 

improvement 

 

3.4 The report included the following recommendations: 

 

Recommendation 

number 

Recommendation  

Recommendation 1 
Improve the quality of teaching and assessment in 

key stage 2  

Recommendation 2 
Raise standards in reading, writing and mathematics 

in key stage 2 

Recommendation 3 
Revise the curriculum so that it is broad and 

balanced and meets the needs of all pupils 

Recommendation 4 Challenge more able pupils 

Recommendation 5 

Strengthen the effectiveness of senior leaders in 

identifying and addressing shortcomings in standards 

and provision 

Recommendation 6 
Address the safeguarding issues identified during the 

inspection 

 

Page 214

http://www.estyn.gov.uk/


 

3.5 The school produced a post-inspection action plan (PIAP), which showed how it would 

address the recommendations. Estyn continued to monitor the school’s progress on a 

termly basis. 

 

Ogmore Vale Primary School 

 

3.6 Ogmore Vale Primary School was inspected by Estyn in October 2017 and the report 

was published on 4 December 2017. 

 

3.7 In accordance with the Education Act 2005, her Majesty’s Chief Inspector (HMCI) 

judged that special measures were required in relation to this school.  Inspectors 

reached the following judgements: 

 

Inspection Area Judgement 

Standards Adequate and needs improvement 

Wellbeing and attitudes to learning Adequate and needs improvement 

Teaching and learning experiences Adequate and needs improvement 

Care, support and guidance Adequate and needs improvement 

Learning and management  Unsatisfactory and needs urgent improvement 

 

3.8 The report included the following recommendations: 

 

Recommendation 

number 

Recommendation  

Recommendation 1 Improve strategic planning systems and 
communication to involve all staff and enable the 
school to make and sustain improvements 

Recommendation 2 Monitor the school’s work rigorously so that leaders 
can evaluate strengths and weaknesses accurately, 
identify priorities precisely and challenge 
underperformance 

Recommendation 3 Improve the quality of teaching and assessment 

across the school 

Recommendation 4 Raise standards of reading and spelling 

Recommendation 5 Analyse the progress of specific groups of pupils to 
target and evaluate the effectiveness of interventions 

Recommendation 6 Increase opportunities for pupils to contribute 
purposefully to the life and work of the school 

 

3.9 The school produced a PIAP, which showed how it would address the 

recommendations.  Estyn continued to monitor the school’s progress on a termly 

basis. 

 

Page 215



 

3.10 In April 2019, Estyn revisited Ogmore Vale Primary School and judged the school to 

have made insufficient progress since the section 28 inspection. 

 

3.11 As a result, Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education and Training in Wales 

increased the level of follow-up activity. 

 

3.12 The school produced another PIAP, which showed how it would address the 

recommendations.  Estyn planned to return to the school in a further four to six months’ 

time, to monitor progress in addressing a sample of the recommendations. 

 

Cefn Cribwr Primary School 

 

3.13 Cefn Cribwr Primary School was inspected by Estyn in February 2020 and the report 

was published on 6 April 2020. 

 

3.14 In accordance with the Education Act 2005, her Majesty’s Chief Inspector (HMCI) 

judged that Estyn review was required in relation to this school.  Inspectors reached 

the following judgements: 

 

Inspection Area Judgement 

Standards Adequate and needs improvement 

Wellbeing and attitudes to learning Good 

Teaching and learning experiences Adequate and needs improvement 

Care, support and guidance Good 

Learning and management  Adequate and needs improvement 

 

3.15 The report included the following recommendations: 

 

Recommendation 

number 

Recommendation  

Recommendation 1 
Ensure that self-evaluation and improvement 
processes result in better outcomes for pupils 

Recommendation 2 
Improve the quality of teaching and assessment to 
ensure that all pupils build on their skills 
progressively, particularly in literacy and numeracy 

Recommendation 3 Improve standards in literacy across the school 

Recommendation 4 
Ensure that the principles of the foundation phase 
are reflected fully in mainstream and observation 
classes in the foundation phase 

 

3.16 The school produced a PIAP, which showed how it would address the 

recommendations.  Estyn planned to review the school’s progress after approximately 

one year, although this was impacted by COVID-19. 

 

Page 216



 

Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School 

 

3.17 Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School was inspected by Estyn in November 2019 

and the report was published on 30 January 2020. 

 

3.18 In accordance with the Education Act 2005, her Majesty’s Chief Inspector (HMCI) 

judged that Estyn review was required in relation to this school.  Inspectors reached 

the following judgements: 

 

Inspection Area Judgement 

Standards Good 

Wellbeing and attitudes to learning Good 

Teaching and learning experiences Good 

Care, support and guidance Good 

Learning and management  Adequate and needs improvement 

 

3.19 The report included the following recommendations: 

 

Recommendation 

number 
Recommendation  

Recommendation 1 
Improve consultation and communication, including 
around decision-making 

Recommendation 2 
Increase the precision of self-evaluation processes at 
all levels 

Recommendation 3 
Strengthen provision for the progressive 

development of pupils’ skills 

Recommendation 4 
Address the safeguarding issue identified during the 
inspection 

 

3.20 The school produced a PIAP, which showed how it would address the 

recommendations. Estyn planned to review the school’s progress after approximately 

one year, although this was impacted by COVID-19. 

 

4. Current situation/proposal 

 

Plasnewydd Primary School 

 

4.1 In November 2021, Estyn revisited Plasnewydd Primary School and judged the 

school to have made sufficient progress since the section 28 inspection. 

 

4.2 The local authority, with Central South Consortium (CSC), supported the school to 

bring swift improvement and addressed all the recommendations.  The report noted 

the following evidence in terms of progress since the last inspection: 

Page 217



 

 

Recommendation 1 Leaders have developed a culture across the school where 

improving teaching and learning is everyone’s priority, and 

at the heart of the school’s work.  Together, staff have 

created a teaching and learning charter that identifies 

precisely what leaders expect teachers to deliver. 

 

Recommendation 2 All staff plan suitable opportunities for pupils to develop 

their reading skills, through focused, well-structured work 

to improve their speech and language, guided reading 

groups and targeted phonics and intervention sessions.  

Pupils write for a wide range of purposes, and many write 

at a level suitable for their age and stage of development.  

Teachers have begun to improve the quality of pupils’ 

writing with a stronger focus on purposeful, extended 

writing.  Most pupils across the school develop a suitable 

range of mathematical skills at an appropriate level and 

recent analysis shows that many pupils across the school 

are making suitable progress to reach and exceed the 

expected levels. 

 

Recommendation 3 The school has developed comprehensive long, medium 

and short-term planning that reflect all the areas of learning 

thoughtfully.  Planning is monitored regularly to ensure that 

pupils acquire the necessary skills in literacy, numeracy 

and ICT as they move through the school.  Together with 

the pupils, the staff are working to design a curriculum that 

is engaging, exciting and that meets the needs of the whole 

school community. 

 

Recommendation 4 Teachers and support staff have high expectations of more 

able pupils and generally challenge them to extend their 

learning well. Through careful monitoring of teachers’ 

planning, leaders challenge and support teachers to raise 

their expectations of what all pupils, including the more 

able, can achieve. 

 

Recommendation 5 The executive headteacher worked with the local authority 

and followed due process to reform the senior leadership 

team to include the substantive deputy headteacher and 

two leaders with specific responsibilities.  In addition, there 

is now a substantive headteacher who was appointed in 

April 2021.   This well-focused team of four leaders meets 

weekly and has a clear, shared, strategic overview of the 

Page 218



 

school’s work.  All leaders now have job descriptions that 

reflect their current roles and responsibilities. 

 

Recommendation 6 Since the core inspection, the school has taken suitable 

measures that significantly reduce the risk of a pupil 

absconding or unwanted visitors gaining access to the site.  

Over recent time, nearly all staff have received 

safeguarding training online that is suitable for their roles, 

including induction training for staff new to the school. 

 

4.3 Estyn has determined that the school is removed from the list of schools requiring 

special measures.  

 

4.4 There will be no further monitoring visits from Estyn in relation to this inspection, but 

Estyn has noted that while there have been real improvements, there is still more that 

the school needs to do to build on the foundation that has been established. 

 

4.5 The local authority, along with CSC, will continue to monitor and support the school 

according to their need, and building on the improvements already made. 

 

Ogmore Vale Primary School 

 

4.6 In November 2021, Estyn revisited Ogmore Vale Primary School and judged the 

school to have made sufficient progress since the section 28 inspection. 

 

4.7 The local authority, with CSC, supported the school to bring swift improvement and 

addressed all the recommendations.  The report noted the following evidence in terms 

of progress since the last inspection: 

 

Recommendation 1 Since being appointed, the headteacher and deputy head 

have worked with energy and determination to establish 

and implement strategic plans for improvement. Together, 

they provide clear lines of accountability and have high 

expectations. Members of the senior leadership team 

provide them with good support. Between March 2020 and 

April 2021, the disruption caused by the COVID-19 

pandemic, several absences in the senior leadership team, 

and matters relating to the governing body understandably 

slowed the school’s progress in some areas. However, 

since the start of the summer term 2021, the pace and 

consistency of improvement has returned. 

 

Page 219



 

Recommendation 2 The school now has a comprehensive programme to 

monitor and evaluate the quality of the school’s provision 

and the standards that pupils achieve.  During the 

pandemic, some aspects of this programme, such as 

lesson observations, were disrupted. Despite this, leaders 

modified their plans appropriately to include activities 

relevant at the time, including evaluating the effectiveness 

of online learning.  Now that the school is operating more 

normally, leaders have resumed their programme of 

monitoring and evaluating.  They have developed a clear 

plan and timetable for monitoring the most important 

aspects of its work. Leaders ensure that all staff 

understand the purpose and relevance of the school’s self-

evaluation cycle.  The monitoring and evaluation cycle has 

already highlighted several areas for improvement over the 

past year, which leaders have included in the school’s 

most recent self-evaluation report. 

 

Recommendation 3 To help achieve consistency and to improve teaching, 

leaders have introduced the ‘Ogmore Vale way’. This 

provides clear expectations and essential guidance to all 

staff and considers important aspects of school life, 

including teaching. Alongside these expectations, leaders 

have outlined classroom non-negotiables, such as the 

expectations for planning learning and classroom displays. 

These clear guidelines help teachers to understand the 

standards expected of them and of pupils across the 

school. 

 

Recommendation 4 Leaders have introduced a range of useful strategies to 

improve standards in reading across the school.  They 

have established a systematic approach to developing 

reading, with clear expectations, for all staff. Staff have 

received valuable professional development on how to 

structure guided reading sessions and now use these 

sessions effectively to develop pupils’ skills and 

understanding.  Throughout the school, there is a clear 

emphasis on fostering pupils’ love of reading for 

enjoyment, and nearly all pupils are developing positive 

attitudes towards reading.  By the end of foundation phase, 

the majority of pupils spell many simple words accurately.  

In key stage 2 many pupils spell an increasing range of 

irregular words correctly. 

Page 220



 

 

Recommendation 5 The school has a broad range of screening programmes 

and processes to help teachers identify when pupils need 

extra help and support.  Leaders have provided staff with 

valuable professional learning to help them to assess and 

evaluate pupils’ achievements more accurately.  They 

have clear systems to record the progress of all pupils.  

This means that the school has a better understanding of 

the needs of individual pupils than at the time of the core 

inspection, including those with additional learning needs.  

As a result, the school provides pupils with a beneficial 

range of interventions to support their learning, and staff 

are deployed effectively to address the needs of these 

pupils. 

 

Recommendation 6 Since the core inspection, the school has introduced 

several learner voice groups, including a school council, a 

healthy schools group and a digital leaders’ group.  

Members of these groups understand their role in 

improving the work of the school for the benefit of pupils.  

They appreciate opportunities to work alongside members 

of staff and influence changes within the school, for 

example when they accompany the school’s improvement 

partner on learning walks around the school to identify 

strengths and areas for improvement in classrooms. 

 

4.8 Estyn has determined that the school is removed from the list of schools requiring 

special measures.  

 

4.9 There will be no further monitoring visits from Estyn in relation to this inspection, but 

Estyn has noted that while there have been real improvements, there is still more that 

the school needs to do to build on the foundation that has been established. 

 

4.10 The local authority, along with CSC, will continue to monitor and support the school 

according to their need, and building on the improvements already made. 

 

Cefn Cribwr Primary School 

 

4.11 In December 2021 Estyn worked with the local authority and CSC to review the 
progress that the school had made since the core inspection. 

 
4.12 Cefn Cribwr Primary School was judged to have made appropriate progress in respect 

of the key issues for action, and in developing the capacity to continue to bring about 
improvements. 

Page 221



 

 
4.13 Estyn will now remove the school from the list of schools requiring Estyn review.  There 

will be no further monitoring activity in relation to this inspection. 
 
Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School 
 

4.14 In December 2021 Estyn worked with the local authority to review the progress that 

the school had made since the core inspection. 

 

4.15 Estyn agreed that Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School has been supported 
sensibly by the local authority and regional consortium, including the establishment of 
a partnership arrangement with Cowbridge Comprehensive School.  However, it is felt 
that the school would benefit from a further period in Estyn review, during which it can 
ensure then demonstrate how changes are having a positive impact. 

 
4.16 The school is judged not to have made enough progress to date in respect of the key 

issues for action, and in developing the capacity to continue to bring about 
improvements.  Estyn will review the school’s progress again with the local authority 
in a further six months.  Meanwhile, the school will remain on the list of providers 
requiring Estyn review. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 

 

5.1 There is no impact on the Council’s policy framework or procedure rules. 

 

6.        Equality Act 2010 implications 

 

6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socioeconomic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 

preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 

impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 

strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 

necessary to carry out an equalities impact assessment in the production of this report. 

It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 

result of this report. 

  

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment 

 

7.1  The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides a 

comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation of the 

service.   

Long-term Supports the improvement of standards and outcomes in schools. 

Prevention  Development of post-inspection action plans or refinement of school 

improvement plans helped to ensure that recommendations 

Page 222



 

identified are addressed and acted upon to secure school 

improvement, preventing standards from slipping. The local 

authority and CSC will continue to monitor the school’s progress. 

Integration Monitoring and acting upon school inspection reports is key to 

ensuring that outcomes for schools are achieved thus helping to 

support a successful economy. 

Collaboration The local authority works closely with schools, Estyn and with CSC 

to deliver the well-being objectives related to school improvement.  

The local authority receives the school inspection reports from 

Estyn and this informs the work conducted by CSC to deliver the 

support for school improvement services. 

Involvement This area of work involves all stakeholders in school improvement.  

Schools work closely with Improvement Partners from CSC to refine 

their improvement plans or post-inspection action plans and to 

identify strategic support from the local authority, CSC and 

elsewhere (as required) reflecting the diversity of stakeholders 

involved in aspects of school improvement. 

8. Financial implications 

 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this information report. 

 

9. Recommendation 

 

9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet notes the content of this report.  

 

Lindsay Harvey 

Corporate Director – Education and Family Support 

8 February 2022 

 

Telephone:  (01656) 642612 

 

E-mail:  Lindsay Harvey@bridgend.gov.uk  

 

Postal Address Education and Family Support Directorate 

   Bridgend County Borough Council 

   Civic Offices 

   Angel Street 

   Bridgend 

   CF31 4WB 

 

Background documents:  None  

Page 223

mailto:Lindsay%20Harvey@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Rhaglen Effeithlonrwydd Ynni Domestig, Ward Caerau 2012 a 2013
	5 Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2022-23 hyd 2025-26 a Phroses Ymgynghori'r Gyllideb Ddrafft
	1A. Appdx A - BREP Final Report 21-22
	1B. Appdx B BREP Recommendations Final
	1C. Draft Appdx C  - MTFS OSC Recommendations

	6 Diweddariad y Rhaglen Gyfalaf
	Appendix A 21-22 Capital Programme

	7 Y Pencampwriaeth Agored Hyn, Clwb Golff Brenhinol Porthcawl
	8 Agwedd At Gyflogadwyedd yn y Dyfodol
	Appendix 1 Regional Employability Framework

	9 Cynllun Strategol 3 Blynedd ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol i Blant
	08.02.22. Appendix 1 - Childrens strategy

	10 Rhaglen Moderneiddio Ysgolion: Canlyniad yr Ymgynghoriad ar Gynnig Rhaglen Moderneiddio Ysgolion i Ehangu Ysgol Gynradd Mynydd Cynffig
	11 Blaenraglenni Gwaith y Cabinet, y Cyngor a Throsolwg a Chraffu
	Cabinet Forward Work Programme.docx Appendix 1
	Cabinet Forward Work Programme.docx Appendix 2
	Cabinet Forward Work Programme.docx Appendix 3

	12 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi
	Cabinet Estyn School Inspections Autumn Term 2021 080222 v1.0


